
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Lorl A. Weaver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commluioner 603-27M50I l-800^52-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
lain N. Watt www.dhh$.nh.eov

Director

February 11, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing
business as "Dartmouth-Hitchcock") (VC #177160), Lebanon. NH, for services that support the
Department's Maternal Mortality Review Committee and continue participation in the Alliance for
Innovation on Maternal Health, by increasing the price limitation by $1,258,469 from $1,028,789
to $2,287,258 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2028,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 10,2020 (Item #12),
and amended on June 16, 2021 (Item #34), March 9, 2022 (Item #17), May 31,2023 (Item #28),
and most recently amended on June 26, 2024 (Item #33).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026, 2027, and 2028, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor's Northern New
England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network is Identified in RSA 132:29-31 as the
Department's designated partner in the Maternal Mortality Review Committee for these sen/ices.
Additionally, they are also the identified partner in the Department's federal grant for the Alliance
for Innovation on Maternal Health and Child Health.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Contractor to continue supporting the
Department's Maternal Mortality Review Committee and Alliance for Innovation on Maternal
Health. The Contractor will continue to facilitate family interviews to inform case reviews, increase
participation of subject matter experts (including maternal health psychologists), and distribute
Committee recommendations to organizations supporting those with lived experience, including
substance use disorders and perinatal mental health conditions. Additionally, the Contractor will
expand its collaboration with the Alliance for Innovation on Maternal Health by implementing
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eyiderids-based patient safety bundles, which is a' structured way to Improve the quality of
.healthcare provided to pregnant woman impacted by opiold use and other substances. .

The Department will continue to monitor services by: , V
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FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Maternal Mortality

,  SS-2020-DPHS-11-MATERN-01-A05

05-95-90-902010-34870000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATLH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; PUBLIC HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION

MATERNAL MORTILITY

FAIN#: NU58DP006693 awarded 7/30/19

FAIN #: NU58DP007822 Awarded 8/7/24

FUNDER: DHHS, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

CFDA#: 93.478

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Vendor #177160

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Serv 90080478 $68,278 $0 $68,278

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080478 $68,278 $0 $68,278

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080478 $68,278 $0 $68,278

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080478 $68,278 $0 $68,278

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080478 $91,292 $0 $91,292

2025 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080478 $178,751 ($110,473) $68,278

2025 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080480 $0 $110,473 $110,473

2026 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Serv 90080480 $0 $162,049 $162,049

2027 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080480 $0 $162,049 $162,049

2028 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Sen/ 90080480 $0 $162,049 $162,049

SUBTOTAL $543,155 $486,147 $1,029,302
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05.95-90-902010-45260000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY

HEALTH & NUTRITION, MCH DATA LINKAGE

FAIN#: H18MC00D33 Awarded 10/21/21

FUNDER: DHHS, HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

CFDA#: 93.110

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, Vendor #177160

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2022 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90080125 ■ $52,114 $0 $52,114

2023 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90080125 $0 $0 $0

2024 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90080125 $0 $0 $0

2025 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90080125 $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL $52,114 $0 $52,114

05-95-90-902010-51900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; PUBLIC HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH &

NUTRITION, MATERNAL - CHILD HEATLH

100% Federal Funds

FAIN# B04MC45230 Awarded 10/19/21

FAIN# B04MC47432 Awarded 10/2/22

FAIN# B04MC52939 Awarded 11/6/23

FUNDER DHHS, HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

CFDA 93.991

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2023 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90004009 $100,000

1

$0 $100,000

2024 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90004009 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2025 074-500589

Grants for Pub

Asst and Re! 90004009 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2026 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Serv 90004009 $0 $116,702 $116,702

2027 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Serv 90004009 $0 $116,702 $116,702

2028 074-500589

Contracts for

Prog Serv 90004009 $0 $116,702 $116,702

SUBTOTAL $300,000 $350, f 06 $650,106
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05-95-90-902010-40630000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATLH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION

ALLNCE INNOV MAT HLTH-AIM

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

FAIN#A3049997 Awarded 8/2/23

FUNDER; DHHS, HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

CFDA# 93.110

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Vendor #177160

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

^  2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services 90080121 $22,252 $0 $22,252

2025 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services 90080121 $111,268 $22,103 $133,371

2026 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services 90080121 $0 $133,371 $133,371

2027 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services 90080121 $0 $133,371 $133,371

2028 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services 90080121 $0 $133,371 $133,371

SUBTOTAL: $133,520 $422,216 $555,736

TOTAL: $1,028,789 $1,258,469 $2,287,258

Page 3 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID; BD5CF7F7-DA1C-459C-AOCE.1880199E332E

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Clinic (collectively doing business as "Dartmouth-Hitchcock") ('Ihe Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 10, 2020 (Item #12), and amended on June 16, 2021 (Item #34), March 9, 2022 (Item #17), May
31, 2023 (Item #28), and most recently amended on June 26, 2024 (Item #33), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2028

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,287,258

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 1.3 through Subsections
1.3.4., to read:

1.3 The Contractor agrees to provide a Maternal Health Program Data Specialist (Data
Specialist) to support this Agreement. The Contractor must ensure the Data Specialist:

1.3.1. Has a master's degree and three (3) years of experience in data collection, reporting,
and quality improvement implementation of initiatives; preferably in maternal health.

1.3.2. Provides the following services:

1.3.2.1. Supports and promotes communication and alignnnent of all Maternal
Health Innovation grant initiatives with Title V maternal health
programming including, but not limited to, the new Federal Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) national performance
measure on the postpartum visit.

1.3.2.2. Works with the state Epidemiologist and other Department staff to support
the analysis and facilitation of state and regional level maternal infant
health data relative to perinatal quality improvement such as pregnancy
risk assessment monitoring system and birth certificate data.

1.3.3. Is able to work in-person at the Division of Public Health Services located at 29 Hazen
Drive, Concord, NH 03301 during the operating hours of 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM (EST).

1.3.4. Works 32 hours per week, Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and state
holidays.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.10, to read:

2.10 The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department on the progress of
activities, process and outcome measures as outlined in the ERASE maternal mortality

-IntUtIinmt

£Ma^ HitchTO^ MemorialHospital A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

SS.2020-DPHS-11-MATERN-01-A05 Page1of4- Date 3/^1/2025
v7.12.23



Oocusign Envelope ID: BD5CF7F7-DA1C-459C-A0CE-1880199E332E

workplan.

5. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 3.4.3, to read:

3.4.3. Utilizing the aggregated birth certificate records data from vital records as provided
by the Department with suppression implemented for the purposes of:

3.4.3.1. Informing participating birthing hospitals of their own aggregated hospital
level data with the number of birthing people in an aggregated level with
conditions related to the selected patient safety bundles and other health
related indicators as approved and provided by the Department; and

3.4.3.2. Developing data dashboard visualization, preferably in Tableau, for the
birthing hospitals utilizing aggregated data.

3.4.3.2.1. The Contractor must not present the birthing hospital's name
or make it available on the data dashboard visualization.

3.4.3.2.2. The Contractor must not publish or make public the content of
cells in statistical tables in which the cell size is more than 0

and less than 5.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing it in its entirety with
Exhibit B - Amendment #5, Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-7, Budget - Amendment #4 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-7, Budget
- Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated" by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-6, Budget - Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-9, Budget - Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

f  InltUI

rMary Hitchcock Mernorial Hospital A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID: BD5CF7F7-DA1C-459C-A0CE-1880199E332E

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/31/2025

Date

'^OocuSlgcMd by;

— D778B8MFQ7CMC7...TF
INdllie.

Title: Director - dphs

3/31/2025

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing business as
"Dartmouth-Hitchcock")

-OeeuSlgiMd by:

r ren s

Title: chief clinical Officer

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

SS-2020-DPHS-11-MATERN-01 -AOS
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3
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Docusign Envelope ID; BD5CF7F7.DA1C-459C-AOCE-1880199E332E

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuStgntd by.

3/31/2025

74fl7Ma44W14flO... "
uate iNdiiie'.^^'^j'"

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital A-S-1.3

SS-2020-DPHS-11.MATERN^1.A05 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: C9201 B7B-CEA5^2F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #5

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 45% Federal Funds from the Preventing Maternal Deaths:
Supporting Maternal Mortality Review Committees Grant, as
awarded on July 30, 2019, June 30, 2021, and July 20, 2023,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (US
DHHS), Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC),
Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.478, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) NU58DP006693: and as awarded
on August 7, 2024, FAIN NU58DP007822.

1.1.2. 2.28% Federal Funds from the New Hampshire MCH Data
Linkage Project, as awarded on August 18, 2021, October 21,
2021, and November 16, 2023, by the US DHHS, Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Maternal and
Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs, ALN 93.110,
FAIN H1800033.

1.1.3. 28.42% Federal Funds from the Maternal and Child Health
Federal Consolidated Programs, as awarded on October 19,
2021 by the US DHHS. HRSA, ALN 93.991, FAIN
B04MC45230: and as awarded on October 27, 2022, FAIN
B04MC44732, and as awarded on November 6, 2023, FAIN
B04MC52939.

1.1.4. 24.30% Federal Funds from the Alliance for Innovation on

Maternal Health State Capacity Program, as awarded on
September 5, 2023 by the US DHHS, HRSA, ALN 93.110, FAIN
A3049997.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, based on criteria specified in 2 CFR
200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The Indirect Cost Rate for this Agreement in the attached Budget
Sheet(s).

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual allowable
expenditures incurred under this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-
9, Budget - Amendment #5.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice to the Department no later than the
y  kiWtl

CM
SS-2020-DPHS-11-MATERN^31-A05 C-2.1 Contractor Initials

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Page 1 of 3 Date^^^^^^^^



Docusign Envelope ID; Cg201B7B-CEA5^2F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #5

twentieth (20th) working day of the month following the month in which the
services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a format as provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month in accordance with Section 3 above.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation with each invoice, including, but not
limited to, proof of expenditures, itemized receipts for purchases, time
sheets, and payroll records with position or staff detail, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature and is emailed to
DPHSContractBillinqfajdhhs.nh.QOv or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30)
calendar days only upon receipt and approval of the submitted invoice and
required supporting documentation, upon sufficient funds are available.

6. The final invoice and any required supporting documentation shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) calendar days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting direct and indirect cost amounts within the price limitation
between budget class lines, as well as adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, may be made by written agreement of
both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified.

f

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.qov if

any of the following conditions exist: '

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor is subject to a Single Audit
pursuant to 2 CFR 200.501 Audit Requirements.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the

[?SS.2020-DPHS-11 -MATERN-01 -AOS C-2.1 Contractor Initials

3/25/2025
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Page 2 of 3 Date



Docusign Envelope ID; C9201B7B-CEA5-42F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #5

requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. The Contractor, regardless of the funding source and/or whether
Conditions A, B, or C exist, may be required to submit annual financial
audits performed by an independent CPA upon request by the
Department.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and , shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception, within sixty (60) days.

9. If applicable, the Contractor must request disposition instructions from the
Department for any equipment, as defined in 2 CFR 200.313, purchased
using funds provided under this Agreement, including information
technology systems.

,F_SS-2020-OPHS-11-MATERN-01-A05 C-2.1 Contractorlnltials,

3/25/2025
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Page 3 of 3 Date



Oocusign Envelope ID; CAO455C5-211E-4C5B-BA35-0670DF1C414D

Exhibit B-7 Budget - Amendment #5

N«w Hampthlr* D«partintnt of H««lth and Human Sarvieoa

on* budget form tor mcA budget partod.
Contractor Nama: 'Mary Hitchcocirfrlernoriat'Hospif^'foritsiif and on iSShatfof DartmouOi^ilchcodTCli/^c'

Budoat Raquaat for 'Enhandng Raviawa and Sutvaillanca to EHminata Matamal Mort^ity and AJM capacity

Budgat ̂rtodi7/1/2024 • 6/3<VZ02S ^ .
Indiract Cost Rats (If applicabla)h6%

it '. -11?'
MPrdg'ra'm'CostVFund^ Ijy DHHS' •.•^Program CMt; FuridA by.DHHS AIM ahd.Matamsh

Ua/""ilut? ...•iit^'chiid H?alth*'/'.*''^
1. Salary &Waaes ■ - . • - S97.933 $147,822

2. Frinoa Benefits $32,024 •  ' f- $51,146

3. Consultants .  ..• - • $17,390 $900

4. Equipment

tndlrea cost rate cannot be appliod to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

.$p
'  . > ■

S.fa) SuDoties • Educational

O

E

S.fb) SuDDlies • Lab $0

5.fcl SuDDlles - Pharmacy .  , • •• -$0 ■  ' I

S.fdl SuDolles - Medical •  • -so

S.fe) SuDDlles Offlce 1  • $1,387 -  • • ' -j $14

6. Travel >■ ' '' " v! •' .n" ■ *2,150

7. Software •  $0

8. (a) Other • Maritetlng/
Commurdcations '  \ "(• .-$0 .  11 • - " ■

,  . 1 "

8. (b) Other • Education and Traininc
8. fc) Other • Other fsoedfy belowt -.'

soadal avant -so $21
OthartolaasasoadM .  $0 !  ̂ r

OtharlDlaasa soadM ■ - $0 .  . ' i •

■  • Other folesse soeci/Vi - • .  , —.. • .$0 ,  .. •, .

e. Subredolent Contracts -  . V •• ^ •' ^$0 ,r .

Total Direct Costs $154,762 $202,053

Total Indiract Costs ••• . .-•$23,989 -  • $31,318
% Indirect Costs 16% 16%

TOTAL $178,751 $233,371
Grand total $412,122

Exhibit e-7 Budget • Amendment SS
SS-202(H>PHS-11-MATERN-01-A0S

Contractor Initials,

^  InRfai
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Oocusign Env«top« ID: Ce201B7B^EA5^2F3-SB2E-AC2D8F3EAe93

EiMH 34 BudQM. Anxndnwil fS

Nnv Hunpthin Ovpartntarrt «f HmK>> Mid HumMi SmvIcm

Centnetor Nmiw:

BudgM RtduMt for

BudgatPMtod:

Indirect Com RMo (If ■pplieaMol

Ma/y Xlehccdi A4amor<at HMpltat for taafand on bahaff of Oartmou/K
mehcockCMe , •

Enhanefng Raiaawa.and SurvaBanoa to EXirirmlo Uttomol Uontty
7fl/2025 - aoac?028 c ,
15.50* ' '

^?Piog™m Coat
fiFunciad 6yOHH8*t'

r-,.v

i'lMattrnal Mbrtallty-V
r"';Pf^fam'Coat •

Contractor SKara/
.  ;>Mttoh-8rf'2«

■' • 'i'• v.

'^Mawmai Mortality-
(WlPf^fiinCdat •'i'"'

: TFundad by DHH8 '-l

:^Matamal[Mortallty9
. rfijiiprpgrarn CoM/.i.I^
i'lCdnlraclor Shaiia/['l|
;ilii'Mateh-8F;y,27,.f';^
:' ••• . '' It

Hy 1"'
! .X>fbfl<*m Cbai'-i'r'
f'TFundad'by OHHS'^'-
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL

HOSPITAL is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on August 07, 1889. 1

ftjrther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 6S517

Certificate Number: 0006776481

-.'i ■

ft

to.
s
■0

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 12th day of September A.D. 2024.

/

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Roberta L. Mines. MD. do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Chair of the Boards of Trustees of Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (together, "Dartmouth-Hitchcock").

2. The following is a true and accurate excerpt from the Amended, Restated and Integrated Bylaws of the

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Corporations:

a. "ARTICLE II - Section A. Fiduciary Duty. Stewardship over Corporate Assets. As
responsible stewards of tax-exempt, charitable Corporations, members of the Corporations'
Boards have the fiduciary duty to oversee, with due care and loyalty, the stewardship of the
Corporations' assets and operations in order to create a sustainable health system that is population
focused and value-based, and to advance their respective corporate purposes. In exercising this
duty, the Boards may, consistent with the respective Corporation's Articles of Agreement and
these Bylaws, delegate authority to Board Committees and.other bodies, or to various officers, to
provide input with respect to issues and strategies, incur indebtedness, make expenditures, enter
into contracts and agreements and take such other binding actions on behalf of the Corporations
as may be necessary or desirable in furtherance of their charitable purposes."

3. Pursuant to policy approved and adopted by the Boards of Trustees consistent with the above Bylaws

provision, the Chief Clinical Officer, Edward Merrens, MD, has subdelegated signature authority to enter

into contracts and agreements on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial

Hospital.

4. The foregoing authority shall remain in full force and effect as of the date of the agreement executed or

action taken in reliance upon this Certificate. This authority shall remain valid for thirty (30) days from

the date of this Certificate and the State of New Hampshire shall be entitled to rely upon same, until written

notice of modification, rescission or revocation of same, in whole or in part, has been received by the State

of New Hampshire.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chair of the Boards of Trustees of Dartmouth-

Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital this 19th day of March, 2025.

Roberta L. Hines, MD, Board Chair'
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COMPANY AFFORDING COVERAGE

Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 1687

30 Main Street, Suite 330

Burlington, VT 05401

DATE: July 1 2024

INSURED

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756

(603)653-6850

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. This
Certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

The Policy listed below has been issued to the Named Insured above for the Policy Period notwithstanding any
requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued. The
insurance afforded by the policy is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of the policy. Limits shown may
have been reduced by paid claims.

TYPE OF

INSURANCE
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY

EFFECTIVE

DATE

POLICY

EXPIRATION

DATE

LIMITS

GENERAL

LIABILITY

0002024-A 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 EACH

OCCURRENCE
$1,000,000

DAMAGE TO

RENTED

PREMISES

$1,000,000

X CLAIMS MADE
MEDICAL

EXPENSES
N/A

PERSONAL & $1,000,000
ADV INJURY

OCCURRENCE GENERAL

AGGREGATE
$3,000,000

OTHER PRODUCTS-

COMP/OP AGG
$1,000,000

PROFESSIONAL

LIABILITY

0002024-A 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 EACH CLAIM $1,000,000

CLAIMS MADEX ANNUAL

AGGREGATE
$3,000,000

OCCURENCE

OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES/ SPECIAL ITEMS (LIMITS MAY BE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS)

Certincate is Issued as evidence of insurance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

Should my of the ttwve described policies be cancelled before the expiration dale
thereof, the issuing company wili endeavor to mail 30 DAYS written notice to the
certificate holder named below, but failure to mall such notice shall impose no
obligation or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Xj

li.-
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DARTHIT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LSIILES

DATE (MM/DDrrYYY)

7/8/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER License #1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foreslde, ME 04110

c^q^act Lauren Stiles
PHONE FAX
(A/C. No. EM): (MC.No):

Lauren.Stlle8@hublntematlonal.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICm

iNsuRERA:TheGrav Insurance Comoanv 36307

INSURED

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

1 Medical Center Dr.

Lebanon, NH 03756

INSURERB;Midwest Emolovsrs Casualty Comoanv 23612

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

nKD
SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

commerculgeNERAL UABILITY

E 1 1 OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE s

CLAIMS-MAC
%

MED EXP (Anv ona Daraon) 1

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY %

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s

poucyI \^i8f 1 |loc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG t

»

AUTOMOBILE UABtUTY
i COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT i

IFa afrirtann s

ANY AUTO

:H|gULED
BODILY INJURY (Par oarion) i

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aI^sonly

SC
AU BOOIl Y INJURY (Par aeddant) s

SIS
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PwacdoamT i

i

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESSUAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE i

AGGREGATE »

DED RETENTION S $

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS-UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rTT!

1-^
II ya*. datcrlba undar
r)F.«a-:RiPTiON of opfrations baiow

til A

SPX0702544 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

Y PER OTH- 1
^ RTATUTF ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT !
,  500,000

F I. aSFASF . EA EMPLOYEE
,  500,000

E.L DISEASE-POUCY LIMIT i
,  500,000

B Excess Workers' Comp 1

1

EWC010235

i

7/1/2024 7/1/2026 NH Only 1,000,000

OESCRIPnON OF OPERAnONS / LOCAnONS / VEHICtES (ACORD101. Additional Ramarlu Sehadult. may bt attaehad If mom apaca to raoulrad)
Evidence of Workers Compensation coverage for

Cheshire Medical Center
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital
New London Hospital Association
Visiting Nurse Associates and Hospice of Vermont and New Hampshire

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health
and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

' ACORD 25(2016/03) (E>1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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About Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Dartmouth

Hitchcock Clinics

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Clinics—members of Dartmouth Health

{https://www.dartmouth-heaith.org)—include Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, the state's

only academic medical center, and Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics, which provide primary

and specialty care throughout New Hampshire and Vermont.

Our physicians and researchers collaborate with Geisel School of Medicine scientists and

faculty as well as other leading health care organizations to develop new treatments at the

cutting edge of medical practice bringing the latest medical discoveries to the patient.

Who are Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Dartmouth Hitchcock

Clinics?

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

BSjiiUi nrm

m'l

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center is the state's only academic medical center, and the

only Level I Adult and Level II Pediatric Trauma Center in New Hampshire. The Dartmouth

Hitchcock Advanced Response Team (DHART), based in Lebanon and Manchester, provides

ground and air medical transportation to communities throughout northern New England.

In 2022. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center was named the #1 hospital in New

Hampshire by U.S. News b World Report (https://health.usnews.com/best-hospitals/area/nh), and

recognized as high performing in 2 adult specialties, Cancer and Neurology/Neurosurgery,

as well as in 12 common adult procedures and conditions.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics
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Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics provide primary and specialty care throughout New

Hampshire and Vermont with major community group practices in Lebanon, Concord,

Manchester, Nashua, and Keene, New Hampshire, and Bennington, Vermont.

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center is New Hampshire's only
children's hospital and a member of the Children's Hospital Association, providing
advanced pediatric inpatient, outpatient and surgical services at Dartmouth Hitchcock

Medical Center.

&

Norris Cotton Cancer Care Pavilion Lebanon

Norris Cotton Cancer Care Pavilion Lebanon {https://cancer.dartmouth.edu/), one of only 53

NCI-designated Comprehensive Cancer Centers in the nation, is one of the premier

facilities for cancer treatment, research, prevention, and education.

Our mission, vision, and values

Our mission

We advance health through research, education, clinical practice and community
partnerships, providing each person the best care, in the right place, at the right time, every
time.
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Our Vision

Achieve the healthiest population possible, leading the transformation of health care in our

region and setting the standard for our nation.

Our values

• Respect

•  Integrity

• Commitment

• Transparency

• Trust

• Teamwork

• Stewardship

• Community

About Dartmouth Health (https:/Avww.dartmouth-health.org/)

Copyright © 2023 Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Clinics. All rights reserved.



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and

Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees'of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Opinion "

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health
and its subsidiaries (the "Health System"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets arid of
cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the
"consolidated financi^ statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material '
fMpects, the financial position of the Health ̂ stem asof June 30,2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAS). Our re^nsibilities undertKose standards are further described in the Auditom'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Health System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities cfManagement for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or wents, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Health System's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are
isstRd.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Consolidated JPinancfaf Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated finandal statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leviel of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated finandal statements.

T((6i7)'S30$M 5^'5aoi,'.wvhv)i^ ' '

'\y - '
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

. • Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
• Identify, and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
. whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include ̂ mining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosuresiin the consolidated financial statements. ' :

•, pbtain an understanding of internal control rele^^nt to the audit in order to design audit
' procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's intemaj control. Aox)rdingly, no such opinion
vis express^. - . "

•' Evaluate the'appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting cstirhates made by management, .as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, diere are cotiditions or events, considered in the aggregate,^ -
that raise substantial doubt about tHe Health $)^em's ability to continue as a going concern fora-
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those cha^^ with govemanM regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant "audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplemental Iriformiation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial stateinents
taken as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets and consolidating statements of
operations and dianges 'in net assets without donor restrictions as of and for the years ended June 30,'
2023 and 2022 (the "supplemental information") is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information is not
intended to present, and we do not express an opinion on, the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual companies. The supplemental information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directlyjto the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated.financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance vrith auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Boston, Massachusetts
November 17,2023



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars) ' 2023 - 2022

Assets

Current assets

Ca^ and cash equivalents $ 115:996 $ 191,929
Patient accounts recelvablei net (Note 4) 289,787 251.250
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 184.104 169.133

Total current assets 589,887 612,312

Assets limited as to use (Notes 5 and 7) 1,071.462 1,181,094
Other investments for restricted acilvities (Notes 5 and 7) 182,224 175,116
Property,-plant, and equipmentrnet (Note 6) 811,622 764.840
RIght-of-use assets, net (Note 16) 55.528 58,925
Other assets 193,333 172.163

Total assets $' 2.904,056 $ 2,964,450

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabiiities

Current poi^n of Ipng-term debt (Note 10) $ 15,236 % 6,596
Current po^on of right-of-use obligations (Note 16) 11,334 ;  11,319
Line of credit

i"* • •
. 40,000

Current portion of liability for pension and other postretirernent
.  plan benertts'(Note 11) \ ̂ 3,366 3,500

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 148,747 156,572
Accrued compensaten and related benefits 137,467 190,560

.  Estimated third-party settlements (Note 3 and 4) 64,360 ..■134,898
Total current liabilities 418,530 503,445

Long-term debt, exduding current portibn (Note 10) ' 1,098,962 1.117,288
Long-term right-of-use obfigations, exduding current pohion (Note 16) ■45,671 48,824
Insurance deposits and related liabilities (Note 12) ■ - 91,349 78,391
LiabiSty for pension and other postretirernent plan benefits.
exduding current portion (Note 11) 208,305 228.606

Other liabilities 173,918 154,096
. Totalliabllities 2.034,735 2,130,650

Commitments and contingendes (Notes 3,4,6.7,10,13, and 16)
Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions (Note 9) 658,988 > 634,297
Net assets with donor restridions (Notes 8 and 6) 210.333 ' 199.503

Total net assets 869,321 833,800
• Totalliabilities and net assets $ 2,904,056 $ 2,964,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

> ̂  7- . . .3 V



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets
Xeais Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating revenue and other eupport - .
Net patient service rwenue (Note 4) $  2,397;157 $ 2,243.237

Contracted revenue' 84,346 •  77,666

Other operating revenue (Notis 4) 608.875 534^031

Net assets released from restrictions .  14.843 15,894

Total operating revenue and other support 3,105,221 2.870,828

Operating expenses
Salaries 1,423.091 1;315,407

Employee beneftts 332;'^ ■322i570
Medications and medical supplies 725f480

•/
649^272

Pur^ased services and other 458,901 . 40^862
Medicaid enhancement tax (Note 4) '85,715 82,725
Depreciation and amortization • 90,457 66,958
Interest (Note 10) 34,515 32,113

Total operating expenses 3,150,545 • 2,892,907

Operating loss . (45,324) (22,079)

Non*operatlng gains (losses) •
Investment income (loss), net (Note 5) 58,119 (78.744)
Other components of net periodic pennon artd post
retirement t>enefit income (Note 11 and 14)/ (17,691) "  13,910
Other losses, net (8,530) ■  (6.658)

Total non-operating gains.(losses), net 31,898 (71,492)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $  (13,426) -$ (93.571)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - continues on liext page

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these'consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets - Continued
Years Ended June 30,2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars) 2Q23 ■2022

Net assets without donor restrictions
Oeficlency of revenue over expenses S  (13,426) $. (93,571)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital 3,229 1,573
Changeln funded status of pension and other postretlrement
benefits (Note 11) . 34,901. (32,309)

Other changeslln net assets (13) (23)

Increase (decreasey in net assets without donor rest^bns -  24,691 (124.330)

Net assets with donor restrictions
GIfis; bequests.sponsored activities' 23,637 39,710
Investment Income (loss}^net 5,846 (7,010)
Net assets released from restrictions ■  (18,653) (17,467)

increase'in net assets with donor restrictions 10.830 15.233

Change In net assets 35,521 (109,097)

Net assets
Beginrilngofyear .. 833,800 941897
End of year $  869,321 $ 833,800

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and.2022,

fm thousands of Man)

Ccsh flows from oporaUng Ktivl(l«$
Change in nti tSMts
Adjustments to reconcile dtfhge In net assets to
net cash provided by operalihg and non-operatinQ acMtles
Qepredation artd amoilization
Amortization of tiond premium, discount^ and issuance cost, net
Amortization of right-of^se asset
Payments on right-cf-usa tease oMgatlons • operating

' Change in funded status of pension land other postreUrem^ benefits
Lou (gain) on disposal of fixed assets,
Net realized gains and change in net unresBzed ga^ orii inyettmenls
Restricted eontributi^ end investment earnings

-•Proceeds frorri sales of donated securities

Changes In assets and liablfilies
Patient accounts receivable, rial -

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets, net

Accounts payable and accrued. toq>e'nses
Accrued compensation and related benefits

■Estimated thirti»riy settlements
Insurance dqto^ ertd related laMities
Liabfiy for pension and other postretiremeni benefits
Other leUiities' ' , . ^ .

Net cash used in operating actMties
Cash flows from Investlrtg actlvitlea
Purchase'of property, plant, and eqiripment .
Proceeds from sale of property, plant; end eqitipment '■
Purchases of investments

2023 •

(  35.S21 $

Proceeds from msturitles and sales of investments

Ntf cash provided by (used in) investing acUyitiM
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds ficmine of cr^t
Payments on Brte of credil
Repayment of Img^rm debt

' Process from'issuance of debt
Repayment of ftnanbe leases
Restricted contributions and Investment earnings

Nel cash provided by finertdrig ectivities
Decrease in cash end ca^ eqtdvaients

Cish and cash equlvaltnts, beginning of year
Cash and euh equivalents, end of year

■.Supplemental cash flow Information
.Interest paid
Construction in progress'included in accounts payable and
accrued toq>enses
Donated securities

restitoed cash on the consdfidated statements of cash flows.

' Cash and cash eq^alents
•Cash and ea^^i^ivalantslndudedtn assets limited as to use
Restricted cesh':and cash equivalents Included in other investments for resbicted activities

Totajofcesh, cash ei^lWlmts.-end restricted ciuh shown -•
.In the consolidated statements of cash flows

2022 '

(109,097)

'90,606 87,008
(2,779) (2.764)
'9,242 9,270
(9,162) (9.190)

(34,901) 32,309
, (883)' ■  (5»)

,  (79.799) . 88,852
(8,208) (20.151)
3,818 10,885

(38,537) (19,089)
1,984 (9,915)

-  (21.688) 2,517
(31,082) 17,104
(53,093). ' 8:490

•■(71,907) (120,117)
12,958 (1.583)

. 12,488 (28:422)
21,191 (56.687)

•  (184.033) •• (123.525)

(129,321) (160,855)
1^214 613

(71.410) (85,288)
•249:884 . .  "137,781

:  50.167 (87:747)

979.500- •■ 30.000
(939.500)" '  (30:()00)
-(SI'.WT) • •  (9,116)

*^-75.000 " '

(3.599) (3.253)
'8.208 20,151

- -37.702 -> 7;782
(76.164) • (203.490)

193,485 396.975
$  117;321 $ 193,485

5  . -44,362 ' 5 4Z887

s.ios 9.407
3,818 < 10.M5

> cash, cash equivaleiris and

2023 2022

$  115,998 5 '191.929
i:350

1,325* - 208

$  ■ 117,321 S 193,<S5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3b, 2023 and 2022

t. Organization and Community Benefit Commitments

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH), Its Members, and their Subsidiaries (the Health System) is a
system of hospitals, clinics, and other healthcare service providers across New Hampshire and
Vermont. The Health System's mission is to advance h^th through research, education, clinical
practice, and commumfy partnerships, providing each person the best care, In'the right place, at
the right time, every time. The Health System seeks to achieve the^healthiest population possible,
leading the transformation of health care In the regloh and setting the standard for the nation. The
Health System's expanding network of services are the fab'dc of Its commitment to serve the region
with exceptional medical care;

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH) serves as the sole corporate rhember of the following entities:
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (DHC) and Subsidiaries;;Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital (MHMH)

,  and Subsidiaries. (DHC and MHMH together are referred to as D-H), The New London Hospital
Association, Inc. ,(NLH), Winder ;Hospital Corporation'(^a Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health
Center) (MAHHC) and Subsidiaries, The Cheshire M^iral Center (Cheshire) and Subsidiaries,

.Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital (APp) and Subsidiary, arid Visiting Nurse Association and
Hospice of Vermont and New Hampshire, (VnH) and Subsidiaries.

The Health System currently operates one tertiary, one community, and three acute care (critical
access) hospitals in New Hampshire (NH) and Vermont (VT). One facility provides inpatient and

'outpatient rehabilitation rr^edicine and long-term care. The Health System also operates multiple
physiciaii practices, a continuing car^e retirement community, end a home health and hospice'
service. The Health System operates a graduate level program for health professions and is the
principal teaching affiliate of the (^isel School of Medicine (Gelsel), a component of Dartmouth
College.

D-HH, DHC, MHMH, NLH. Cheshire, and APD are NH not-for-profit corporations exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). MAHHC and
VNH are VT not-for-profit corporations exempt from'federal Income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the IRC.

On December 6, 2022. D-HH entered Into an Integration Agreement with Valley Regional
Healthcare, Inc; ("VRHC") and its subsidies Valley Regionai Hospital and Its affiliates ("VRH"), a
critical access hospital located Ih'Ciaremont, Nevy Hampshire. The parties have submitted the
transaction for regulatory review by the New Hampshire Attorney General with a target closing date
in early 2024.

Community Benefits
Consistent with Hs mission, the Health System provides high quality, cost effective, comprehensive,
Slid Integrated .healthcare to Individuals, families, and the communities it serves regardless of a
patient's ability to pay. The Health System actively supports community-based healthcare and
promoteis the coordination of services among healthcare providers and social services
organizations, in addition, the Health System seeks to work collaboratlyely with other area
healthcare providers to Improve the health status of the region. .As a component of an integrated
academic medical center, the Health System provides significant support for academic and

:  research programs.



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeh^
June.^O, 2023.and 2022

Certain member hospitals of-the Health-System file annual Community Benefits Reports with.the
State df NH,'.which putline the community arid charitat}le benefits each provides. VT hpspitals W
not required by law to file a state Cornmunity Benefit Report. The categories used In the
Community Benefit.Reports to summarize these benefits are as follows:

•  Community HoaHh Irnprovement SerWces include activities cafried'out to improve community'
health, and could include community health education (such as classes, programs,'support
groups, and materials that promote wellhess and prevent .illness), communi^-based clinical
services (such as free clinics, and health screenings), and healthcare support services
(enrollment assistance in public programs, assistance in obtaining free or reduced costs
medications,-telephone information services, or transportation programs.to enhance access to
care. etc.).

•  Heellh Professions Education includes uncompensated costs of training medical students,'
residents, nurses, and other health care professionals

•  Subsidized Health Services are services provided by the Health System, resulting in financial
losses that meet the needs of the community and .would not otherwise be available unless the

v; responsibility was assumed by the'gbveinm'ent. ' ^

•  r Research includes costs, in excess of awards,-for nurnerous health research and service
.  ''initiatives within.the Health System.

-  . f ' .

• t Cash end In-Kind Contributions occur outside of the System through various financial
contributions of cash, in-kind donations, and grants to local organizations.

•  Community-Building Activities include expenses incurred to support the development of
programs and partnerships intended to address public health challenges, as well as social and

- economic determinants of health. Examples include physical improvements arid housing,
economic development, support system erihancernents, environmental' improvements,
leadership development and training for community members, community health improvement
advocacy, and workforce enhancement.

.« Charity Care includes losses, at-cost. incun-ed by'providing health care services to persons
qualifying for hospital financial assistance programs.

•  The Uncompensated Cdst of Care for Medlcald patients reported in the unaudited Community
Benefits Reports for 2022 was approximately $235,081,000. The 2023 Community Benefits
Reports are expected to be filed in February 2024.

V • . j * ,r - .



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

The following table summarizes the value of the community benefit initiatives outlined In the Health
Systern's'most r^ently filed Community Benefit Reports for the year ended June 30.2022:

(in thousands of dollars)

Uncompensated cost of care for Medicaid $  235,081

Health professional education 43.186
Subsidized health sen/ices 21,202
Charity care 16,011

Community health Improvement services 15,695
Research 7,254

Cash and In-Kind Contributions 4,001

Community building activities 2.834

Total community benefit value $  345.264

In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, funds received to offset or subsidize charity care costs provided
were $439,000 and $452,000. respectively.

For fiscal year 2022. Medicare costs exceeding reimbursement totaled $157.615.000.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
have been prepared consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codificatbn (ASC) 954, Healthcare Entities, which addresses the accounting for
healthcare entities. The net assets, revenue, expenses, gains, and \osees of healthcare entities
am classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly^ net
assets without donor-restrictions are amounts not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are
available for operations. Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose use has been limited
by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or whose use has been restricted by donors to be
maintained in perpetuity. All significant Intercompany transactions have been elirninated upon
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The most significant areas that are
affected by the use of estimates include implicit and explicit pricing concessions, valuation of
certain investments, estimated' third-party settlements, insurance reserves, and pension
obligations. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

A  . 9 .



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses
The Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Include the deficiency of
revenue over expenses. Operating revenues consist of those Hems- attributable to the care of
patients, including contributions and Investment income (loss) on investments of net assets without
donor restrictions,-which are utilized to provide charity and other operational support. Peripheral
activities, including realize^ gains/losses on sales of investment securities and changes in '
unrealized gains/losses on investments are reported as non-operating gains (losses).

. Changes m net assets vrithout donor resthctiorts which are excluded from the deficiency of revenue .
over expenses, consistent wHh industry practice, Include contnbutions of long-lived assets
(iricluding assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the

- purpose of acquiring such assets), and change in funded status of pension and other
' postretiremen! benefit plans.

Charity Care
The Health System provides cdre' to patients who meet certain criteria under their financial
assistance policies without charge,- or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the
Health System.does hot anticipate collection of amounts qualifying as charity care, they are not .
reported as revenue. '

The Health System grants credit, without collateral, to patients. Most are local residents and are
insured under third-party arrangements. The amount of charges for implicit price concessions Is
based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal and state governmental healthcare coverage, and other
collection indicators (Notes 1 and 4). '

Patient Service Revenue

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Patient sen/ice revenue is reported at the amount of consideration to which
the Health System expects to be entitled from patients, third party payors, and others, for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreernents with third-
party payors and implicit pricing concessions. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estirhated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
estimates change or final settlements are determined (Note 4).

Contracted Revenue

The Health System has various-Professional Service. Agreements (PSA8),vpursuant to which
certain organizations purchase services of personnel employed by the Health System and also
lease space and equipment. Revenue pursuant to these PSAs, and certain facility and equipment
leases and other professional service contracts, have been classified as contracted revenue in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Other Revenue

The Health System recognizes other revenue, which is not related to patient medical care but is
central tp the day-to-day operations of the Health System. Other revenue, which consists primarily
of revenue from retail pharmacy, specialty pharmacy, and',contract pharmacy. Is recorded in the
amounts to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the prescriptions. Other revenue also
includes Corpnavims Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act (CARES Act Provider Relief Funds)

-  ' ^ 10 .. ..
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

from the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). CARES Act Employee Retention
Credit Funds, operating agre^ents, grant revenue, cafeteria sales, and other support service
revenue (Note 3 and 4).

Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents.include amounts on deposit with financial institutions, shormerm
investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase, and other highly liquid
investments (primarily cash management funds), which would be considered level 1 investments
under the fair value hierarchy. All short-term, highly liquid, investments included within'the Health
System's endowment and similar investment pools, otherwise qualifying as cash equivalents, are
classified as investments at fair value and, therefore, are excluded from cash and cash equivalents
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

InvestfTients and Investment Income (Loss)
Investments \n equity securities with readity deterrnlnable fair values, mutual funds, governmental
securities, debt securities, and pooled/commingled funds' are reported at fair value with changes in
fair value-included in the deficiency of revenues over expenses. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to trarisfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (Note 7).'

Investments in pooled/commingled investment funds, private equity funds, and hedge funds that
represent investments wfiere the Health System owns shares or units of funds rather than the'
underlying securities in that fund are valued using the equity method of accounting with changes in
' value recorded in the deficiency of revenue over expenses.

Certain members of the Health System are partners in a NH general partnership established for the
purpose of operating a rnaster investment program of pooled investment accounts. Substantially
ail of the Health System's board-designated and assets with donor restrictiohs, such as endowment
funds, were-invested In these pooled funds by purchasing units based on the market value of the
pooled funds at the end of the month prior.to receipt of any new addKions to the funds. Interest,
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses earned on pooled funds are allocated
monthly based on the weighted average units outstanding at the prior month-end.

Investment Incorne or losses (including change in unrealized and realized gains and losses on
investments, change in value of equity method investments, interest, and dividends) ar;e include in~
the deficiency of revenue over expenses and classified as non-operating gains and losses, unless
the income or loss is restricted by donor or law (Note 9).

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The Health System estimates fair value based on a valuation framework that uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair yalue hierarchy, as defined by ABC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, are described below:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for assets or liabilities.



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30,.2023:and 2022 - ^

Level 2 Prices other than quoted prices In active markets that are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the date of measurement.

Level 3 Prices or valuation techniques that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and unobservable.

The carrying amounis of patient accounts receivable, prepaid and other current assets,^accounts
payable and accrued expenses approximate ^ir value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment, and other real estate are stated at cost at the time of purchase or
fair value at the tirne of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Health System's policy, is.to
capitalize expenditures for major improvements and to charge expense for maintenance and repair
expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation
has been determined using the strai^htTline method at.rates which are'intended to amortize the
cost of assets over their e^mated useful lives which range from 10 to 40 years for biijidrngs and
improvements. 2 to 20 years for equipnrieril, and the shorter of the lease term,.or 5 to 12 years, for
leasehold improvements. Certain software development costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period of up to 10 years. Net Interest cost Incurred on borrowed funds during the
period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those
assets.

Gifts of capital assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as support, and excluded
from the deficiency of revenue over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of capital assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire capita! assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those capital
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired capital assets are placed In service.

Bond Iseuance Costs

Bond issuance costs, classified on the. consolidated balance sheets within long-term debt, are
. amortized over the term of the related bonds. Amortization Is recorded within Interest expense in
the consolidated statements of operations and.changes in net assets using the straight-line method
.which approximates the effective interest method.

12



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Health System records within other assets on the consolidated balance sheets goodwill and
intangible assets such as trade namek and'leases<in-place. The Health System considers trade
names and goodwill to be indefinite-lived assets, assesses them at least annually for impairment or
more frequently if certain events or circumstances warrant and recognizes impairment charges for
amounts by which the carrying values exceed their fair values. The Health System has recorded
$8,367,000 and $8,885,000 as intangible assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Gifts

Gifts without donor restrictions are recorded net of related expenses as non-operating gains.
Conditional promises to give and Indications of intentions to give to the HeaHh System are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. Gifts are reported with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that Is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the consofidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released
from restrictions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouricements
In March 2020, January 2021, and April 2022, the FASB issued standard updates on Reference
Rate Reform In response to the planned discontinuation of the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
(LIBOR), a key Interbank reference rate. The standard provides accounting relief to contract
modifications and optional expedients for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts and other transactions
that reference LIBOR or other reference rates that are expected to be discontinued because of rate
reform. The Health System is currently in the process of e^luating the impact of adoption of these
standards on the ftnanclal statements.

3. The COVID-19 Pandemic

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated COVID-19 as a global pandemic
resulting in an extraordinary disruption to our nation's healthcare system. In response to COVIO-
19. the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act was enacted which provided
different types of ecorramic support to a wide variety of organizations and individuals. The Health
System employed several CARES Act provisions, with the most significant Impacts summarized
below.

Health and Human Service Provider Relief Funds

The Health System received $1,822,000 and $100,346,000 in CARES Act Provider Relief Funds
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 20^, respectively.

In July 2020. HHS issued reporting requirements for CARES Act Provider Relief Funds, requiring
recipients to identify healthcare-related expenses that remairi unreimbursed by another source,
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic. If those expenses do not exceed the funding received,
recipients will .need to demonstrate that the remaining funds were used to compensate for a
negative variance in patient service revenue. HHS is entitled to recoup Provider Relief Funds
awarded in excess of expenses attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic that were not reimbursed

.  13



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

by another source plus losses incurred due to the decline in patient care revenue. There have been
no recoupments through June 30,2023.

Medicare arid Medlcald Services (CMS) Accelerated and Advance Payment Program

The Health System received CMS prepayment advances,, related to the CARES Act, totaling'
$245,200,000. In addition, the Health System accumulated payroll tax deferrals of $33,100,000.
Repayment of funds commenced in April 2021. The balances of CMS prepayment advances and
accumulated payroll tax deferrals at June 30, 2022 were $54,890,000 and $16;550,000,
respectively, and are included In estimated third party settlements and accrued compensation and
related benefits on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts for CMS prepayment advances
and payroll tax deferrals were repaid, in full, during the year ended June 30,2023.

The Health System continues to address the challenges and impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic,
Including protecting the health and safety of employees and patients, as well as assessing the
availability of personal protective equipment and other needed supplies to be better positioned for
potential surges. Additionally, the Health System continues to evaluate the impact of new or
changes to laws and regulations at the federal, state, and local levels and the potential effect on
Health System staffing and operations.. At, this time, the Health System remains unable to
accurately predict the full extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will affect the Health System's
future fin^ces and operations.

4. Net Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

The Health System reports net patient service revenue at amounts that reflect the consideration to
which it expects to be entitled In exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payers (Including managed care payers arid government prbgrarris), and'
others; and they include variable^ consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits; reviews, and investigations. GeneraHy, the Health System bills'patients and
third-party payers several days after the services were performed or shortly after discharge.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied under contracts by providing
healthcare services to patients.

The Health System determines performance obligations based on the nature of the servKes
provided. • Revenues for performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized based on
actual charges incurred in relation to total expected charges as this method provides a reasonable
estimate of the transfer of services oyer the term of performance obligations based on Inputs
needed to satisfy the obligations. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to

-  patients receiving inpatient acute care services. For inpatient services, performance obligations
are measured from admission to the point when there are no further services required for the
patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services and physician services,
performance obligations are recognized at a point in time when the services are provided and no
further patient services are deemed necessary.

Generally, the Heatth System's'patient service performance obligations relate to contracts with a
duration of less than one .year, therefore the Health Systerh has elected to appty the optional
exemption provided in ASC 606-10-50-14a and," therefore, we are not required to disclose the
aggregate amount.of the transaction.price allocated.to performance obligations that are unsatisHed
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June 30, 2023 and 2022

or partially unsatisfied at the end of the re^rting period. This generally refers to inpatient services
at the end of the reporting'period. The performance obligations for these contracts-are generaiiy
completed .when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.

Established charges represent gross charges. They ere not the same as actual pricing, and they
generally do not reflect what a hospital Is ultimately entitled to for services it provides. Therefore,
they are not displayed in the Health System's consolidated statements of operations and changes
In net assets. ^

Hospitals-are paid amounts negotiated with insurance companies or set by govemment ehtities,
which are typically less than established or standard.charges. Gross charges are used to calculate
Medicare outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed'care
contracts. Gross charges are what hospitals charge all patients prior to the application of
contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions.

Explicit Pricing Concessions
Revenues for the Health System under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid
programs are based on prospectively deterrniried rates per discharge or visit, reasonable
(allowable) cost, or prospective rates per.episodic period, depending on the type of provider.

•  Ir^atlent acute care services provided to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid using the
prospective payment system (PPS) to determine rates-per-discharge. These rates vary
according to a patient classification system (DRG), based on diagnostic, clinical, and other
factors. In addition, inpatient capital costs (depreciation and interest) are reimbursed by
Medicare on the basis of a prospectively deterinined rate per discharge. Medicare

, . outpatient services ere paid on a prospective payment system, based on a pre-determined
amount for each outpatient procedure (ARC), subject to various mandated modifications.
Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under these programs, such as Indirect
medical education, direct graduate medical education, disproportionate share hospital,
transplant services, and bad debt reimbursement are based on the hospital's cost reports
and are estiriiated using historical trends and current factors. The Health System's
payments for inpatient senrices rendered to NH and VT Medicaid beneHciaries are based on
PPS, while outpatient services are reimbursed on a retrospective cost basis, or fee
schedules, for NH'beneficiaries. VT outpatient beneficiaries are paid on a prospective basis
per outpatient procedure.

•  Inpatient acute, swing, and outpatient services furnished by Crillcal Access Hospitals (CAN)
are reimbursed by Medicare at 101% of reasonable costs, subject to 2% sequestration,
excluding ambulance services and Inpatient hospice care. -

Providers of home health se^ces to patients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are
paid on a prospective basis,' with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment Is
based on the scoring"attributed to the acuity level of the patient at a rate determined by
federal guidelines.
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Hospice services to patients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per diem
basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the aggregate annual Medicare
reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate.

The Health System's cost-based services to Medicare and Medicaid are reimbursed during
the year, based on varying interim paynrient methodologies. Final settlement is determined
after the submission of an annual cost report and subject to audit of this.report by Medicare

. and Medicaid auditors, as well as administrative and-judicial review, because the laws,
regulations, and rule interpretations governing Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement are
complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could change over time by material
amounts.

•  Revenues under Managed Care Plans (MCPs) consist primarily of. payment terms involving
mutually agreed upon rates per diagnosis, discounted fee-for-service rates, or similar
contractual arrangements. These revenues are also subject to review and possible audit.
The MCPs are 'biiled for patient services on an individual patient basis. An individual
patient's bill is subject to adjustments, in accordance with contractual terms.in place with the
MCPs following their review arid adjudication of each bill.

The Health System is not aware of any claims, disputes, or unsettled matters with any payer, that
would materially affect its revenues, for which it has not adequately provided in the accompanying
Health System's consolidated financial statements. .

The Health System provides charity care.to patients who are unable to pay for healthcare services
they receive as determined by financial conditions. Patients who qualify receive partial or full
adjustments to charges for services rendered. The Health System's policy is to treat amounts
qualified as charity care as explicit price concessions and, as such, are hot reported in net patient
service revenue.

Vermont imposes a provider tax on home health agencies in the amount of 4.25% of Vermont
annual net patient revenue. In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, home health provider taxes paid were
$579,000 and $627,000, respectively.

Implicit Price Concessions
Generally, patients v^io are covered by third-party payer contracts are .responsible for related co-.
pays, co-insurance, and deductibles, which vary depending on the contractual obligations of
patients. The Health System'also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those'patients
a discount from standard charges.- The Health System estimates the transaction price for patients
with co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles, and for those who are uninsured, based on historical
collection experience and current market conditions. The discount offered to uninsured patients
reduces the transaction price at the time of billing. The uninsured and patient responsible accounts,
net of discounts recorded, are further reduced through implicit price concessions based on
historical collection trends for similar accounts and other known factors that impact the estimation
process. Subsequent changes to the estimate of transaction, price are generally recorded as
adjustments to net patient services revenue in the period.of change.

The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the Health System expeds to collect based on
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collection history with similar patients. Mhough outcomes vary, the Heialth System's policy is to
attempt to collect arrujunts due from patients, including co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles due
from insurance at the time of service while complying with all federal and state statutes and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act
(EMTALA). Through various systems and processes the Health System estimates Medicare and
Medlcaid net patient service revenue and cost report settlements and accrues final expected
settlements. For filed cost reports, the accrual is recorded based on those filings, subsequent-
activity. and on historical trends and other relevant evidence. For periods in which a cost report is
yet to be filed, accruals are based on estimates of what Is expected to be reported, and any trends
and relevant evidence. Cost reports generally must be filed within Five months'of the closing
period.

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the'determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely amount. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement v^th the payer,
correspondence from the payer, and historical settlement activity. Including assessments to ensure
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated vyith the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved.
Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known, or as years
are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews or investigations.

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. additional Increases in revenue of $24,098,000 and
$19,743,000, respectively, were recognized, due to changes in estimates of implicit price
concessions for performance obligations satisfied in prior years.

Net operating revenues consist primarily of patient service revenues, principally for patients
covert by Medicare. Medlcaid. rnanaged care and other health plans, as well as patients covered
under the Health System's uninsured discount and charity care programs.
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TTie table below shows the Health System's sources of total operating revenue and other support
presented at the net transaction price for the years ended June 30.2023 and 2022.

2023

Subtotal

Other revenue

Provider Relief Funds

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH ■ Total

Hospital
Medi^re $
Medicaid

Convnerdal

' Self-pay

587,377

168,410

862,502
11.307

3  106,370

16,824

88,492
802

%  693,747

187,234

950,994
12,109

Subtotal 1,629,596 214,488 1,844.084

Professional 504,370 ' 35,578. '  539,948

Subtotal' 2:133,988 250,066 ' '  2.384,032

Home based care 13,125

Subtotal 2,397,157

Other revenue

.  Provider Relief Funds

•
706.242

1.822

Total operating revenue and other support

2022

$  3,105,221

(in dwusands ofdollars) ■ PPS CAH Total

Hospital
Medicare I

Medicaid

Commerdal

Self-pay

642,292

158,121
809,736

7,027

$  99,976
15,739
81,395

902

$  642.268
173,860
891,131

7,929

Subtotal 1.517,176 198,012 1,715,188

Professional 470,559 ■ 40,186 510.745

Subtotal 1,987,735 238,198 • 2,225,933

Honw based care 17,304

Total operating revenue and other 8iq}port

- 2.243.237

528,762

98.829

$  2,870,828

A:..
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June 30, 2023 and 2022

Medlcald Enhancement tax & Disproportionate Share Hospital
On May 22, 2018, the State of New Hampshire and ali New Hampshire hospKais (Hospitals)
agreed to resoive disputed issues and enter into a seven-year agreement to stabilize
Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSN) payments, with provisions for alternative payments In the
event of legislative changes to the DSH program. Under the agreement, the State committed to
make, DSH payments to the Hospitals in an amount no less than of the Medicaid
Enhancement Tax (MET) proceeds collected in each fiscal year, in addition to providing for directed
payments or increased rates for Hospitals In an amount equal to 5% of MET process collected
from state fiscal year (SPY) 2021 through SPY 2024. The agreement prioritizes DSH payments to
critical access hospitals in an amount equal to 75% of allowable uhcompensated care (UCC), with
the remainder distributed to Hospitals without critical access designation in proportion to their
allowable UCC amounts.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System received DSH payments of
approxin^ately, $85,853,000 and $77,488,000, respectively. DSH payments are subject to audit
and, therefore, for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, the Health System recognized as
revenue DSH receipts of approximately $83,582,000 and approximately $75,988,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded $85,715,000 and
$82,725,000, respectively, of State of NH MET and State of VT provider taxes.. The taxes are
calculated at 5.4% for NH and 6.0% for VT of certain patient service revenues. The Provider.taxes
are included in operating expenses In the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in
Net Assets.

Accounts Receivable

The following table categorizes payors into four groups based on their respective percentages of
patient accounts receivable as of June 30,2023 and 2022:

Medicare

Medicaid

Commercial

Self Pay

Total

2023 2022

36% 38%

12% 12%

41% 38%

11% 12%

100% 100%
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6. Investments

The composition of Investments at June 30.2023 and 2022 Is set forth In'the following table:

(in thousands of dollars)

Asssts limited as to use

Internally designated by board

2023 2022

Cash and short-term investments $  6:988 $  31,130

U.S. government security 80,595 126,222
Domestic co^rate debt sacurttles 271.321 234,490

GiolMl debt securities 37,092 •• 66,610

Domestic equities 205,200 198,742

International equities 75,199 63,634

Emerging markets equities 37.080 34,636

Glob^ equities 77.479 73,035

Real Estate Investment Trust 2 2

Private equity funds 141,608 '  138,605
Hedge funds 44,558 55,069

Subtotal ̂ 977,322 1.024,175

Investments held by captive Insurance companies (Note 12)
U.S. government securities 30,366 27,242

Domestic corporate debt securities 13.918 7,902

Global debt securities 13,180 7,595

Domestic equities 13,994 10,091
Intematiohal equities 5,372 4,692

SulJtotal 76,830 57,522

Held by trustee under indenture agreement (Note 10)
Cash and short-term Investments 17,310 99,397

Total assets limlted.es to use 1.071,462 1,181,094

Other Inveetmente for restricted activities

Cash and short-term investments 21,243 8,463

U.S. government securities 27,323 27.600

Domestic corporate debt securities 45,864 37,343
Global debt securities 5.282 10,059

Domestic equities 30,754 34.142

International equities 11,054 10,698

Emerging markets equities 5,187 5,587

Global equities 10,281 11,153

Real Estate Investment Trust' .18 19

Private equity funds 18,816 21,166

Hedge funds 6,368 8,852

Other 34 34

Total other investments for restricted activities 182.224 175,116

Total Investments $ 1,253,686 $ 1,356,210
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Investments are accounted for using either the fair value method or equity method of accounting,
as appropriate on a case-by-case basis. The fair value method is used for all debt.securities and
equity securities that are traded on active markets and are valued at prices that are readily
available in those markets. The equity method is used when investments are made in
pooled/commingled investment funds that represent investments where shares or units are owned
of pooled funds rather than the undertying securities in that fund. These pooled/cohrimingled funds
make underlying investments in securities from the asset classes listed at^ve. .

The following tables summarize investments by the accountihg method utilized as of June 30. 2023
and 2022. Accounting standards require disclosure of additional information for those securities
accounted for using the fair value method, as shown in Note 7.

2023

(in thousands of dollars) . Fair Value PflMllY Total

Cash and short-term investments $ 45,541 $ - $ 45,541

U.S. government securities 138,284 • 138,284

Domestic corporate debt securities 122,320 208,783 331,103

Global debt securities 55,554 - 55,554

Domestic equities 204,541 45.407 249.948

International equities 57,221 34,404 91,625

Emerging markets equities 267 42,000 42,267

Global equities - 87,760 87:760

Real Estate Investment Trust 20 - 20

Private equity funds 160,624 160,624

Hedge funds 456 50,470 50,926

Other 34 - 34

Total Investments $ 624,238 $ 629.448 $ 1,253,686

2022

(In thousands of dollars) Fair Value Eoultv
*

Total

Cash and short-term investments $ 138,930 % - % ^'138.990
U.S. government securities 181,064 - 181,064

Domestic corporate debt securities 118,642 161,093 279,735

Global debt securities 57,558 ^ 28.706 86,264

Domestic equities 191,767 51,208 242,975

International equities 47,631 31.393 79,024

Emerging markets equities 298 39,926 40,224

Global equities • 84,187 84,187

Real Estate investment Trust 21 • 21

Private equity funds - 159,771 159,771

Hedge funds 443 63,478 63,921

Other 34 - 34

Total investments $ 736.448 $ 619,762 $ 1,356,210
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For the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, investrnent income (loss) Is reflected In the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as other
operating revenue of approximately $905,000 and $657,000, respectively, and as non-operating
gains (losses) of approximatety $58,119,000 and ($78,744,000), respectively.

Private equity limited partnership shares are not eligitile for redemption from the fund or general
partner. It is the intent of the Health System to hold these investments until the fund has fully
distributed all proceeds to the limited partners and the term of the partnership agreements expire.
Under the terms-of these agreements, the Health System has committed to contribute a specified
level of capital over a defined period of time. Through June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health Systerh
has outstandir^ commitments of $79,753:000 and $75,070,000, respectively.

6. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment consists of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

{in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Land $  40,749 $ 40,749

Construction in progress 43,117 163,145

Land improvements 52,054 44,834

Buildings and improvements 1,166,776 984,743

Equipment 1,101,410 1,042.582

Subtotal property, plant, and equipment 2,404,106 2,276,053;

Less accumulated depreciation 1,592,484 .  1,511,213

Total property, plant, and equipmenL net $  811,622 %  764,840

As of June 30. 2023, :construction In progress primarily consists of four projects; the Family and
Community Care Clinic located In Keene, NH, the renovation of inpatient wings as part of the
Pavilion backfill project located in Lebanon, NH, and two lab software upgrades to the Lebanon
campus. The estimated cost to complete the construction In progress Is approximately $10,700,000.

the construction in progress as of June 30, 2022, included the in-patient tower, the ernergency
department (ED) expansion and the central pharmacy/supply chain facility renovation. All were
placed in service during the year ended June 30,2023.

Capitalized interest of $59,000 and $6,853,000 is included in construction in prepress'as of June 30,
2023 and'2022, respectively.

Depreciation expense included in operating activities was $87,029,000 and $83,661,000 for 2023 and
2022, respectively. '
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7. Fair Value Measurements

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies for assets end liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Cash and Short'Term Investments

Consists of money market funds and are valued at net asset value (NAV) reported by the financial
Institution and cash which will be used for future investment opportunities.

Domestic, Emerging Markets and International Equities
Consists of actively traded equlty'securities and mutual funds which are valued at the closing price
reported on an active market on which the individual securities are traded (Level 1 measurements).

U.S. Government Securities, Domestic Corporate and Global Debt Securities
Consists of U.S. government securiti8;s, domestic corporate and global debt securities, mutual
funds and pooled/commingled .funds that invest in U.S. govemmerit securities, domestic corporate
and global debt securities. Securities are valued based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes
where available (Level 1 measurement). If quoted maricet prices are not available, fair values are
based on quoted market prices of comparable Instrum^ts or. if necessary, matrix pricing from a
third party pricing vendor to determine fair value (Level 2 measurements). Matrix prices are based
on quoted prices for securities with similar coupons, ratings and maturities, rather than on specific
bids and offers for a designated security. Investments In mutual funds are measured based on the
quoted NAV as of the close of business in the respective active market (Level 1 measurements).
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Investments are classified In their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following tables set. forth the consolidated financial assets and
liabilities that were accouiited for at fair value on a recurring basis as of.June 30,2023 and 2022:

2023

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets

l-evel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments *

Cash and short term investments $ d5,541 $ -  $ -  $ 45.541

U.S. govemment securities 138,284 138.284

Domestic corporate debt securities 41.351 80,969 '122,320

Global debt securities 24,429 31,125 55.554

Domestic equities 200,252 4,289 204.541

International equities 57,221 - 57,221

Emerging market equities 267 - 267

Real estate investment trust 20 - 20

Hedge funds 456 • 456

Other - 34 .  ■ 34

Total feir value Investments 507.821 116,417 ^ ■ 624,238

Deferred compensation plan assets -

Cash and short-term Investments 11,893 11,893

U.S. government securities 40 40

Domestic corporate debt securities 10,453 10,453

Global debt securities 16 16

Domestic equties .41,841 41.841

International equities 5,874 5,874

Emerging market equities 21 21

Real estate 14 14

Multi strategy fund 62,689 62.689

Total deferred compensation
plan assets 132,841 132.841

Benefidal interest in trusts . 14,875 - 14,875

Total assets $ 640,662 $ 116,417 $ 14,875 $ 771,954
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2022

(In thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Investments

Cash and short term Investments $  138,990 $ -  $ -  $ 138.990
U.S. government securities 18i;064 . ̂ .  - 181,064

Domestic corporate debt securities 1i768 116,874 118,642
Global debt securities 24.745 32,813 57,556
Domestic equities 187;063 4.704 191,767
Intemational equities 47.631 - 47.631
Emerging mar1(et equities 298 • 298

Real estate investment'trust 21 - 21

Hedge funds 443 - 443

Other - 34 34

Total fciir value investments 582,023 154.425 736,448

Deferred compensation plan assets
Cash and short-term Investments 8.053 • 6,053
U.S. government securities 36 - . 36

Domestic corporate debt securities 10.874 - 10,874
Global debt securities 964 - - 964

Domestic equities 33,742 - - 33,742
Intemational equKies 4,911 - - 4,911
Emerging market equities 19 - - 19

Real estate -  12 - - 12

Multi strategy fund 57.964 • - 57,964

Total deferred compensation
plan assets 116,575 • - .116,575

Beneficial interest in trusts . 16.051 16.051

Total assets S  696,598 S 154,425 % 16,051 $ 869,074 .

There were nojransfers Into or out of Level 1.2, or 3 measurements due to changes In valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022.

There were ho liquidations of Level 3 measurerhents during the years ended June 30. 2023 and
2022!
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8. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30. 2023 and
2022:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Investments held In perpetuity $- 88,926 $  -84,117.
Healthcare services 38,596 36,123

Research 28,176 27,477

Health education 27.374 27,164

Charity care 12,486 12,155

Other 10,825 .  8,639

Purchase of equipment 3,950 3,828

Total net assets with donor restrictions $  210,333 $  199,503

9. Board Designated and Endowment Funds

Net assets jnclude funds established for a variety of purposes.including both donor-restricted
endovmient funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees'^to function as endowments. Net
assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to
function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

The Health System has interpreted the NH and VT Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Acts (UPMIFA or Act) for donor-restricted endowment funds as requiring the preservation of
the original value of gifts, as of the gift datOi to donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit
donor stipulations to the contrary. The Health System's net assets with donor restrictions, which
are to be held in perpetuity, consist of (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to be held in perpetuity, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund, if any.
Collectively these amounts are referred to as the historic dollar value of the fund.

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function-
as endowments, the income from certain donor-restricted endowment funds, and any accumulated'
Investment return thereon, which pursuant to donor intent may be expended based on trustee or
management'deslgnation. Net assets with donor restrictions that are temporary in nature, either
restricted by time or purpose, include funds appropriated for expenditure pursuant to endowment
and investment spending policies, certain expendable endowment gifts from donors, and any
retained income and appreciation on donor-restricted endowmerit funds, which are restricted by the
donor to a spedftc purpose or by law. When the. restrictions on these funds have been met. the
funds are reclasstfied to net assets without donor restrictions.

In accordance with the Act, the Health System considers the following factors in--making a
determination-to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: the' duration and
preservation of the fund; the pur^ses of the donor-restricted endowment fund; general economic
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conditions: the possible effect of inflation and deflation; the expected total return from Income wd
the appr^lation of Investments; other resources available; and Investment policies.

The Health System has endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding for programs supported by Its endowment while ensuring that the
purchasing power does not decline over time. The Health System targets a diversified asset
allocation that places emphasis on investments in domestic and International equities, fixed
income, private equity, and hedge fund strategies to achieve Its long-term return objectives within
prudent risk constraints. The Health System's Investment Committee reviews the pojicy portfolio
asset allocations, exposures, and risk profile on an ongoing basis.

The Health System, as a policy, may appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an
endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and
duration for which the endowment is established, subject to donor intent expressed In the gift
instrument and the standard of prudence prescribed by the Act.

From time to tirhe, the fair value of assets associated with indivlduardonor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below their original contributed value. Such market losses were not material as of
June 30.2023 and 2022.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund consists of the following at June 30, 2023 and
2022;

(in thousands of,dollars)

2023

Without With

Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions

Donor-restricted endowment funds $

Board-designated endowment funds ^
Total endowed net assets $

28,666

Total

111,843 $ 111,843

26,666

26.666 $ 111,643- $ 140,531.

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

2022

Without With

Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

$  107,590

41,344

$  41.344 $ 107,590 $ 148,934

107,590
41,344
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30,2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023

Without With

Donor Donor

(in thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Beginning of year balances $  41,344 $ ' 107,590 1 148,934
Net investment return 212 1,305 1,517
Contributions - 3,201 3,201
Transfers (12,743) 2,561 (10,182)
Release of appropriated funds (125) (2,814) (2,939)

End of year balances $  28,688 $ 111,843 $ 140,531

End of year balances 111,843
Beneficial interest in pefpetual trusts 13,954

Net assets with 8onor restrictions '  . $ 125.797

2022

Without With

Donor Donor

(In thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Beginning of year balances $  41,728 $ 108,213 $ 149,941
Net investment retum (1,065) (3,998) (5,063)
Contributions - 12,950 12,950
Transfers 795 (7.105) (6,310)
Release of appropriated funds (114) (2.470) (2.584)

End of year balances $  41.344 $ 107,590. $ 148,934

End of year balances
Beneficial Intere^ In perpetual trusts

Net assets with donor restrictions

107,590

U.903

122,493

.Vt... rAyrvj vfT--
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83,355 $

10. Long-Term Debt

A summary of obligated group debt at June 30.2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023

Variable rate Issues

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities

Authority (NHHEFA) Revenue Bonds
Senes 2018A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2037 (1)

Fixed rate Issues

New Hampshire'Health and Education Facilities

Authority Ftevenue ̂ ds
Series 20188, prindpal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2048 (1)
Series 2020A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2059 (2)
Series 2017A. principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2040 (3)
Series 20178, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2031 (3)
Series 2019A, principal maturing In varying annual
amounts, through August 2043 (4)

' Series 2018C, principal maturing In varying annual
amounts, through August 2030 (5)
Series 2012, principal maturing In varying annual
amounts, through July 2039 (6)
Series 2014B, prindpal maturing In varying annual
amounts, through August 2033 (7)
Series 20168, prindpal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2045 (8)
Series 2014A, prindpal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2022 (7)

Note payable
Note payable to a financial institution due In monthly interest
only payments through May 2035 (9)

Total obligated group debt

303,102

$  1,037,932

2022

83,355

303,102

125,000 125,000

122,435 122,435

109,800 109,800

99,165 99,165

22,860 23,950

21,715 22,605

14,530 14,530

10,970 10,970

.• 4,810

125.000 125.000

 $ 1,044,722

■  .'M
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A isummary of long-term debt at June 30.2023 and 2022 Is as follows:

(In thousands of dollars)

Other

Mortgage note payable to the US Oept of Agriculture;
monthly payments of $10,892 Include Interest of 2.375%
through November 2046
Note payable to a financial institution with entire
principal due June 2034; collateralized by land
and building. The note payable is Interest free
Note payable to a financial institution payable in interest free
monthly installments through December 2024;
coUateralized by associated equipment

Total nonobfigated group debt

Total obligated gro^> debt

Total long-term debt

Add: Original issue premium and discounts, net

Less: Current portion
Debt issuance costs, net

Total long-term debt, net

2023

2,343

232

32

2022

2,417

247

55

2.719

1,044.722

2,607

1,037,932

■  1,040,539

80,112

15,236

6,453

y  1,098,962 $ 1,117,288

1,047,441 ,

83,249

6,596

6,806

Aggregate annual principal payments for the next five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as
follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2023

2024 $ 15,236

2025 19,363
2026 20,209 .

2027 20.915'
2028 21,574

Thereafter 943,242

Total

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Obligated Group (DHOG) Debt

MHMH established the DHOG for the purpose of issuing bonds financed through NHHEFA or the
'Authority'. The members of the obligated group at June 30. 2023 consist of D-HH, MHMH, OHC,
NLH, MAHHC, and APD. The members of the obligated group at June 30. 2022 consisted of D-HH.
MHMH, DHC, Cheshire, NLH, MAHHC, and APD. D-HH Is designated as the obligated group
agent.

$  1.040,539
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Effective June 26, 2023, after approval from the D-HH Board of Trustees, Cheshire withdrew from
the DHOO. The Cheshire Series 2012 bonds and the related obligated group note securing the
Cheshire bonds, win remain outstanding and therefore constitute a continuing joint and several
obligation of the DHOG.

Revenue bonds, issued by members of the DHOG, are administered through notes registered in
the name of the Bond Trustee and in accordance with the terms of a Master Trust Indenture.' The

Master Trust Indenture contains provisions permitting the addition, withdrawal, or consolidation of
members of the DHOG under certain.conditions. The notes constitute a joint and several obligation
of the members of the DHOG (and any other future members of the DHOG) and are equally and
ratably coltaterallzed by a pledge of the members' gross receipts. The DHOG is also subject to
certaih'annual .covenants under the Master Trust Indenture, the most restrictive is the Annual Debt'
Service Coverage Ratio (l.lOx).

(1) Series 2018A and Series 20188 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG Issued NHHEFA. Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A and Series 2018B, In February
2018. The Series 2018A revenue bonds mature in variable arnounts through 2037 and were
used primarily to refund a portion of Series 2015A and Series 2016A revenue bonds. The
Series 20188 revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2046, and were used

. primarily to refund a portion of Series 2015A and Series 2016A revenue bonds, revolving line of
credit, Series 2012 bank loan, and the Series 201SA and Series 2016A swap terminations. The
Interest on the Series 2018A revenue bonds is variable, with a current interest rate of 5.00%.
The interest on the Series 20188 revenue bonds is fixed, with an interest rate of 4.18%. and
matures in variable amounts through 2048. ,

(2) Series 2020A Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A, in February 2020. The Series
2020A revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2059 and the proceeds are being
used primarily to fund the construction of a 212,000 square foot Inpatient pavilion in Lebanon.
NH, as well as various equipment. The interest on the Series 2020A revenue bonds Is fixed,
with an interest rate of 5.00%.

(3) Series 2017A and Series 2017B Revenue Bonds

The DHOO issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 20178, in December
2017. The Series 2017A revenue bonds mature In variable amounts through 2040 and were
used primarily to refund Series 2009 and Series 2010 revenue bonds. The Series 20178
revenue bonds mature In variable amounts through 2031 and were used to refund Series
2012A and Series 20128 revenue bonds. The Interest on the Series 2017A revenue bonds is

fixed, with an interest rate of 5.00%. The interest on the Series 20178 revenue bonds is fixed,
with an Interest rate of 2.54%.

(4) Series 2019A Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, in October 2019. The Series
2019A revenue bonds mature.ln variable amounts through 2043 and were used .primarily to

,  s - SI ' '
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fund the construction of a 91,000 square foot expansion of facilities in Manchester, NH. to
Include an Ambulatory Surgical Center as well as various equiprhe'nt.' The. interest on the
Series 2019A revenue bonds is fixed,; with an Interest rate of 4.00%.

(5) Series 20180 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 20180, in August 2018. The Series 2018C
revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2030 and were used primarily to refinance
the' Series 2010 revenue bonds. The interest onithe Series is fixed, with an interest rate of
3.22%.

(6) Series 2012 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, in November 2012. The Series
2012 revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2039 and were used to refund 1998
and 2009 Series revenue bonds, finance the settlement cost of the interest rate swap, and
finance the purchase of certain equipment and renovations. The revenue l:>onds have fixed
interest coupon rates ranging frorri 2.0% to 5.0% (a net interisst cost of 3.96%).

(7) Series 2014A and Series 2014B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 20i4A and Series 20148, In August 2014.
The Series 2014ATevenue bonds mature In 2022. The Series 2014B revenue bonds mature at
various dates through 2033.- The proceeds from the Series 2014A and 2014B, revenue bonds
were used partially to refund the Series 2009 revenue bonds and to cover cost of Issuance.
Interest on the 2014A revenue bonds is fixed, with an Interest rate of 2.63%. Interest on the
Series 2014B revenue bonds Is fixed, with an interest rate of 4.00%.

(8) Series 2016B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Series 2016B, in July 2016, through a private
placement with a financial Institution. The Series 20168 revenue bonds mature at various
dates through 2045 and were used to finance certain 2016 projects. The Series 2016B is fixed,
with an Interest rate of 1.78%.

(9) Note payable to financial Institution

The DHOG issued a note payable to TD Bank in May 2020. Issued in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic, the proceeds from the note will be used to fund woridng capital, as needs require.
The note matures at various dates through 2035 and is fixed, with ah interest rate of 2.56%. -

Outstanding joint arid several indebtedness of the DHOG at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is
$1,037,932,000 and $1,044,722,000. respectively.

The Health System Indenture agreements require establishment and maintenance of debt service
reserves.and other trustee held funds. Trustee held funds of $17,310,000 and $99,397,000 at June
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively,-are classified as assets limited as to use in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Note 5). In addition, debt service reserves of approximately $46,000
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and $6,674,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively, are classified as other cumnt assets in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The debt service reserves are mainly comprised
of escrowed construction funds at June 30,2023 and 2022.

For the years ended June 30, 2023 arxi 2022 interest expense on the Health System's long<term
debt is reflected In the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations ar^d Changes in Net
Assets as operating expense of approximately $34,515,000 and $32,113,000, respectively, and
other nonoperating losses of $3,782,000 and $3,782,000, respectively, net of amounts capitalized..

/j >

11. Employee Benefits

Eligible employees of the Health System are covered under n^Hous defined benefit and/or defined
contribution plans. In addition, certain members provide postretirement medical and life Insurance
benefit plans to certain active and former employees who meet eligibility requirements. The
postretirement medical and life plans are not funded.

The Health System's defin^ ̂benefit plans have been frozen and, therefore, there are no remaining
participants earning benefits in any of the Health System's defin^ benefit plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

Net periodic pension expense included in employee benefits expense, In the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets, is comprised of the following components
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022;

(in thousands of doHars) 2023 2022

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 45,924 $ 36,722
Expected retum on plan assets (46,071) (65,917)
Net loss amortization 15,820 13,139

Total net periodic pension expense $ 15.673 $ (16,056)

The following assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension expense as of June 30,
2023 and 2022;

2023 2022

Discount rates 4.40%-5.10% 3.30%

Rate of increase in compensation N/A N/A
Expected long-term rates of return on plan assets 4.40% • 7.25% 7.50%
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The following table eets fbrth the funded status and amounts recognized'ln the Health-System's
consolidated financial statements for the defined benefit pension plans at June 30r2023 and 202

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Change In benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $  936,886 $  1,140,221
Interest cost 45,924 36,722

Benefits paid (58;580) ^  (54,864)
Actuarial loss (59,480) ■  (183,193)

Benefit obligation; end of year -  866,750 938,886

Change In plan assets
Fair value of plan assets.-.beginning of year 747,095 ■  958,864

Actual return on plan assets 1,229 (169,405)
Benefits paid (58,580) (54,864)
Employer contributions ,  - 12,500

Fair value of plan assets, end of year ' 689,744 747,095

Funded status of the plans (177,008) (191,791)

Less: Current portion of llability-for pension .  .- ■

Long-term portion of llabili^.for pension. (177,006) .  (191,791)

LiabilKy for pension $  (177,006) $  (191.791)

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the liability for pension is included in the liability'for pension and
other postretlremeht plan benefits in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension expense and included in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions include $469,486,000 and $519,946,000 of net .actuarial loss as of'
June 30.2023 and 2022, respectively. .

The amounts amortized from'net assets without donor reistrictions into net periodic pension
expense in flscal year 2023 for net actuarial losses was $15,820,000.

The following table sets , forth the assumptions used to determine the accumulated benefit
obligation at June 30,2023 and 2022;

Discount rates

Rate of increase in compensation

2023

4.85 - 5.90%

N/A

2022

4.40-5.10%

N/A-

The primary Investment objecfive for the defined benefit plans' assets is to support the pension
liabilities of the pension plan's fof employees of the Health System, by providing long-term capital
appreciation and by also using a Liability Driven Investing ;CLDi') strategy to . partially hedge the
impact fluctuating interest rates have on the value^of the pension plan's liabilities. As of June 30,

f'.
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2023, it 1$ expected that the LOI strategy will hedge approximately 70% of the interest rate risk
associated with pension (iabiilties. As of June 30, 2022, the expected LDI hedge was
approximately 70%. To achieve the appreciation and hedging objectives, the pension pians utilize
a diversified structure of asset classes. The asset classes are designed to achieve stated
performance objectives, measured on a total return basis which Includes ir^me plus realized and
unrealized gains and losses.

The range of target allocation percentages and the target allocations for the various investments
are as follows:

Range of
Target Target

Allocations Allocations

Cash and short-term investments 0-5% 3%

U.S. government securities 0-10 5

Domestic debt securities 20-58 42

Global debt securities 6-28 4

Domestic equities 5-35 17

International equities 5-15 7

Emerging market equities 3-13 4

Global Equities 0-10 6

Real estate investment trust funds 0-5 1

Private equity funds' 0-5 0

Hedge funds 5-18 ■  11

To the extent an asset class falls outside of its target range on a quarterly basis, the Health System
shall determine appropriate steps, as it di^ms necessary, to rebalance the asset class.

The Boards of Trustees of the Health System, as plan sponsors, oversee the design, structure, and
prudent professional management of the Health System's pension plans' assets, in accordance
with Board approved investment policies, roles, responsibilities, and authoritiesand more
specifically the following:

•  Establishing and modifying asset class targets with Board approved policy ranges.

•  Approving the asset class rebalancing procedures,

•  Hiring and terminating investment managers, and

•  Monitoring performance of the investment managers, custodians and investment consultants.

The hierarchy and inputs to valuation techniques to measure fair value of the Plans' assets are the
same as outlined in Note 7. In addition, the estimation of fair value of investments in private equity
and hedge funds for which the underlying securities dp not have a readily determinabie value is
made using the NAV per share or its* equivalent as a practical expedient. The Health System's
pension plans own Interests in both private equity and hedge funds rather than in securities

Vrr .•* -v'-'
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underlying each fund and, therefore, the Health System generally considers such investments as
Level 3, even though the underlying securities may not be difficult to value Or may be readily
marketable.

The following table sets forth the Health System's pension plans' investments that were account^
for at fair value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023

Jbi thousands otdoBarii

Invcstmtnts

Cash end short-term investments

U.S. government securities
Domestic debt securltiet

Global debt securities

Domestic equities
Intemstional equilies
Emerging martcel equities
Global equities
Private equity funds
Her^funds

Total Investments

fin (housends of dotars)

Investments

Cash and ̂ brt-term investments

U.S. government securities
OcmesUc debt securities

Global debt securities

Domestic equities
International equities
Emerging mart^t equilies
Glotel equities
Prhmte equity funds
Hedge funds

Total Investments

Redemption • Days'

LeveLI Level 2 Lml? ToUl orUauWatlon No^e

$ $  10.667 $ $  10,667
i

Daiy • T

22,919 . 22i919 Daily-Monthly 1-15

96;0M 250.964 346,968 Daily-Monthly 1-15

. - - Daily-Monthly 1-15

89.391 .26.849 116,240 Daily-Monlhty 1-10

18,912 22,361 41,273 Dally-Monthly 1-11

. 26.743 28.743 DailH^onthly 1-17

. 5Z461 52.461 Da9y-Monthly 1-17

, . 13 ■  13 Sea Note 5 See Note 5
. - 72,460 72.460 Quarterty-Annual 60-96

. $ 227.226 5390.045 $ 72,473 56B9;744

,

2022

Redemption Days'

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totel or Liouklitlon Notice

S S  16.030 % %  16,030 Daly 1

124,686 . 124,686 DaDy-Monlhly 1-15

17,530 226,107 243,637 , Daly-Monthly 1-15

24.136 24.136 Daly-Monthly 1-15

104,070 31.324 135.394 Daly-Monthly 1-10

15,558 20,406 35,964 Oaly-Monthly 1-11

. 25,487 25,487 Daily-Monthly 1-17.

. 54,787 54.787 Daily-Monthly 1-17

. . 14 14 See Notes See Note 5

. - 86,960 86.960 Quarterly-Annual 60-96

% 261,844 % 398,277 S 85,974 % 747,095

- f ' < A- ^
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The following tables present additional information about the changes in Level 3 assets measured
at fair value for the years ended June 30, 2023 arid 2022;

2023

Private

(in thousands ofdoilars) Hedae Funds Edultv Funds Total

Beginning of year balances $  66,960 $  14 $ 86,974
Sales (13,013) - (13.013)
Net unrealized losses (1.487) (1) (1.488)

End of year balances $  72,460 $  13 $ 72.473

2022

Private

(in thousands ofdoilars) Hodae Funds Eaultv Funds Total

Beginning of year balances $  15,512 $  15 $ 15,527

Purchases 81.400 - 81,400

Sales (2.152) - (2.152)

Net unrealized losses (7,800) (1) (7.801)

End of year balances $  86,960 $  14 $ 86,974

The total aggregate net unrealized (losses) gains included In the fair value of the Level 3
investments as of June 30. 2023 and 2022 were approximately ($12,443,000) and ($543,000).'
respectively. Hedge funds totaling $13,013,000 and $2,152,000 were liquidated in 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

There were no transfers Into or out of Level 1, 2, or 3 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June'30, 2023 and 2022.

*  4 -r
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The weighted average asset allocation, by asset category, for thd Health System's pension piah^'is
as follows at June 30, 2023 and 2022: > . ^

2023 2022

Cash and short-term investments 3% 2%

U.S. government securities 5 17

Domestic debt securities 42 33

Global debt securities 4 3

Domestic equities 17 -  18

international equities 7 5

Emerging market equities 4- 3

Global equities 6 '7 •
Hedge funds 12 12

Total 100% 100%

The expected long4errh rate of return on plan assets is reviewed annually, taking into consideration
the asset allocation, historical return8;0n the types of assets held, .and the current economic
environment. Based on these factors;iit te expected that the'pension assets will earn an average of
7.25% per annum.

The Health System is expected to contribute approximately $15,688,000 to the Plans in 2024
however actu^ contributions may vary from expected amounts.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected
to be paid for the years ending June 30 and thereafter

On thousands of dollars)

2024 122,722

2025 58,784..

2026 59,960

2027 61,029

2028 61,971

2029-2033 313,803

The Cheshire Medical Center plan was terminated effective June 30, 2022, pending regulatory
appfovals. Following regulatory approval, the plan sponsor intends to distribute assets and settle
plan obligations through a lump sum offering to active and terminated vested participants and a
group annuity contract will be purchased for any participant that doesn't elect the lump sum, along
with ail participants currently in pay status. The benefit obligation for the plan reflectis anticipated
disbursement costs and a terminal cash contribution,to fully fund benefits will be made at that time.
The obligations reflect the cost of providing the lump sums and group annuity, described above, as
well as administrative costs and-a terminal contribution which will be necessary to fund all of the
costs of terminating the plan. It is expected that the obligations will be settled by June 30, 2024 and
the plan termiriation liability will reflect economic conditions, lump sum election rates and annuity
pricing at that time. As a result, the final plan terminatiori liabPlty may be different from the amounts .
shown in this report.
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Defined Contribution Plans

The Health System has employer-sponsored plans for certain of its members, under which the
employer makes contributions based on specified percentages of compensation and employee
deferral amounts. Total employer contributions to the plan of aipprcximately $71,152,000 and
$64,946,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectivejiy, are included in employee beneHts expenses in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Postretlrement Medical and Life Insurance Benefits

The Health System has postretlrement medical and life Insurance benefit plans covering certain of
its active and former employees. The plans generally provide medical or medical and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees who meet eligibility requirements. The plans are not funded.

Net periodic postretlrement medical and life benefit (Income) cost is comprised of the components
listed l>elow for the years ended June 30,2023 and 2022:

(in thousands ofdollarsj

Service cost

Interest cost

Net loss amortization

Total $

2023 2022

357 $ 456

1,956 1,394

62 752

2,375 $ 2,602

The following table sets forth the accumulated postretlrement medical and life Insurance benefit
obligation amounts recognized in the Health System's consolidated financial statements at June
30, 2023 and 2022:

(in thousands of doliars)

Change In benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation, beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid
Actuarial loss

Employer contributions

Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year

Current portion of liability for postretlrement
medicai and IKe beneffls

Long-term portion of liability for
postretlrement medical and life benefits

Funded status of the plans and liability for
postretlrement medical and life benefits

2023

$  40,315

357

1,9^
(3,588)
(6,355)

32,685

$  (3.386)

(29,299)

2022

$  46,863

456

1,394

(3,401)
(4.964)

(33L
40,315

$  (3.500)

(36,815)

$  (32,685) $ (40,315)
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As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the liability for postretirement medical and life Insurance benefits is
included In the liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected In net periodic income for the postretirement nr^dicai and life insurance
benefit plans, included In the change in net assets without donor restrictions, are as follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Net actuarial "(Income) loss (1.970) 4.445 :
Total $ (1,970) $ 4,445

The following future benefit payments, which reflect expected future seivice, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid for the years ending June 30. 2023 and thereafter:

(in thousands of dollars)

2024 $ .3.486

2025 3.'424
2026 3.396
2027 3,387 .

2028 3,227

2029-2033 14,893

In determining the accumulated benefit obligation for the postretirement medical and life insurance
plans, the Health System used a discount rates of 6.00 - 6.10% in 2023, and an assumed
healthcare cost trend rate of 6.50 - 7.00%, trending down to 5.00% in 2029 and thereafter.

12. Professional and Oeneral Liability Insurance Coverage

0-H, along wHh Dartmouth College. Cheshire, NLH, APO, MAHHC, and VNH are provided
professibnal and'general llabiiity insurance on a claims-made basis through Hamden Assurance
Risk Retention Group, inc. (RRG), a VT captive insurance company. RRG cedes the majority of
this risk to Hamden Assurance Company Limited (HAG), a captive Insurance company domiciled in
Bermuda, and HAG cedes a portion of this risk to a variety of commercial reinsurers. D-H has
majority ownership Interest in both HAG and RRG. The insurance program provides coverage to
the covered Institutions, named Insureds amJ their employees on a modified claims-made basis,
which means coverage Is triggered when claims are made. Premiums and related insurance
deposits are actuarially determined, based on' asserted liability claims adjusted for future
development. The reserves for outstanding losses are recorded on an undlscounted basis.
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Selected financial data of HAC and RRG, taken from the latest available financial statements at
June 30, 2023 and 2022.!ere summarized as follows:

2023

HAC RRG Total

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets $ 93,777 $ 2,372 $ 96,149;
Shareholders' equity 13,620 50 13,670

2022

HAC RRQ Total

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets $  79,631 $ 2,245 $ 82,076

Shareholders' equity 13,620 50 13,670

13. Commitments and Contlnsencles

Litigation
The Health System is involved in various malpractice claims and legal proceedings of a nature
considered normal to its business. The claims are In various stages and some may ultimately be
brought to trial, it is the opinion of management that the final outcome of these claims will not have
a material effect on the consolidated financial position of the Health System.

LineofCi^it
The Health System has entered into a loan agreement with a financial Institution, establishing
access to a revolving loan of up to $100,000,000. Interest is variable and determined using the
Bloomberg Short-Term Barik Yield Index or the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The loan
agreement is due to exjpire October 3. 2024. The outstanding line of credit balance was
$40,000;000 and $0 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Interest expense was
approximately $1,200,000 and $91,000, respectively, and Is Included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

14. Functional Expenses

Operating e^^enses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall
service missions of the Health System. Each functional classification displays all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Salaries, employee benefits, medical supplies
and medications, and purchased services and other expenses are generally considered variable
and are allocated to the mission that best aligns to the type of senrice provided. Medicaid
enhancement tax is allocated to program services. Interest expense is allocated based on usage of
debt-financed space. Depreciation and amortization is allocated based on square footage and
specific identification of equipment used by department.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional and natural basis are as follows for the
year ended June 30, 2023; .

2023

(in thousands of dollars)

Operating expenses
Salaries

Employee benefits
Me^l supplies and medications
Purt^ased services and other
Medicald.enhancemeht tax
Oepredation and amortization
Intwst

Total operating expenses

Program
Services

$ 1,238,158

293.359
722,957

305,192

85,715
45.702

8,470

$ 2,699,553 $ 443,541

Management
and General

$ ■ 183,063
38,778

2,517

148,439

44,707

26,037

Fundralslno

$  -1,870

249

.  6

5,270

48

8

Total

$ 1,423,091
332,366

725.480

458,901

85,715
90,457

34,515

7,451 $ 3,150,545

Non'operating expense
Employee benefits

Total non-operating expense

Program
Services

$  15,606

$  15,606 $

Management
and General

2,077

2,077

■ Fund raising Total

17,691

17,691
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022 . . .

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional and natural basis are as follows for the
year ended June 30,2022:

2022

Program Management .

(In thousands of dollars) Services and General; Fundralslna Total

Operating expenses •

Salaries $ 1.129.572 $ 184,533 $ 1.302 $ 1,315,407

Employee benefits 281,455 40,887 228 322,570

Medical suppIlM and medications 645,437 3,835 ■  - 649,272

Purchased services and other 255,639 142,241 5,982 403,862

Medlcaid enhancement tax 82:725 - - 82,725

Depredation and amortization 42.227 •* 44,675 56 86,958

Interest 9,116 22,987, 10 32,113

Totaidperating expenses $ 2,446,171 $ "439,158 . $ 7,578 $ 2,892.907

Program Management

Services and General Fundralslna Total

Non-opeirating Income
Employee benefits $  12.144 1,755 $ 11 $  13,910

Total non-operating Income $  12:144 $ 1,755 $ 11 $  13.910
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June;30, 2023 and. 2022 .

16. Liquidity

The Health System is substantially supported by cash generated from operations. In addition, the
Health System holds financial assets for specific purposes which are limited as to use. Thus,
certain financial assets reported on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets rhay not be
available for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date.

The Health System's financial assets available at June 30, 2023 and 202i2 to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year of June 30.2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable

Assets limited as to use

Other investments for restricted activities

Total financial assets

Less: Those unavailable for general expenditure
within one year
Investments held by captive Insurance companies
Investments for restrict^ activities
Bond proceeds held for capital projects
Other Investments with liquidity horizons
greater than one year

. Total financial assets available within one year

2023

115,996

289,787

1,071,462

182,224

$

76.830

182,224

17,310

141.810

2022

191,929

251,250
1,181,094

175.116

1,659,469 $ 1,799,389

57,522

175,116-

99,397

159,792

1.241,295 1,307,562

The Health System used cash flow from operations of' approximately $(164,033,000) and
$(123,525,000) for the years ended June 30.2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively. In addition, the
Health System's liquidity management plan Includes Investing excess daily cash in Intermediate or
long term investments based on anticipated liquidity needs. The Health System has an available
line of credit of up to $100,000,000 which it can draw upon as needed to meet Us liquidity needs.
See Note 13 for further details on the line of credit.

16. Lease Commitments

D-HH determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inceptioii of the contract. Right-of-use
assets represent our right to use the underlying assets for the lease term and our lease liabilities
represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases. Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date, based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. The Health System uses the implicit rate noted within the contract. If
not readily available, the Health System uses an estimated Incremental borrowing rate, which is
derived using a collateralized borrowing rate, for the same currency and term, as the associated
lease. A right-of-use asset and lease'liability is not recognized for leases with an Initial term of 12
months or less, rather the Health System recognizes lease expense for these leases on a straight-
line basis, over the lease tenrn, vvithin.tease and rental expense.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30> 2023 and 2022

Operating leases are primarity for real estate. Including certain acute care facilities, off-^mpus
outpatient:facilitles. medical office buildings, and corporate and other administrative offices. Real
estate lease agreements typically have initial terms of 3 to 8 years. These real estate leases may
Include one or more options to renew, with renewals that can extend the lease term from 2 to 5
years. The exercise of jease renewal options Is at the Health System's sole discretion. When
determining the lease term, management includes options to extend or terminate the lease when it
is reasonably certain that the Health System win exercise that option.

Certain lease agreements for real estate Include payments based on actual common area
maintenance expenses and/or rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation. These variable
lease payn^ents are recognized in other occupancy costs In the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Changes in Net Assets, but are not included in the fight-of-use asset or liability
balances In our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Lease agreemerits do not contain any material
residual value guarantees, restrictions, or covenants.

The componerits of lease expense for the years ended June 30,2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating lease cost $ 9,590 $ 9,573
10,608 10.894

Total lease and rental expense 20,198 $ 20.467

Finance lease cost:

Depredation of property under finance lease
Interest oh debt of property under finance lease

$ 3.778 $

'"546
3.345 .

448

Total finance lease cost $ 4.324 $ 3.793

(a) includes equipment, month<to-month and leases with a maturity of less than 12 months.

Supplemental cash flow'information related to leases for the years
are as follows:

ended June 30. 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts induded in the measurement
of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases
Operating cash flows from finance leases
Finandng cash flows from finance leases

$ 10,067

546

3,599

$  9.952

448

3.255

Total 1. 14.212 $  13.655
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2023 and 2022 ,

Supplemental baiance sheet information reiated to leases as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 are a
follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating Leases
Right-of-use assets - operating leases $  59,258 $  61,165

Accumulated amortization '  (26.731) (21,222)

Right-of-use assets - operating teases, net 32,527 39,943

Current portion of right-of-use obligations 7,799 8,314

Long-term right-of-use obligations, excluding current portion 25,386 - 32,207

Total operating lease liabilities 33,185 40,521

Finance Le^es '

Right-of-use assets - finance leases 32,837 27.963

Accumulated depredation (9.836) (8,981)

Right-of-use assets • finance leases, net 23,001 ' 18,982

Current portion of right-of-use obligations 3,535. , 3,005

Long-term right-of-use obligations,.exduding current portion 20,285 16,617

Total finance lease liabilities '$ '23,820 $  ' . 19,622

Weighted Average remaining lease term, years
7.73Operating leases 7.54

Finance leases 15.73 19.77

Weighted Average discount rate
Operating leases
Finance leases

2:36%

3.46%

2.24%

2.17%

The System obtained $3.6 million and $9.2 mUiion of new and modified operating and financing
leases, respectively, dutiixi the year ended June 30,2023.

The System obtained $8.9 million and $0.1 million of new and modified operating and financing
leases, respectively, during the year ended June 30,2022.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes toOonsotidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022 .

Future maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:
' ..0

(in thousands of dollars) Ooeratlna Uases Finance Leases

Year ending June 30:

2024 $ 8.474 $ 4,265

2025 5,841 3,336

2026 4,311 2,869

2027 3,475 1,900

2028 2,784^ 1,701

Thereafter 11.340 15,043

Total lease payments 36,225 29,114

Less: Imputed interest 3,040 5,294

Total lease obligations $ 33,185 $ 23,820

17. Subsequent Events

The Health System has assessed the impact of subsequent events through November 17, 2023,

the date the audited consolidated financial statements were issued, and has concluded that there
were no such events that require adjustment to the audited consolidated financial statements or

disclosure in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements other than as noted below.

On July 3, 2023, D-HH affiliated with Southern Vermont Health Care Corporation and Its

subsidiaries {"SVHC"), including Southwestern Vermont Medical Center, Inc. {"SVMC"), a 99-bed

community hospital located in Bennington, Vermont integrating SVHC into the D-HH System gives

D-HH an inpatient presence in southwestern Vermont with reach into eastern New York state and

northwestern Massachusetts rharkets.

In.October 2023, the Health System issued a note payable in the amount of $100,000,000 to ID
Bank. The note matures at various dates through 2033, and is fixed, with an Interest rate of
6.17%.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2023

I

< -i

H:-

■■■£

fin fftevttnOs cfOeMan)

A«««tS
Current saett

C•l^ end cash equivalents
PaScnt aeeounts recotvable, rtfl
Prepaid expenses and otfter current assets

Total current atseis

Assets ImNad as to use
Notes raceivet^. relaied party
Other Investments for reshkled acDvSiss
Property, ptsnl. end eqitipmenl. net-
RjoMofHise assets, net
Other assets .'

Total assets

UsUmies. and Net Assets
Current lollies

Current portion of tortg-term debt
Current portion of rigM-of^jse obKoatiens
LifM of credit
Current portion of fabOty for peralon end
. od>cr peetretkement pton benefits -
Accounts payibto and eccrued expenses
Accrued ccmpensaiian end related bertefits
Estfiialed Wrdperty setttemerits

Total curretS RabCties •

Notes payable, retxted party
Lonp4erm debt, exebding current portion'
RighSoiust eblgetiens. exdudetg current portion
btswance.deposis «td roWad Bebiiits
Liabfiy fbr pension Bttd odter postrettentenl
pivi benefbs. exctuding current portion

Other eibWts

Total Dablities

Commibacrdi and conUngencies

Nsi wmom oonor reseicuons

Net assets uilh donor restrktiorts

TotN net assets

Total libBBes end r>et assets

Dartmeuth- AOcaPeck New London MLAscutney OHObtigsted ADOthcrNorw Health
Hltclicecli DsiUiwut}^ Day Hecpftal Hospttst and Group Obtig Group System

Httffi HHchcoeb Memorial Assodatlofi HeeimCertler Eliminations Subtotal AfWati EnmmaOofti CeneoBdsted

s 2.375 t 202 8 40,750 3  32.082 3  11.462 3 3 66.871 3  29.125 3 3 115.996
- 241.747 10568 11.022 7.607 - 271544 15543 . 289,787

19.552 210.275 2.374 2.449 5009 (36.7891 199.870 5619 (16.385) 184.104
21.927 452.224 53.992. 45.553 21.078 (X.799} 557.985 50587. (18.385) 589.887

136.637 832.895 13.089- 17.990 26.788 (16.760) 1.009,937 61.525 . 1.071.462
843.646 14.308 588 - - (6*4.777) 14.065 (588) (13.477) -

5 125.671 2.532 3506 7508 - 139.722 45502 . 185224
- 624.394 27.724 44.547 16,280 . 715925 96.697 . 811.622

344 32,619 14,957 286 4,897 - 53.313 5215 . S5.S28
1,943 168.736 13.798 6.622 4.688 ,  i 195.787 (5454) . 193.333

t. 1,005,102 S 2.252.047 ; $ 126,790 3  118504 3  79.917 3 (896526) 3 5663.734 3  255184 3 (31,683) 3 2.904,056

$ 13.365 t 3 825 3  21 3  11 3 3 14522 3  1.014 3 3 15i38
204 9.1S6 759 49 422 . 10.570 764 . 11.334

40.000 40.000 40.000

. 3.386 . . . 5386 . 3,386
23.590 151.473 5,300 3.975 8.173 (53.549) 136,962 28.170 (18,385) 146.747

- 119.716 3,549 3.192 4.491 - 130,950 6.517 - 137.467
- 28560 12.568 18545 . . 59,393 4.967 . 64.360

37.159 352.273 23.021 25.482 13.097 (53.549) 397.483 ».432 (18.385) 418.530

. 600.163 ■; 27.044 17.570 (844.777) . 13.477 (13.477) .

1.026.666 25.113 21,956 11 (105) - 1,075,941 23.321 - 1.090,962
140 24533 14.786 243 4.S3S - 44,137 1.534 - 45.671

- 89.947 322 253 283 - 90,805 544
•

91,349

. 197,049 , . 368 197,417 8.888 _ 206,305
- 148,553 366 2.065 . - . 150,984 25934 . 173.918

1.065.965 1.637.431 60.451 55.098 35.848 (898526) 1.956.467 110.130 (31.862) 5034.735

I60J73) 476.653 63,706 56.347 35,455 573590 85.658 40 658.968
10 137.963 2.631 4.759 8.614 . - 153.977 58.396 (40) 210.333

160.663) 814.616 86.339 63.106 44.089 . 727.287 145054 868.321
s 1.005.102 3 2552,047 3 126,790 3  116.204 3  79.917 3 (898526) 3 5683.734 3  255164 3 (31.862) 3 2.904.056
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
'June 30. 2023

X, J*' -

A

•5

fittfieust/idsofdefyf^

Assets

Cunwitsssets

Cash and cash squfvatents
Patient accounts rec^v8l)le. niet
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

TMI cunent assets

Assets BctAed as to use

Notes rebeivabte.' related party ■
Other investments for restHct^ activittes
Property, ptanl. and equipment net
Right^Hrse assets, net •
Otherassets

Total assets

UabiliUes end Net Assets
Curent SePlMes

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of right^)f-use obflgatiorts
Lina.of cradit
Curr^ portion of iiabUty for pension ef>d
other postretirefn^ plw' berwifits

■Accounts peyabte accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related benefits,
Estirrtated third-party setOements

Total current iiaMities

Notes payable, related party
Long-term debt excluding current porlion
Rigtit-of-use obligatiorts. exdutSng current portion
Insurance deposits and related KabKitles
Liabifity for pension arxl other postretireffient
ptan bertefitx, exdudrnig current portion

Other lablities

. Total Bsbtftes

Commitments and contingencies

Netassets
Net assets vdthout donor restrictions
Net assets wtih donor resbicttons

Total net assets

Total liabiities and net assets

imi Health

O-Hend Cheshire end MAHHCand APO and VNNand ■  t SystacB
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subeidiaries NLH tUrbsldlarias SubsUlafv Subsidiaries BIminetlens Consolidated

$  2.375 S  1.470 S  15,911 S 32,082 S  11,691 3 50,139 3  2.328 S 3  115^8
. 241,747 17.253 11,022 7,799 10,888 1;098 - 289.767

19,552. 210,708 1.504 2.449 1,992 Z284 789 (55.1741 184.104

21.927 453.925 34.568 45,553 21,482 83,291 4,215- (55.174) 589,887

135,937 550,435 13,378- 17,990 27.090 13.089 19,304 (15.750) 1.071,482

843;945 14.305 . - - -
(855,254)

5 134.091 34.711 3.205 7,209 2,911 91 -
182,224

. 627.070 •  72.289 44.547 17.S93i 44,435 5,588 -
811;622

344 3Z819 2,145 285 4,898... 14;967 69- • 55.528

1.943 166.902 7.130 5.522 2.231 8,505 - -
193.333

$  1.005,102 3  2.291.551 S  164.319 $ 118.204 $  80.503 '3 145.196 3  29.367 3  (930.188) 3  2.904.055

S  13.355 8 S  915 5 21 3  38 ' 3 825 3  74 3 3  15,235
204 9.135 735 49 423 759 28 . 11.334

40.000 40.000

3,388 . . 3,388

23.590 152,515 22.818 3:975 6.312 5.990 i;48i (71.934) 145,747

119.718 5,406 3.192 4.554 3.907 680 - 137,467

28.560 4.928 18.245 . 12.588 39 • 64.350

37.159 353.315 34.802' 25.482 13.335' , 24.069- 2.302 . (71.934) 418.530

800.163- 10.477 27.044 17.570 ■ 3.000 (858.254) •

1.028.655 25.113 20.907 11 .89 21.907 2.269 . - 1,098.952

140 24.333 1.493 - 243 4.535 14.785 41 - 45.671

•
89.947 500 253 283 322' 44 -

91.349

197,049 8,888 388 . . . 206.305
. 148.553 1.500 2.065 ' 21.800 - ■ "• 173.918

1.065.955 1.538,473 78.567 55.098 36.280 62.884 7.655 (930.188) 2.034.735 .

(60.873) 507.534 37,307 58.347 35.609 . 59,404 21.520 • 40 558.988

10 .  145.544 46.445 4.759 8.614 2.910 91 (40) 210.333

(60.863) 653.078 '• 85.752 53.106 44.223 - 62.314 21.711 - 889.321

3  1.005.102 3 2.291.551 3 164.319 3 118.204 3 80,503 3 145.198- 1 29.357 -3 . (930.188) 3 2.904,056
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
{Consolidating Balance Sheets

' jjune 30, 2022 ; .

-1

t

DartmotrdK ChtsNrt A

.if

lice Pack Na* London IftAacutnay
- Mtchcecfc Oartmeuttv ■edkal Day Hespial Hospital and *

■fin dnusands of<Uan) Hetth Wlcheock Cedtf MemerW Aasedatiefl HetRh Canter Bhninatlpfts

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash eqiMerts 8  2,066 8  68BZ7 8 28165 8 .  38416 8  28467 8  11427 8
Paiierlacc6ifisreceiia6l6.net . 208,400 18.106 8617 8175 5460 .

Prepdd expenses and odier curren assets .23.561 181462 19.580 8522 •4:<S2 1.472 (31.119)

Total current asseB 25,817 434.489 57,851 51.755 42.094 18.159 .pi:ii9)"

Assets Med as to use 301.000 858.919 12,665 14.680 18005 25.753 C<«e448)
Notes recetvMto, related partjr 642452 11,557 . 603 • (853409)

' Otfw investmens for restrtded adhttes 490 118,082 16,422 727 3.925 6.848 ■  '' .
Properly, plant, and aQupman^ rrct . 585.084 63.067 24.757 45.873 .15428 •

Mgii^i-useasseb ' > 1,362 . 38321 1430 14.892 168 'W49
Odier assets 681 148516 1.187. K391 6473 4.983 •

Total assets 8  1.171402 8  8188948 8 153,022 8 122.005 8  114.736 - 8 76.516 8  (983.576)

UaMRtes and Net Assets
Ciireri iabiSes

Curenl potion cl lon(Hem d(6i 8 8  4.810 8 865 8 600. "8 23 8 8
Current potion d rfghKlKBa cCipsltons 559 6414 689 6S2, 172 473
.Cured potion d KatSty for pension and
t otier posdefretrKd flan benefits - urn • '•Ti • • •

Aooouds peyable and accrued epenses 147,626 108110 18607 4.683 4.643 8883 {129.987)
Accrued compensation and related benefits • 188194 6.817 4,431 4407 4.434 ■  "

Etimatad third-pany sctttements 3.002 68.876 22.999 17,488 21486 647

Total axrtd U£8cs 151,187 358004 47.977 28454 31.431 '  14J47 (129467)

Notes payatle. idaied party . 808.602 . . 27.437 17.570 f^'409)
Lon^Km dabt. exdudng cured portion 1.044.845 25.064 21.867 23.060 32 (110) •

W^ltokise otIgJtiofB. eiriuiing cured portion 603 27.359 1433 14.499 - 4.885 -

' Irtturance deposits and related iabihies . ,•78678 623 373 401 250 •

Uafaity for pension and other poslretiremcd
plan benefits, exdudng cured porfion - 220,350 7.774 . • 481
Other fabifies . 129.092 1.109 300 1.749 ■ -

Totdlabiities 1.196.835 1.642.169 60.583 68686 61.050 37.323 1983.578)

OHOM91M AOOtterNoa*
Group OMgGroup.

SuWoW AWfatw

I  1B7i»
249^
182.730

5961848

1,130.174
•  803
146^492
734.387

58,820
-  174331

$  8.498 8
11.259

3.500
152.795
189,383
134.896

H.

1
"ft.
f

. ■ --.'A

Coninfcnenli «nd ooBtogendo

NM assets
Net assets oQwut donor resaidions
Net assets «48i donor fesSlcOcRS

Total net assets

Total Rabillas and net assets

(25.638) 418.255
5  129.524

53.648
18.793

54,590
. 729

484174
: 4.712

31.078
8;fl5

(25.633) 547.779 72.439 55.319 53.686 39.193

496.333

1,114.776
48,779,
783215

228.605
132250

2.101.070

580405
161.878

742.783

24.671
zsa

HceM

GbitMlens CensoBdited

•  • S 191429
251450

(2425) 189.133

1^

58920

' -W.
28624 '
38453 •
■"105
P.t68) _

122422 5

(2425) 812,312

1.181,094

175.118
764.840
58925

172.163
C425) I 2464.450

90 S
60

-  $ 6.596
11.319

6.002
1.'i77

(2.225)

7.337

2410
45.
68

1
21.646

:(2425)

3i;80$ Q-as)

53452
37.665

91417-

5  1,171402 5 Z189.948 8 153.022 t 122.005 5 114.736 » ' 76 j16 I r(983.$76) 8 2443453 8 • 122422 8

:5i.

3.500
156.572
190460
1K890

503.445

1.117488
48424
7W

228606
154.096

2.130.650

40 634497
(401 199403

833.600

(2425) 8 2464.450
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June. 30, 2022 .

(in tftouMAds of<iotafsl

A»*«U
Cun«n( MMts

D41H
and Other

Subsldiari—
D-H and

Subsknarti
Chaahlraa^
Subakflariw KLH

fNAHHCand
Subtidiariw>

Cash snd cash equivalents 8  2,056 8 68.075 8 3Z500 $ 28.467 8 11.631
Patient accounts receivable, net 206.400 18.106 9.17$ 5.431
Prepaxf expenses and other cunent essets 23.561 161.508 8296 4.452 1.499

Total cutrerfi assets 25.617 435.983 58.902 42.094 18.561
Assets limited as to use 301,000. 864,007 13.183 • 16.005 26,979
Notes racatvable. related parly 842,052 11.557
Otfter investments tor restrictad activiSet 490 125.814 37.124 3.925 6.646
Properly. planL and eqt^menL nel - 587.739 66,385 45.973 16,947
,Right4l-usa assets, net 1.362 35.321 1,630 166 - 5.246
Other assets 681 146.699 8.316 6.573 2.526

Total assets 8  • 1.171.202 8 2.226.920 8 185.740 8 114,736 8 77.107

• APOand

SubaWafv

47.694
8.617
Z676

60.669

14.^

1.031
42.436
14.692
7.292

LiabaMat and Net Assets
Current KsbBtfes

Cunenl portion of long-term debt
Current porbon of rlght-of-iiM obflgtfiofts
Current portion of Babffiy for pension and
other postretbement ^ benefits'
Aocounts'^able end accrued expenses
Accrued c^penssbon and related benefits
Estimated ttufd-par^ settlements

Total current 6at)£Ses

Notes payable, relaied pvty
Long-term detM. exduding current portion
Right-of-use obfigaticns. exduding currerrt portion
Insurance deposits and related liabttties
LiaMny for pension and other postretirement
plan benefits, excluding current portion

Other labiSties

Total fabitiies
Commitments and'^tingendes
Netassets

Net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions

'4 Total net assets
Total iadfities and net assets

8  - 8 4.810 8 665 8 23 8 26 8 800
559 8.514 689 172 472 852

. 3,500 . .

147.826 100.617 16,728 4.843 8,831 5.481
• 189,194 6.817 . 4.507 4.490 4.735

3.002 68.876 22.999 21.888 647 17.488

151,187 355.511 48,096 31.431 14.466 29.358
- 808.602 27.437 17.570

1.044,84$ 25,084 21.867 32 110 23.005
803 27.359 1^33 . 4.885 14.499

• 76.678 623 401 ' 250 373

. 220,350, 7.774. , 482.
• - ■ 129.092 - 1.106 1.749 • 22.148

1.198.835 1.642.676 80.702 . 61.050 37.763 89.379

(25.638) ' 447.013 . -S6.OT4 48.974 31.231 • 50,308
5 137.231 48.364 4.712- -  . 8.113 1,033

(25.833) 584.244 105.036 53.686 39.344 51.341
8  1.171.202 8 2.226.620 8 185,740 ■ 8' 114.738 . 8. ..  77.107 8 140,720

VNH^
Subskliaries

1.306
2.321

463

4,110

24.086

66
S.360

106

76

140.720 $ 33.826

4.640
817

S.S90

2.34S
45
66

8.046

25,695
65

25.780

Biminatlons

(33.344)

(33.344)

(M.648)
(853.609)

(985.601)

72 S
61

(132,192)

(132.192)

(853.609)

(985.801)

40

m.

HtsRh
^ Systam

Corwofidated

191.929
251.250
169.133

612.312

1.181.094.,

175.116
764.840

58.925
172.183

2,964,450

6.596
11.319

3.500
156,572
190,560
134.896

503.445

1,117.288
48.624
78,391

228.608
154.096

Z130.650

634,297
199.503

833.800

33.826 8 (985.801) 8 • 2.W4.4S0

■'i
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
^Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes iri Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Svear Ended June 30; 2023

Dartmouttw AletPedr Kmt London MLAsctttoey DHCtMgated Al Other Notv Hestlh

KItchcocfc Oartmouttw Day HospM Hospital and Gnxy ObBgGroty System

(■> thousands o/doltts) Health HHdteocli Memorial Assoeiaden Health Center Qhninattens Subtotal Afffiates BMnadons Censoddtoed

Opfnfin9 iwvmw and other myort .

PafienI servica rswnue $ 1  1588.079 $  98.605 $  87,855 $  63,606 $ $  2.138,145 i  259.012 $ $  2597.157
Conksctadravanua 3.8M 141,562 149 51 3.667 (799) 148.454 336 (64.444) 84,346
Other operi&y revenue 36^756 578.965 4564 6i485 2.134 (43,963) 564521 31,811 (7.557) 606875
Net assets released from restrictiors - 12.783 too 316 284 • 13.463 1,380 14.643

Total opcrat'ng reverue and oBier support 40.590 2.621,369 103.118 94,707 69581 (44.782) '2.884.683 292.539 (72.001) 3.106521

Operating eipenses
Salaries - ■ 1.183541 49562 46.198 28.947 486 1,308534 162.896 (47.839) 1.423.091
Employee ben^ ' . 278506 9520 6521 8578 1,697 303.822 36.910 (6346)
Medcatkms and medical suppBes - 650.157 13.130 115S2 4.379 - 679518 45.962 • 726480
Putteed services and other 20577 366503 15521 11.834 21578 (16642) 417.471 56,691 (15561) 458.901
Mediceid enhancement tax ' . 65505 4.426 3566 2573 . 75.870 9.845 .  - 85.715
Depredation and aoMflizaiian 1 68568 3572 4,775 2511 . 79.025 11.432 • 90,457
Interest 33,194 28.101 805 1564 479 (30586) 335S7 1.544 (286) 34.515

Total operating expenses 53.472 2539.379 95.636 87.410 67.945 (46545) 2.896.997 325580 (71.732) 6150.545

Operating 0OSS} margin (12.682) (18.010) 7.482 7597 1.736 Z063 (12514) (3Z74U (269) (46324)

Non-operatkrggatris (losses)
Investment gains (losses), net 1573 46.094 881 1.113 915 (252) 52.124 6067 (72) 56119
OSw components o( net periodic pension and post

retirerneni benefit ixome (16569) • . (16569) (1.«2) - 07.691)
Otier.(losscs) income, net (101643) 250 . 509 367 (1.911) (11.308) 2.437 341 (6530)

- 'Total norMlpen^ (losses) gains, nel (9L2701 32.075 881 1,622 1.30Q (2563) 24.547 7.082 . 269 31596

(Defidenty) exc» of revcrue mer expenses K065 8,363 6,919 3,038 12533 (25.659) •
(13.426)

Net esseti wftlwut donor restricdens
Net essets relessed from restietioris for capM' V 2.139 56 26 233 - 1454 775 - 3529.

Change in funded statiA d person^ olw' "

postretiremeni benefh - 37.322 - - 114 • 37.438 (2.535) • 34.901

Net assets transferred to (from) afBales (13.063) 4581 783 428 992 • (8.079) 6079 - •

Otter changes to net essets . (9) (4) . . - (13) • - (13)

(Decrease) tocrease to net essets wBhoul donor
restrictions 1  (35535) %  58.398 1  9.118 i  9,373 S  4.3n S $  46.031 S  (21.340) 8 S  24.691

I



• Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries.
^ Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
'X Year Ended June 30, 2023

Oartmeuth- • Health

Nttchcock D41and Cheshfreattd MAHHC and APDsnd VNHand Systan .
(hthousaoOsofdolv^ Health Subsidiaries SubsidiiriM Subsidiaries Sut>skfiarv Subsidiaries Shhinetlons ConsoBdatad

OperstiRB nvtftut and other support '  . "

Patient service revenue S i  1.888.079 S  245,887 $ 87.855 S  63.606 $  98.605 S  13.125 S $  2.397.157
Contracted revenue 3.834 141.815 84 51 3.656 149 - (65.243) 64.346
Other operating revenue . 36.756 581.102 15.548 6.485 ■  3.974 14.641 1309 ^1.540} 608.675
Net assets reieased from resfrfcSons - 13.358 747 316 293 129 ■  , - - 14343

Total operating revetiue «id other support 40.590 2.624354 262366 94.707 71.529 113.524 15,034 (116.783) 3:105321

Operatirtg eiponses -

Sataies ' .• •• '  - 1.183341 144.785 46,198 29.820 53303 13.097 (47353) 1.423.091
'Erhplojreeben^ ; ♦ 276306 33,677 8.321 6.435 iaoo2 2395 (6.650) 332,386
Medications ami medical suppfies - 650.157 45,073 11,852 4.382 13.149 872 (5) .  725.480
Purchased services and other 20.277 369J991 44361 ' 11.634 22.074 19.196 4.471 (33303) 456301
Medcaid enhancement tax - 65305 9344 3.386 2374 4:426 • 65.715
Depreciation and amortsation 1 68366 8345 4.775 2.425 5303 542 . 96.«7
Interest 33.194 28.101 1.031 1.064 480 1.115 201 (30.671) 34515

Total operating expenses 53.472 Z642.467 288318 67.410 69.890 106.294 21378 (118.582) 3.150.545

Operatiig (toss) margin (12.682) (18.113) (26,050) 7397 1339 7330 (6344) 1,799 (45.324)

Non-operatit>g'"gains (losses)
Investment gains (tosses), net ^ 1,373 50345 2389 1i113 997 1.111 1320 (329) 58.119

Other components of net period pertston and post
' retkerhera benefit Income - (16369) (1.«2) - - . - (17.691)
Other (tosses) ineome. net (10.643) .  250 2361 509 403- - 60 (1.470)- (8530)

Tot^ non-operating gafris (tosses), net (9".Z7a) 34326 3.328 1.622 1.400' 1.111 1.280 (1.799) - 31.898

(DeficietKy) excess of revenue over expenses (22.152) 16.113 (22.722) - 8319 3.039 8,341 (4.964) •  (13.^)

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets reieased from restrictions for captel . 2323 691' 26- 233 .  56 ^ ■ -  . • 3329

Changa fri fcmded status of pension arid other
postretirement benefits ■ 7 37322 (2.535) • 114 - . 34.901

Net assets transferred to (fron^ affSatas (13.083) 4372 5.199 428 •  .992 703 889 ■

Other ehangas h net assets - -  (9) . . (4) (13)

(Decrease) frioease in net assets without donor •

restrictions $  (35.235) S  60.521 $  (19.367) . $ 9.373 .J - 4.378 S  9.096 I" (4.075) I $  24.691

*" 1
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
iYear Ended June 30, 2022

■;1.
Oaitmoutl^ Cheddte AicePedc Nnrl.ondoa ■LAscutmjf ONOblgited Al Other Non- Hedth
Mtchcock Dartmooth- Hcdicil Day Hesptal KospBalind (koup ObigGrMg) SyitBB

(aOnuaahddabi^ Hcalh Hitchoadc Center NemorW AssocWon HeaWi Center SitMiations Subtotal AffBates Somtiens A

OpcnSngmcRatodotesqipecl
Priertsenfcitvmue J 5  1.751.093 t  238.645 8  99,403 5  79.754 1  59.040 J S  2X25X35 S  17X02 8 S  2X43X37
Cortadedrmme 209 *133.928 165 21 22 3X21 ... R0X73) 77X93 458 (85) 77X68
Other openSngrmns 38.568 492.455 23,738 4.146 7X27 2.754 (SX711) 518;475 16.731 (1.175) 534.(S1
Md assets released from restiidons 249 13>99 779 -435 190 204 ' 15.156 738, - 15X94

Totil operaSng rewue and ofrrer support 39.026 ■ 2J9a7TO K1.325 104.005 67.493 65.519 •  (111X84) X636X59 35X29 (1X60) 2870828

(^mHng expenses
Saliies , ^ • 1.a91;601 135.063 43X66 40X19 28.960 (45X29) 1X93X00 20.422 1X05 1X15.407
EiqAryeebentfb'! - 266.795 31.761 10^302 7X37 6X« (5X42) 318.793 3X14 263 322X70
Uedcxtons «id medcai sup^ . 578.581 43.203 12X66 9X48 4,127 . 648.123 1.149 . 649X72
Purchased services «id ofrier 312.373 42.723 15.951 13.068 17X63 (32X62) 394X74 11X98 (1X1fl» 40X862
lierfcaid crdancetncre tax ■  - • 64,038 9.468 3.980. 2X34 X4C7 • 82,725 . . 82.725

^  . DcprtM&wandanuartBilion . 84,643 6.771 3.519 4X19 2.359 • 64,111 • 2X47 86.958 "
kiterest 32.536 25.365 914 are 1.073 493 QiSSOi 31.727 386 . .  32.113

TcM operating expettses 58.174 2.403.394 ■'271.923 91X160 79.496 63.969 (113.463) 2X53X53 . 39.718 (462) 2892.907

Operafngtbss) margin (19.148) (12.619) (10598) 13.645 7.997 1X50 i179 06.794) (4.487) (798) I22079I

Mon-cpierding gains (losses) ]
frwestmerjt income (losses), net j (6/K6) (58.573) (2X68) (795) . (1.114) (1.555) (210) (72.741) mn (78.744)
Ofrier cort^onenb of nel peiiodc pension and post

•

retreneri benefit incone - 11.902 2,006 - - . 13X10 . - 13X10
Other (losses) ixcne. net (3.54CI (1.W1) (542) . 1 169 0.969) (7X22) 66 796 (6X58)

Total nonoperaSng (losses) garts. net (11.566} (48.712) m (795) (1.113) (1.386) (2.179) (66X531 (5X37) •'798 (71.492)

(Defidenc)!) excess o( rcwua o«v expenses (30.714) (61.331) (iliOO) 13.050 6.864 164'
• (8X1471 (10.424)- - (93X71)

-  Net cssetserilhoul donor restrkfions
Nd tssels relesed from (dfricfara br capU • 678 52 . 460 233 . 1.423 150 . 1X73
Change h frjnded tbhs of pension and other

;  poslfrteiBentbeneas . (27«0) «496) • - 48 . (32X08) (1) . (32X09)
Net assets frvsferred to (fron4 dfibtes 7.600 (19.385) 4.068 2X71 2.096 795 • (2X57) 2XS7 • .

Other changes In net assels - . . . (23) . - (23) . . (23)

'  (Deoeas^ increase h net assets vAiout dona
fcstncMtt S  (23,114) 5  (107.896) S  (11X78) $■ 15.621 %  9.417 5  1X40 $ $  (116X12) 5  (8.018) $ 8  (124X30)

■  ■ '
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without.Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2022

fin 0/

Operating revenue and other support
Patieni service revenue

Contracted revenue'

Other operating revenue
Net assets reteased from restrictions

Total oper^ revenue and other support

Operating expenses

Salaries • ■

Employee beriefiis
Medications medical suppSes
Purchased services and other
Medicsid enhancement lax ;
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total operating ej^^

Operating'^oss) mar^
Non-operating gains (Iossm) '
Investment income (to^s). net
Other components of net pericKlic pen^n and posl.
retirement beneTd income

Ofter (losses) income.'net .

Total nonoperaling (losses) gains, net

(D^dency)'excess ot revenue over expenses

Net assets withovt donor restrtctions

Net assets release from restrictions (or capital
Change in funded status of pension and other
posfretirefflen^ benefib
Net ass^ transferred to (^) afiiales
0^ ctrtnges in net assets

(Decrease) increase in net assets withQuI donor
restrictions -

D-HH • - • Health
and Other 04(and - Cheshire and UAHHCand APOand VNHand System

Subtidlarim Subsidiaries SubsicftarlM NLH Subsidiariet Subsidiarv Subskl'iarits EliminatioRS Consofidated

S $  I.751.D93 5  236.645 % 79.754 $  59.041 S  . 99.403 %  ■ 17,301 % $  2.243937 '
209 134.388 165 21 3.521 21 . (60.659) 77.666

'  38.568 494.363, 23.794 7.527 4.370 14587 2.708 (51.886) 534.031
249 13.873 .  • 821 190 204 548 9 . 15.894

.  39.026 2.393.717 261,425 87.492 67,136 1)4.559 20.018 (112.545) 2.870,828

, 1.091.601 135.116 "40.219 29.729 47.352 15.534' (44.144) 1,315,407
- 266.795 31.770 7.537 8.361 11.169 2.517 (5.579) 322.570
- 578.581 43.203 9.946 • . 4.126 12i97 1.123 (4) 649972

25.638 315.589 42.938 13.067 18.072 18.915 4.313 (J4.670) 403962
- 64,036 9.469 2.834 2.406 3.980 . . 82.725

64.643 8.895 4,819 2.483 5.595 523 86.958
32.536 25.365 914 1.073 493 1.204 58 (29.530) 32.113

58.174 2.406.610 • 272.305 79.495 .  65.570 100.512 24.068 (113.927) 2.892.907

(19.148) (12.893) (10.880) i  7.997 1.466 14.047 (4.050) 1.382 (22.079)

■t{8.026) •  (81,039) .  ■ a-163). ; ■ (I.IU) (1.653) (1.373) (3.155) (211) (78.744)

- 11.002 "2.008 ^ "T . . 13,910
-  (3.540) -  (1:641) (542) 1 179 •  . 56' (1.171) (6.658)

(11.566) (50.778) -  : (697) (1.113) (1.484) (1.373) (3.09S) (1.382) 1  (71.492)
(30.714) , (63.671) <11;577) 6.884 (18) 12.674 (7.149) .  • (93.571)

• .  834 •  • 53 460 226
•

i
- 1.573

-  • ,'^.860) (4.496) . 47 . . (32.309)
7,600 ._(19.391) 4.108 2.096 795 2.571 , 2.221 .

-

•  -
• (23) . - . 1  (23)

J  (23.114) i • (ifO'oie) r  ..
$  . {11.912). $. 9.417 $  • 1.050 ". 15J245 •• % y (4928) 1 S  (lk33(i)

96/
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Dar^outh-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Note to Supplemental Consolidating Information
June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying supplemental consolidating information includes the consolidating balance
sheet and the consolidating statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor
restrictions of D-HH and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
between D-HH and Its subsidiaries have been eliminated. The consolidating information presierited
is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting In accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America consistent with the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the corisolidated
financial statements and is not required as part of the basic financial statements.

57



Docusign Envelope ID; C9201B7B-CEA5-42F3-882E-AC2D8F3EA893

MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL HOSPTIAL (MHMH)/
DARTMOUTH HITCHCOCK CLINIC (DHQ \ Combined as DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK

BOARDS OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

Effective: January 1. 2024

DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK

M. Elyse Allan, MBA
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer of General
Electric Canada Company, Inc.

Gcraldine "Polly" Bednash, FhD, RN,
FAAN Adjunct Professor, Australian Catholic
University

Laura M. Chiang, MD
Assistant Professor ofAnesthesiology and Critical Care;
Vice Chairfbr Education, Dept. ofAnesthesiology and Co-
Medical Director, Surgical Intensive Care Unit

Marcus P. Coe,-MD, MS
Associate Professor, Residency Director, Department of
Orthopaedic Surgeiy, Dartniouth Hitchcock Medical r
Center and Geisel School ofMedicine

Duane A. Compton, PhO , ^
Ex-Offcio: Dean, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Joanne M. Conroy, MD
Ex-O^cio: CEO & President, Dartmouth-
Hitchcock/Dartmouth Health

Gary V. Dcsir, MD
Yale School ofMedicine: Paul B. Beeson Professor of
Medicine; Chair. Inlernal Medicine at Yale School of
Medicine and Yale New Haven Hospital: Vice Provost
for Faculty Development and Diversity, Yale University

Page 1 of 4



Docusign Envelope ID: C9201B7B-CEA5-42F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

CelesKna "Tina" M. Dooleyrjones, PhD
Retired Senior Foreign Sendee Officer

Nancy M. Dunbar, MD
Medical Director, Blood Bmtk

Department of Pathology and laboratory Medicine

Roberta L. Hines, MD

MHMH/DHC Boards' Chair
Nicholas M. Greene Professor and Chair,- Dept. of
Anesthesiologij, Yale School of Medicine

Keith J. Loud, MD - beginning in March 2024
Chair, Department of Pediatrics and Adolescent
Medicine

Jennifer L. Moyer, MBA
Mnjiaging Director & CAO, White Moitntains Insurance
Group, Ltd

Sherri C. Oberg, MBA
CEO and Co-founder of Particles for Humanity, PBC

David P. Paul, MBA

MHMH/DHC Boards' Secretary & Treasurer
Retired President & COO, ]BG SMITH

Mark S. Speers, MBA
Co-fbunder & Senior Advisor, Health Advances, LLC

sf ■  f,--
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Docusign Envelope ID; C9201B78-CEA5-42F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

Jonathan B. Thyng, MD
Mcdicnl Director, Dnrtwouth Hitchcock Clinics Nashua

DARTMOUTH HEALTH

Mark W. Begor, MBA Oiicf
Executive Officer, Equifax

Joanne M. Conroy/MD
^x-Officio: CEO &^BresidenE Dartnwuth-
Hitchcock/Dartmouth Health

Thomas P. Glynn, PhD
Adjunct Lecturer, Harvard Kennedy School of Government

Charles G. Plimpton, MBA
Dartmouth Health Board Treasurer & Secretary
Retired hwestnient Banker

Richard J. Powell, MD
Section Chief, Vascular Surgery; Projessor of Surger\/ and
Radiology

Thomas Raffio, MBA, FLMI President
'&• CEO, Northeast Delta Deittal

Edward Howe Stansfield, III, MA
Dartmouth Health Board Chair

Retired Senior Financial Advisor, Resident Director, of
Bank ofAmerica/Merrill Lynch
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Docusign Envelope ID: C920187B-CEA5-42F3-8B2E-AC2D8F3EA893

Paul A. Taheri, MD, MBA
Clinical Partner ~ Welsh Carson Anderson and Stowe

Pamela Austin Thompson, MS, RN, CENP, FAAN
Qiiefexecutive officer emeritus of the American
Organization of Nurse Exeatfives (ACNE)

Exec/Govemance Oversight:

Kimberley A. Gibbs (603/650-8779)
Director, Executive Administration-and Exec/Govemance
One Medical Center Drive, Lebanon, NH 03756
kimberlev.a.gibbs@hitchcock.orp

Administrative Support:

Claire M. Lillie (603/650-5244)
Exec. Coordinator for Exec/Govemance & Leadership
claire.m.lillie@hitchcock.org

Laura K. Rondeau (603/650-5706)
Exec. Coordinator for Exec/Govemance & Leadership
laura.k.rondeau@hitchcock.org

Page 4 of 4



0MB No. 0925-0001 and 0925-0002 (Rev. 10/2021 Approved Through 01/31/2026)

BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH
Provide the following information for the Senior/key personnel and other significant contributors.

Follow this format for each person. DO NOT EXCEED FIVE PAGES.

NAME: Julie S. Bosak, DrPH, CNM, MSN

eRA COMMONS USER NAME (credential, e.g., agency login):

POSITION TITLE: Executive Director of Northern New England Quality Improvement Network (NNEPQIN) and
the New Hampshire Perinatal Quality Collaborative (NHPQC)rboth housed at Dartmouth Health.

EDUCATION/TRAINING (Begin with baccalaureate or other initial professional education, such as nursing, include
postdoctoral training and residency training if applicable. Add/delete rows as necessary.) '

INSTITUTION AND LOCATION
DEGREE

(if applicable) Start Date

MMfYYYY

Completion
Date

MM/YYYY
FIELD OF STUDY

' New York University, New York, NY
Georgetown University, Washington, DC
Boston University, School of Public
Health, Boston, MA

BSN

MSN

DrPH

08/1995

.09/1997

09/2017

05/1997

.  01/2000

08/2022

Nursing
Midwifery
Public Health

/

A. Personal Statement

I am a certified nurse-midwife and public health practitioner concentrating on healthcare quality and access for
underserved rural populations in the northeast United States. My twenty years of clinical healthcare experience
have brought exposure to a wide variety of populations, providers, community settings, and systems of care-
along with an intimate understanding of the challenges'faced by the rural healthcare system here in the
northeast. While clinical service has continued, it has now taken a backseat to my interest in leading broader
system-level improvements. This has required an evolution from leading local practice and system '
improvements to-identifying broader service gaps, program development and leading implementation of often
innovative yet always feasible solutions. For example, in response to the lack of services for perinatal SUD in
our community, I launched a prenatal SUG-program that continues to this day as the only service in our region.

These practical experiences informed fTiy doctoral studies and ongoing research, in which I utilize qualitative
and quantitative methods to discover strategies for achieving meaningful, sustained engagement with
undersen/ed, vulnerable rural populations. It is most rewarding to see the co-design in action, as when my

- dissertation research informed efforts of an interdisciplinary group of providers creating a long-term residential
addiction treatment,program for pregnant and parenting women with SUD. And now, my current roles offer a
unique way to apply my accumulated knowledge, skills and professional objectives. NNEPQIN, on the one
hand, provides continuing education on locally relevant improvement opportunities to its 50 hospital member
sites. The newly established NHPQC, on the other hand, is expanding involvement of stakeholders well
beyond hospitals with a focus on equity and creating a more inclusive approach. Our launch event in March
2024 attracted over 200 diverse NH stakeholders, including community-based health and social services, and
grassroots organizations representing BIPOC and immigrant communities, women and birthing people. My
current role positions me as the Principal.Investigator leading multiple aspects of our irivolvement in the
statewide work such as the CDC ERASE Maternal Mortality initiative,all focused on improving perinatal care
with.the aim of reducing maternal morbidity and mortality.

B. Positions, Scientific Appointments and Honors
2024-present Principal lnvestigator, Maternal Health Innovation Grant, HRSA award
2023-present Executive Director,, Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network

Director, New Hampshire Perinatal Quality Collaborative, Ai'MCIinical and
,  implernentatlon lead.Co-leadofNHMaternalMortalityReviewCommittee



Population Health, Dartmouth Health, Lebanon, NH
2019-present Clinician, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
2019-present Instructor, OB/GYN, Geisel School of Medicine, Lebanon, NH (application for assistant

professor pending)
2021-present Elected to Board of Directors. Northern Human Services, Carroll/ Coos County. NH
2022-2023 Public Health Consulting, North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH
2022-2024 _ Preventive Medicine Fellowship Leadership Team, Boston Medical Center. Boston, MA
2022-2023 Clinician. Women's Health/ Addiction. White Mtn Community Health Center, Conway, NH
2021-2022 Pre-doctoral Research Fellow, Implementation Science, HEALing Communities Study.

Boston Medical Center, Boston, MA
2021 Rural Health Policy Fellow, National Rural Health Association, Washington, DC
2020-2024 Elected to Board of Directors, Way Station, Conway, NH
2020-2023 Appointed Member, NH State Health Assessment/ Improvement Plan Task Force
2020-2022 Researcher, Families Flourish Northeast, Lebanon, NH •
2019 - Policy Group Fellow, Planned Parenthood of Northern New England, Burlington. VT
2018-2020 Program Development Consultant, Families Flourish Northeast. Lebanon, NH

,.2015-2017 Founder and Clinical Lead, New Life Prenatal ODD Program, Memorial Hospital, NH
2012-2017 Clinician, White Mountain Community Health Center, Conway, NH
2012-2017 Clinician, Women's Health, Memorial Hospital, North Conway, NH
2009-2012 Clinician, Concord Feminist Health Center, Concord, NH
2009-2012 Project Lead, The Business of Being Born: Classroom Edition, NY, NY
,2010-2012 Clinician and Practice Lead, Garrison Women's Health (Satellite), Wolfeboro, NH
2006-2010 Clinician, Garrison Women's Health Center, Dover, NH
2005-2006 Clinician, Avis Goodwin Community Health Center, Dover, NH
2001-2003 Clinician, National Women's Hospital, Auckland, N2
1999-2001 Clinician, freestanding birth center. Maternity Center, Bethesda, MD

Honors

2012 American College of Nurse Midwives: Media Award
2000 Georgetown University; MSN Midwifery, Cum Laude Honors
1997 New York University: BSN Nursing, Cum'Laude Honors

C. Contributions to Science

1. Co-Design Implementation with vulnerable populations

For a newly founded organization, designed and led implementation of an innovative co-design initiative that
critically-analyzed and integrated trauma-informed, patient-centered care principles into policies and
j^rocesses. Engaged 32 participants over an 18-month period while adapting, assessing and redirecting
approach within a continuously changing organizational and health care environment driven by the unfolding
pandemic. Developed and applied inclusive work process that modified the power dynamic between women in
recovery and medical providers. As lead researcher. managed team of research assistants through data
collection,and analysis, utilizing qualitative methods and implementation science framework. Secured HRSA
Maternal Child Health Award funding through Boston University. Produced two published articles, each filling a
gap in the literature evaluating co-design with pregnant and parenting women in varying stages of recovery.

2. Community coalitions enhancing Opioid Use Disorder service delvery, HEALing Communities Study
Managed state team conducting large-scale ,qualitative .analysis and utilizing quantitative data collection tools.
Created ethnographic observation database covering interpersonal dynamics, conversation flow and overall
culture of coalition as it evolved over the course of the study. Selected member of team creating research
protocols and tools for mixed method data collection across 64 sites in four states.

Separately, led a geographically dispersed team of researchers with diverse skillsets through multi-state,
mixed-method research on Community Advisory Boards. New findings revealed effective approaches for
building a cohesive CAB on a remote platform and strategies to engage community members with lived
expertiseofSUD in meaningful participation.

Complete List of Published Work in MyBibliography
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/mvncbi/lReB8MGowu09Jk/bibtiographv/puhlir/



Petrice A. DiDominic
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Work Contact:

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

Education:

MSN, South University, Savannah, Georgia, 2017
Major: Nursing Informatics
High Honors

BSN, South University, Savannah, Georgia, 2015
Major: Nursing

■  Summa Cum Laude

ADN, Palm Beach State College, Lake Worth,-Florida, 1993
• Major: Nursing

Honors

Professional Experience: ^

2024-CuiTent Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
Perinatal Outreach RN/Fopulation Health
Maternal Mortality Review Abstractor • /
.  ■ Contracted Abstractor for Maternal Mortality for New Hampshire

■  Request all medical records for cases in New Hampshire ' .
■  Abstract medical data for individual cases

■ MMRIA system: Complete all forms and create narrative
■  Consult experts related to specific cases ^
■  Prepare presentation for quarterly MMRC meetings
■  Present at quarterly MMRC meetings
■  Communicate with MMRC members"



Assist to finalize MMRC recommeiidations on cases

Complete recommendations in MMRIA
Perform quality chart audits in MMRIA

Close MMRIA cases

Collect data on deliverables for the MMRC recommendations
Reach out and perform Key Informant Interviews
Support and assist with applicable recommendations
Collaborate with DHHS

2017-2024 Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
Clinical Nurse Educator
Clinical Nurse Educator for the Birthing Pavilion (Labor and Delivery, Postpartum, Newborn
Nursery)

Lead Educator:

■  OB Fellowship Developer/Instructor
■ Neonatal Resuscitation Instructor for Provider and Instructors

■  Resolve Through Sharing Bereavement Education Instructor
■  Responding to Medical Emergencies Team Stepps Instructor
■  Emergencies in Clinical Obstetrics Course Instructor

Birthing Pavilion Onboarding Educator

■  Developed curriculum and taught a 40-hour OB Fellowship to serve new graduate-RN's
and new to OB RN's consisting of didactic and simulation education

■  Provide direc.t onboarding education for all new staff on the Birthing Pavilion, including
RN's and LNA's

■  Developed, reviewed and update policies and procedures for the Birthing Pavilion
■  Attend unit-based rounds to support RN practice and identify educational opportunities
■  Provide collaboration in patient care with interdisciplinary team of OB, MFM and

anesthesia providers.
■ Member of the Birthing Pavilion Quality team performing chart audits.
■  Perform chart audits for quality using risk matrix

■  Provide scheduling and ongoing support during the orientation process
■  Provide in the moment education for new staff and current support
■  Provide unit simulation sessions for high acuity, low occurrence events
■  Provide all staff with Neonatal Resuscitation Education/Certification, provide quarterly

classes

■  Provide staff with Resolve Through Sharing Bereavement Education sessions
■  Developed curriculum and taught a 12-hour Perinatal Surgical Technician didactic

education

■  Provide education to the PACU on recovery of the obstetrical patient
■  Provide unit-based education to volunteers in the "Cuddler Program"

V • -■3.



■  Provide Fetal Monitoring assessment support to RNs in the outpatient clinic setting
•  Support and develop annual unit base competencies
■  Perform ongoing unit-based assessments for gaps in education through attending rounds

and monitoring quality/incident reporting
■  Provided didactic, active learning strategies and simulation based educational sessions
■  Chair of the organizational rollout committee '
■ Member of the Chad quality council
■  FIT testing for all staff on.the Birthing Pavilion '

Central Onboarding Educator

■  Develop central onboarding didactic and skills-based curriculum for entire organization
■  . Provide onboarding didactic and skill/simulation instruction for entire organization
■  Provided support during .the organizational ECG education incentive through provided

classes and one on one remediation

■  Developed and supported the organization incentive to re-establish nursing competencies

2005-2017 Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
Charge Nurse
■  Charge Nurse in the patient care areas of Labor & Delivery, Antepartum, Postpartum and

Newborn Nursery

Ensure appropriate nurse to patient ratio assignments
Ensure staffing for the unit

Ensure appropriate nurse assignments^based on acuity and nursing experience
Resource nurse for all areas during the shift
Facilitate transfers from lower level acuity facilities
Provide high risk obstetrical care
Assist physicians and nurses in patient advocacy concerns
Assisted with "Baby Friendly" certification
Assisted with EPIC roll out

2001-2005 Presbyterian Hospital, Dallas, TX
Charge Nurse

Provide care for patients in a large Labor & Delivery unit (600 deliveries/month)
Charge Nurse duties to ensure appropriate nurse assignments based on acuity
Provide high risk obstetrical care
Assist physicians and nurses in patient advocacy concerns
Provide NeonatafResuscitation Provider Certification

Participated in hospital certification of "Magnet Status"

. ut r-



1995-2001 Lake Pointe Medical Center, Rowlett, TX

Staff Nurse

■  Provide care to low risk patients in Labor and Delivery, Postpartum and Nursery
■  Provide Neonatal Resuscitation Provider Certification

1993-1995 Baylor University Medical Center, Dallas, TX

Staff Nurse

■  Attended Intensive Care Internship'
■  Staff Nurse Bone Marrow Transplant Intensive Care Unit
■  Float to all Intensive Care Units

Skills and Qualifications:

Over 25 years of Obstetric/Newborn Nursing Experience
■  Thorough understanding of nursing curriculum and its role an organizational setting
■, Thorough understanding of evidence-based practice and its relation to the clinical setting
■  Thorough understanding and implementation of the Nursing Process related to nursing care

and education

■  Clear understanding and supportive of Famiiy-Centered-Care related to nursing care
■  Clear understanding of Baby Friendly initiative and certification
■  Clear understanding of simulation-based training
■  Simulation Instructor Education

New Hampshire Breastfeeding Course
■  Advanced Fetal Monitoring certification
■ Neonatal Resuscitation certification
■  Resolve Through Sharing Instructor certification
■  Level I and Focus Care newborn care

o Eat Sleep and Console o Phototherapy o Antibiotic therapy ,
■  Low risk and high-risk antepartum care
■  Low risk and high-risk labor & delivery care
■  Low risk and high-risk postpartum care
■  Perioperative/Intraoperative care of the maternal patient
■  Collaborative intensive care unit care of the maternal patient
■  Leadership roles: Charge Nurse, Clinical Nurse Educator
■  Nursing Informatics
■ Watchchild Application
■  EPIC electronic health record o Go Live

o Workload Acuity tool



■ Microsoft Word, PowerPoiat.„Excel, Visio, Publisher, Access

Professional Committees and Work Groups:
2017-2024, CHaD Quality Practice Council, DHMC, Lebanon, NH
2023-2024 Member of Shared Governance Practice and Informatics Council Member

Professional Organizations:

.  2010-Current, AWHONM Full Member

2019-Current Member ACOG

Academic Work:

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH
■  Completed 200 Practicum hours in Nursing Informatics under the supervision of a Nursing

•  Informatics Specialist '
o Assisted with EPIC Workload Acuity Tool data collection research, education and
rollout ; . '

o Assisted with EPIC Go Live of the main organization and a regional affiliate
organization

Presentations:

2019 NNEPQIN Conference, Simulation in the Regional Hospital Setting

Certifications:

2010-.Currenl, Certified Inpatienl Obstetric Registered Nurse (RNC-OB)
1997-Current, Neonatal Resuscitation Instructor (602-1641)

2021-Current, Certified in External Fetal Monitoring (C-

_EFM)

Current-BLS Certification



Awards:

2019 Arete Award for Nursing Excellence

Licenses:

New Hampshire Registered Nurse License Number 054970-21

References:

upon Request



Madalynne Bridge

Professional Experience
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center | Lebanon, NH July 2024 - Present
Population Health Coordinator Sr.

•  Manage and coordinate perinatal health data collection for Alliance.for Innovation on Maternal Health (AIM)
Patient Safety Bundle initiatives at 15 birthing hospitals throughout New Hampshire.

•  Plan and coordinate monthly webinars incorporating AIM initiatives through the New Hampshire Perinatal
Quality Collaborative (NHPQC) network.

•  Coordinate educational opportunities and quality improvement projects related to perinatal mental health
initiatives with state partners, hospital partners, and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs).

Consulting Solutions Inc. (CSI) j Chicago, IL (Remote) January 2021 - July 2024
Quality Control Specialist (March 2023 - July 2024)
•  Reviewed and edited Property Condition Assessment (PCA) engineering reports and provided feedback to

Engineering Department for process improvement and efficiency.
•  Supported Revisions Department and provided clients with updated documents in an efficient manner.
•  Managed and tracked inspector credentials and state-regulated radon test reporting requirements.

Project Analyst (January 2021 - February 2023)
•  Reviewed and analyzed environmental and state databases along with municipal and property information to

describe potential or existing environmental concerns within Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)
reports.

•  Communicated with clients regarding property issues of concern and report revision requests.

University of Wisconsin - Madison, Department of Pediatrics | Madison, W1 October 2019-December 2020
Medical Program Assistant

•  Managed and analyzed patient research data for American Family Children's Hospital Sedatipn Clinic.
•  Administrative lead)for Pediatric Resuscitation Review Committee and Education subgroup of critical care team.
•  Monitored reimbursements and completed administrative purchases.
•  Edited and formatted research manuscripts and publications.'
•  Assisted with basic statistical and data analysis for physician research projects.

ABC for Health | Madison, W1 . June 2018 - October 2019
Health Benefits Advocate
•  Assisted St. Mary's Hospital and UnityPoint Health Meriter Hospital patients through the application process for

Wisconsin Medicaid, Social Security Disabilit}', and other public benefit programs.
•  Assessed weekly reports of past metrics to manage team productivity.
•  Created material for Quarterly Reports to showcase the achievement of internal goals to hospital managers.

Education
University of Wisconsin - Madison | Madison, Wl May 2018
Bachelor of Science - History and Environmental Studies Honors in the Liberal Arts

Wisconsin in Washington DC "Study Away" Program Fall Semester, 2017
•  Social Media Intern at the Center for International Environmental Law - Worked with Communications staff to

create social media content for Facebook, Twitter, and Linkedln.

Skills ^
Microsoft Office Suite Writing, Reviewing, and Editing Reports
Google Suite Event Planning
Adobe Acrobat DC Communication

Organization and Time Management
,s.
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BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH
Provide the following Information for the Senior/key personnel and other significant contributors.

Follow this format for each person. DO NOT EXCEED FIVE PAGES.

NAME: Rebecca Ann Casey, PMHNP

eRA COMMONS USER NAME (credential, e.g., agency login):

POSITION TITLE: Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner

EDUCATION/TRAINING (Begin with baccalaureate or other initial professional education, such as nursing,
include postdoctoral training and residency training if applicable. Add/delete rows as necessary.)

INSTITUTION AND LOCATION
DEGREE

(if
applicable)

Completion
Date

FIELD OF.STUDY

Simmons College, Boston, MA BA 5/2005 Psychology

Yale University School Of Nursing, New Haven, CT MSN 5/2011 Psychiatry/Mental
Health Nursing

Harvard Vanguard Medical Associates, Boston, MA Fellow 8/2012 Behavioral Health

Fellow

A. Personal Statement

I am a psychiatric nurse practitioner at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and faculty member at Dartmouth
Geisel Medical School. I have spent six years working embedded in our obstetrics and gynecology department
providing direct mental healthcare to our perinatal population. I have extensive experience communicating
psychiatric needs to non-psychiatric providers so they can optimize treatments more successfully and
compassionately. I also provide proactive inpatlent perinatal consults that involve supportive therapy,
resources for substance use, and psychiatric medication recommendations. I am an educator of psychiatric
nurse practitioners and participated in a 2024 grand rounds at Dartmouth Health highlighting the importance of
quality clinical placements for psychiatric nurse practitioner trainees. I have taught a perinatal psychiatry
education initiative for the Alliance of Innovation for Maternal Health (AIM). I am a member of The International
Marc6 Society for Perinatal Mental Health and attend their annual meetings. I have pursued additional
subspecialty perinatal mental health training with Postpartum Support International (PSI), MGH Center for
Women s Mental Health as well as The National Curriculum in Reproductive Psychiatry where I am pursuing
certification in reproductive psychiatry. I have volunteered time to advocacy work with Maternal Mental Health
Alliance.

B. Positions, Scientific Appointments, and Honors

Dates• Institutlon/Oreanization Position/Title Related Information

9/2018-present Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center PMHNP Proactive mental health consultant &

embedded roles in perinatal

psychiatry/psycho-oncology
7/2015-8/2018. Penobscot Community Health Center

1

PMHNP Geriatric psychiatric consultant

7/2012-7/2015 Harvard Vanguard Medical Associates PMHNP Outpatient psychiatric provider

12/2011-8/2012 McLean Hospital Southeast PMHNP Inpatient psychiatric provider

8/2010-9/2011 Silver Hill Hospital RN Inpatlent RN



6/2005-7/2008 Dana Farber Cancer Institute Clinical Research Quality of life research
'■ Coordinator

HONORS
2005 Simmons College; BA Psychology, Com Laude Honors, graduate of Honors program
2006 Recognized by Dana-Farber Cancer Institute leadership for outstanding work In clinical research and
received performance bonus
2011 Yale University: MSN Psychiatry, Cum Laude Honors .
2022 Poster; PMHNP Role in Proactive Consult Psychiatry in the General Medical Hospital and Acute Hospital
won first place in clinical practice for the APNA 36th Annual Conference. ' .

C. Contributions to Science

Kornblith AB, Lan U Archer L, Partridge A, Kimmick G, Hudis C Winer E, Casey R, Bennett S, Cohen HJ, Muss HB.
Quality of life of older patients with early-stage breast cancer receiving adjuvant chemotherapy: a companion
study to cancer and leukemia group B 49907. J Clin Oncol. 2011 Mar 10;29{8):1022-8. dot;
1-0.1200/JC0.2010.29.9859. Epub 2011 Feb 7. PMID: 21300923; PMCID; PMC3068052.
httDs://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.Qov/21300923/



MARGARET nVIAGGIE^ COLEMAN. MPH

EDUCATION
Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH

Master of Public Health juj,g 2022
Delta Omega Honor Society, Social Justice Award Recipient
Unlversit)' of Southern California, Los Angeles, CA
Bachelor ofArts in Anthropology and Spanish June 2014
Magna cum laude, Phi Beta Kappa Honor Society

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Dartmouth Health, Lebanon, NH February'2022 - Present
AIM Data Specialist

•  Supporting NH birthing hospitals' implementation of perinatal care quality improvement safety bundles.
Population Health Coordinator

Implementing youth vaping prevention strategies in partnership with community champions.
Designing models for supportive hiring pathways to further Dartmouth Health's anchor mission.

DHMC Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) Strategy Consultant
Synthesized and reviewed data from community and clinical discussions for FY23-FY25 CHiP wnVing.
Engaged with clinical teams to verily data collection plans for initiatives included in FY23-FY25 CHIP.

DHMC Community Health Improvement Plan Strategy Intern
Facilitated clinical and community focus groups and interviews in response to FY21 Community Health
Needs Assessment (CHNA).

•  Performed qualitative analysis of CHNA feedback in Dedoose to inform the FY23-FY25 CHIP strategy.

Public Health Council of the Upper Valley, Lebanon, NH June 2022 - March 2023
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) Strategy Consultant

•  Supported creation of the PHC's regional CHIP by researching existing improvement models, reviewing
data from clinical and community teams, and facilitating discussions around identified priority health areas.

Early Childhood Consultant

Developed a best practice framework by which to assess regional services and supports for early childhood
wellbeing.

•  Collected and analyzed qualitative data obtained from inten'iews of early childhood scfwices.at the system,
provider, and caregiver level.

Generated an accessible report of findings for use in improvement planning and cross-sector collaboration.

Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH June 2022 - Present
Graduate Teaching Assistant, The Dartmouth Institute

Supporting TDl faculty in developing course materials, coaching students, and grading assignments.

Guldepost Montessori, Virtual School November 2020-July 2021
Lead Toddler Teacher

•  Designed and implemented a virtual Montessori curriculum for 20 remote students aged 2 to 4 years.
•  Collaborated with families to design at-home environments promoting children's growth and independence.

Minor Avenue Children's House, Seattle, WA January 2016 - July 2020
Lead Toddler Teacher

Designed and implemented a Montessori curriculum for 14 students aged 12 months to 3 years while
managing a staff of 3 assistants.

Authored individualized lesson plans promoting social-emotional, cognitive, and physical development.
Led parent conferences and authored content for family education events and newsletters.

,  • Created virtual learning materials, interactive videos, and parent education portal amidst COVID-19.



Stephanie Langlois

Education

Southern New Hampshire University: Manchester, NH
Masters in Business Administration awarded March 2024. GPA 4.0

Wheaton College: Norton, MA

Bachelor's Degree awarded May 2017, magna cum laude
Biology, BA; psychology minor. GPA: 3.82

Relevant Experience
Dartmouth Health New Hampshire Perinatal Quality Collaborative
Lebanon, NH

Senior Coordinator

FT: 40 hrs/week

•  Forming and maintaining 13 regional perinatal health coalitions throughout NH
•  Running webinars

•  Planning statewide annual maternal health summit >

Dartmouth College Center for Behavioral Health and Technology: Dissemination and
Implementation Core Lebanon, NH
Lead Study Coordinator March 2022-October 2023
FT: 40 hrs/week ^

• Developing and maintaining relationships with study stakeholders -
• Adapting the project to meet our study's strategic aims as the health field changes

rapidly

• Data monitoring and writing regulatory, reports
•  . Enrolling participants

• Developing, administering, and analyzing qualitative.interviews

Upper Valley Yoga , White River Junction,
VT . ■ . ^
Yoga Teacher September 2022-December 2023
PT: Two classes per week

Dartmouth Hitchcock Neurology Research Department: Lebanon, NH
Research Coordinator 11 August 2021-March 2022
FT: 40 hrs/week • -

. • Maintaining regulatory documents for both PI initiated and sponsor initiated studies



• Collaborating between various stakeholders in the research
•  Patient recruitment ,
• Scheduling and conducting patient research visits
•- Conducting a wide variety of research assessments-with neurology patients

DeKalb Community Service Board via service agreement with Columbia University In
NYC: Decatur, GA

Research Assistant September 2018-August 2021
FT: 40 hrs/week

• Recruited and interviewed participants for a research study
• Managed data according to NIH guidelines
• Wrote and contributed to publications '
• Helped design research plans and specific aims for upcoming study proposals
•  Researched and wrote sections for grant proposals to NSF, NIJ, LJAF, NIMH, including

budget and project timelines
• Administered semi-structured interviews about opinions of information sharing systems

. and thought processes surrounding decision to participate in Linkage.System study
• Conducted qualitative analysis including developing analysis codes of interview data for

publication

• Mediated working relationships for recruitment purposes with employees from nine
mental health clinics throughout Georgia

.• Performed structured interviews with patients including but not limited to: SCID ■
substance use modules, Fagerstrom Test for Nicotine Dependence, Adverse Childhood
Experiences questionnaire. Trauma Experiences Checklist, and Criminal Sentiments
Scale

•  Input incoming data and performed data quality checks
• Maintained and submitted quarterly regulatory documents for 2 IRBs and NIMH

CVS Pharmacy: Atlanta, GA
Nationally Certified Pharmacy Technician May 2017-May 2020
FT: 40 hrs/week for 1.5 years then PT 15 hrs/week

•  Prepared medications for prescriptions, transcribed prescriptions into computer system,
input insurance information, and negotiated coverage issues

• Aided patients and answered questions pertaining to prescriptions or insurance.
^  coverage.

Educated.patients on basic usage information for common "fast mover" medications '

Research Projects

Lead Study Coordinator for MMORE Study: Mindful Moms In Recovery: Yoga-based
mindfulness relapse prevention for women with opioid use disorder: Dartmouth College

Lead Research Coordinator for the following projects at Dartmouth Hitchcock:
• Healey ALS Platform Trail: Regimens A-E



• Alleviate: Eptinezumab for Episodic Cluster Headache
• Chronicle: Eptinezumab for Chronic Cluster Headache
• Perseus: Primary Progressive Multiple Sclerosis (PPMS) Study of Bruton's Tyrosine

■  Kinase (BTK) Inhibitor Tolebrutinib (SAR442168)
o  L-Serine for ALS

Research Assistant for Linkage System: Bloethlcs Supplement: Columbia University
(Supplement; 3R01MH117191-03S1)

N

Research Assistant for: A Trial of a Police-Mental Health Linkage System for Jail
Diversion and Reconriection to Care: Columbia University (NIMH 5R01MH117191)

Publications

(In progress. To be published in 2025) Langiois, Stephanie. "The "Gut-Brain Connection" and
the Microbiome. Food, Nutrition, and Mental Health, by Michael Compton, American Psychiatric
Association Publishing, 2025.

Oluwatoyin. A.. 2ern, A.. Langiois, S., Compton. M., (2023) Adverse Childhood Experiences
and Arrest Rates among Individuals with Serious Mental Illnesses. Journal of American

Academy of Psychiatry and the Law, 6o\: ̂ 0.29^5Q/JAAPl.220096-22

Compton. M.T.. Graves. J., Zern, A.. Pauselli. L., Anderson, S.. Ashekun. 0.. Ellis. S.. Langiois,
S., Pope. L., Watson. A:C. and Wood. J.. (2022). Characterizing Arrests and Charges Among
Individuals With Serious Mental Illnesses in Public-Sector Treatment Settings. Psychiatric
Services, httPs://dol.orQ/10.1176/appi.ps.20200Q581

I

Pope. LG., Langiois. 8., Warnock. A., Perry, T.H., Anderson, 8.; Boswell, T.. Compton. M.T.,
Watson, A., Applebaum. P., Dixon, L.(2022) Information Sharing across Mental Health Service
Providers and Criminal Legal System Stakeholders: Perspectives of People with Serious Mental
Illness and their Family Members. Journal of Social Science and Medicine, 307

■doi.org/10.1016/j.socscimed.2022.115178.

Compton. M.T.. Zern, A..Langiois, S., Ashekun, 0. (2022) Associations Between Adverse
Childhood Experiences and Tobacco, Alcohol, and Drug Use Among Individuals with Serious
Mental Illnesses in Public-Sector Treatment Settings. Community Mental Health Journal 1-
7.https://doi.org/10.1007/s10597-022-01014-9.

Langiois, 3., Pauselli. L.. Anderson. S., Ashekun, O., Ellis, S., Graves. J., Zern. A., Gaffney. E.,
Shim, R. S.. & Compton, M. T. (2020). Effects of perceived social status and discrimination on
hope and empowerment among individuals with serious mental illnesses. Psychiatry Research,
286. https://doi.Org/10.1016/j.psychres.2020.112855



Langlois, S., Zern, A., Anderson. S., Ashekun. O.. Ellis,.S., Graves. J. S., & Compton, M. T. '
(2020). Subjective social status, objective social status, and substance use among individuals
with serious mental illnesses. Psychiatry Research, 293.
https;//doi.org/10.1016/j.psychres.2020.113352

Langlois, 3.. Zern. A., Kelley, M., Compton. M.T. (2020) Adversity in childhood/adolescence
and premorbid tobacco, alcohol, and cannabis use among first-episode psychosis patients.
Early Intervention in Psychiatry, doi: 10.1111 /eip. 13086.

Conference Presentations
Compton, M.T., Pauselli. L., Langlois, S., & Zern. A. (Oct. 2019). Locked up: What
patients with serious mental illness are arrested for and charged with and what
psychiatrists can do about it. American Psychiatric Association IPS conference.
Estimated participants: 150

Honors/Awards
•  Phi Beta Kappa
• Tri-Beta Biological Honors Society .
• Dean's List 2013-2017

• Clinton v. Maccoy Prize in Ecology 201.7
• Wheaton Foundation Grant for Personal Research Fall 2016
• Mars Career Exploration Fellow Summer 2016
.• Balfour Scholar Summer 2015

o  Suzanne Fogelson Golden 67", Fellow Spring 2015
• Community Merit Scholar 2014

Certifications
• CITI certified for Basic Human Research and Good Research Practices
•  HIPPA certified

• Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI)
•  Basic Life Support (BLS)
• Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)
• Registered yoga teacher

Computer Program Skills
SPSS. Dedoose, RedCAP. Avatar, LISREL, Image J. BTV, Microsoft Word.Excel. PowerPoint.
Hootsuite, Mendeley, Archivist's Toolkit. Dropbox. I-expense.

Volunteer Experience
Phoenix, Recovery Oriented Community Yoga Teacher September 2022-present
•  I teach one 1 hour class per month for an organization that provides free exercise

classes to people in recovery. Changed to monthly in March 2023.



Kilton Library, Community Yoga Teacher June 2022-present
• One hour yoga class every week that is open to anyone in the local community.



EMILY BRAYTON

SKILLS

Empathy, kindness, compassion, effective communication, collaboration, problem-solving and the
elevation of others.

EXPERIENCE
/  ■ • " '

Perinatal Outreach Nurse

Population Health

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center Lebanon, NH November 2024-Present

Responsibilities: coordinate effective and impactful transport conferences with area hospitals who share
patients through obstetric and/or neonatal transport due to patient acuity; create and foster
relationships within our region to support patient-centric care; creating pertinent and timely educational
opportunities through the Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network based on
regional needs.

Promoting high-quality. Inclusive and respectful obstetric and neonatal care through education, support
and relationship building.

Unit Nurse Manager

Birthing Pavilion and Lactation Services

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center Lebanon, NH ^ April 2017 - September 2024

Responsibilities: overseeing daily operations; managing staff including performance management,
payroll and policy and procedure changes; increasing the ability of both services for patient access,
overseeing compliance and quality assurance; maintaining unit needs and ensuring the'team has
products and equipment with appropriate training to perform their job duties to their highest ability.

Promoting a successful team dynarriic through advocacy, education and interpersonal skills.

Clinical Nurse - Critical Care

Birthing Pavilion

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center Lebanon, NH July 2009-April 2017

Responsibilities: inpatient care of acute obstetric and newborn patients; thorough documentation for
care delivered; Charge Nurse coverage including: flow of the unit, backing up of deliveries, in the



moment problem-solving for staffing and acuity changes, support of all staff working for the shift for
processes.

Promoting a successful team dynamic through communication, support and teamwork.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science - Nursing
Franklin Pierce University Rindge, NH

Associate of Science - Nursing
River Valley Community College Claremont, NH

November 2017

May 2009

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network
Steering Committee

2023-2024

Work in a regional setting to create content for educational opportunities, standardize policies for those in
the tri-state region providing perinatal care, and to provide medical center expertise while working with
those from community and critical access hospitals to improve the care of pregnant patients and their
newborns.

Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses

New Hampshire Chapter
2018-present

Work with other leaders in the state of New Hampshire to share expertise, create educational
opportunities to those in the state providing care to the perinatal population, and share resources in the
state when needed.

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATION MEMBERSHIP

Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses 2015-present

CERTIFICATIONS

American Heart Association Basic Life Support

Neonatal Resuscitation Program

Child Passenger Safety Technician

Expiration date: 02/28/2026

Expiration date: 05/31/2025

Expiration date: 11/28/2025

Additional references available upon request



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Maternal Mortality Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement:

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Bosak Population Health Program Dir. $10,403.00 $144,248.00

Petrice DiDominic
Nurse Pop Health Perinatal

MMRC Case Abstractor
$89,136.00 $89,136.00



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

AIM and Maternal Child Health Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

'  Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

ANNUAL

NAME JOB TITLE
AMOUNT-PAID ANNUAL

FROM THIS SALARY

CONTRACT
Julie Bosak Pop Health Program Dir $17,338 $144,248
Madeline Bridge Pop Health Coordinator $64,540 $64,540 .
Rebecca Casey APRN II $5,532 $98,412
Margaret Coleman Pop Health Coordinator .$11,742 $58,710
Stephanie Langlois Pop Health Coordinator $33,733 $67,465
Emily Brayton RN Pop Health Perinatal $14,113 $94,087



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Maternal Mortality Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the'terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Bosak Population Health Program Dir. $7,629.00 $144,248.00

Petrice DiDominic Nurse Pop Health Perinatal
MMRC Case Abstractor $91,810.00 $91,810.00

j



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

AIM and Maternal Child Health Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME' JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT,PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Bosak Pop Health Program Dir $20,112 $144,248
Madeline Bridge Pop Health Coordinator $66,476 $66,476
Rebecca Casey APRN II $5,532 $101,364
Margaret Coleman Pop Health Coordinator $12,094 $60,471
Stephanie Langlois Pop Health Coordinator $34,744 . $69,489
Emily Brayton RN Pop Health Perinatal $14,536 $96,910



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Maternal Mortality Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Bosak Population Health Program Dir. $6,491.00 $144,248.00

Petrice DIDominic
Nurse Pop Health Perinatal
MMRC Case Abstractor -$98,347.00 $98,347.00



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

AIM and Maternal Child Health Program
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Bosak Pop Health Program Dir .  $20,916 $144,248
Madeline Bridge Pop Health Coordinator $71,209 $66,476
Margaret Coleman Pop Health Coordinator • $12,955 $62,285
Stephanie Langlois Pop Health Coordinator $37,218 $71,574
Emily Brayton RN Pop Health Perinatal $15,571 $99,817

/



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF IffiALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISWN OF PVBUC HEALTH SER^^CES

Lorl>V.-VVe«ver-~ — -- —29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, Nir-03301 0A4i
CommUsIoncr 60.3^271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Exi. 4i501 i JUn A-O £«£♦

Fax:603-27M827 TDD Access: 1-000-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
litn N. Witt

Director

June 10/2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the :Horiorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION
I

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services; to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing
business as "Dartmouth-Hitchcock") (yc#177160), Lebanon, NH to expand the scope of services
to support the Department's Matemal'Mortality Review Committ^ and continue participation in
the Alliance on Irihovatioh in Maternal Health, by increasing the price limitation by $269^007 from
$759,782 to $1,028,789 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30.2025, effective
upon Governor .and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 10, 2020; itepi #12,
arhended on June 16, 2021, item #34. amendment on March .9. 2022. Iterri #17, and most
recently amehded.on May 31,2023, item #28. ' ,

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2p24.and 2025, vyjth
the authority to adjust.budget line item's within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fi^lyears through the Budget Office, if h^ed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires.ali amendments to agr^ments
previously approved as sole source to be Identified as sole source. The Coritractdr's New England
Perinatal Quality Improvement Network is identified in RSA 132:29-31 as the Department's
designated partner in the Maternal Mortality Review Committee and Alliance on Innovation in
Maternal Health and Child Health grants.

The purpose of this request is to modify the scope of services to support the Maternal
Mortality Review Committee' and Alliance on Innovation in Maternal Health. The .Contractor will
facilitate family interviews to inform case reviews, increase the participation of subject matter
experts (includirig maternal health psychologists), and distribute Committee recomrriendations to
prganizatipns supporting those with lived experience, including substance use .disorders and
pe'rihatal mental health conditions. The Contractor will also expand its coliaboratlon with the
Alliance on Innovation In Maternal Health by Implementing evidence-based .patient safety
bundles, 'which is a structured way, to improve the quality of healthcare provided to pregnant'
woman Impacted by opioid.use arid other substances.



.His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The Department will monitor services by:

. •—^—•—Reviewing_Materna)_Mortality_iReview_.Committee - recommendations.-and_.their.
distribution to organizations serving populations of women who are overly represented
in the mortali^ cases. .

•  Ensuring the integration of family interviews Jnto'case material as. appropriate and
through presentation of cases by abstractors.

•  Ensuring the appropriate rvumber of subject matter experts are added onto the
Maternal Mortality Review Committee.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Departmentwill be^unable
to~implement additional activities intended to reduce maternal mortality and morbidity in the state.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.478. FAIN NU58DP00693
and,ALN 9i3.110. FAIN A3049997.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. !.

Respectfully submitted,

for:

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruicea' Miuioii U to join communities andjamilies
in prouidingopportunities for citizens to ochicoe health and independence.



FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

Mary Hitchcock Mamorlal Hoaptlal • Mstemal Mortality
AMENDMENT #4 SFY 24 and 25

05-9S-SO<902010>S4S70000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPTOF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTHfTlON
MATERNAL MORTAUTY

FUNDER: DHHS. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION
CFOAF: 83.47S FAIN 9: NU58OP006693

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Ftacal

Yaar

Claas/

Account Claas Tltla Job NumiMr

Currant

Modlflad

Budget

Increesa

(Dacraaso)
Amount

Ravlaed Modlfldd

Budgot

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sarv 00000476 566.276 SO 568.278

2021 102-500731

Contracufor
Prog Sarv 90060479 568.278 50 568.276

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Sarv 00080478 568.276 50 566.278

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Proa Sarv ■ 00000478 -568,278 SO 566.276

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

ProgServ - 90060478 . 566.278 525.014 591.292

" 2025 102-500731

ContractsTor
Prog Sarv' 00060478 566.276 5110.473 $178,751

SUBTOTAL 5407,666 5135,467 5543.155

05-9S-902010<4526000b HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND MUTRmON
MCH DATA LINKAGE

FUNOER: DHHS. HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
CFOAf: 03.110FAIN#: HI8MC00033

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

' Fiscal

Yoar

Claas /

Account . Class TTtIa Job Number

Currant

Modified

Budgot

fncraasa

(Decraasa)
Amount

Ravfsad Modlflad

Budgat

2022 074-500569

Grants for Pub'

AaslendRel - 90060125 552,114 .  50 552.114

2023 07^500580
Grants for Pub

Aast and Ral 9006012S 50 50 50

2024 074-500569

Grants for Pub

Assi and Rei 90060125 50 50 50

2025 074.500569

Grants for Pub

AssiandRel' 96080125 50 50 50
SUBTOTAL 552.114 50 552.114.

OS-95-90-S02010-S1900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS; PUBUC HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTO AND NUTRITION,
MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH

FUNDER DHHS. HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
CFDA0 93.991 FAINF; B04M,C45230 and B04MC47432
100% Faderal Funda

Flacal

Yaar

Class! ,

Account Class Tlllo Job Numt>cr

Curreni

Modinod

Budgot

:  Incroasa

(Dacraaso)
Amount

Rovlsod Modified

-Budgot

2023 074-500569

Grants for Pub

AssI end Ral 90004009 St 00.000 50 5100.000

2024- 074-S00569

Grants for Pub

Atst and Ral 00004000 5100.000 50 5100.000
2025 074.500569 Asst and Ret 90004009 5100.000 .50 5100.000

SUSTOTAL- 5300.000, 50 5300.000

05-9S'90-90Z010<40&30000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATLH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBUC HEATLH DIV. BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION
ALLNCEINNOV MAT HLTH-AJM

FUNOER: DHHS, HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
CFOAff: 03.110 FAIN«: A3049997

100%FEOERALFUNDS

'Vef>dor #177100

fiscal
Yoar

Class/

Account Class TTtIo Job Number

Curront

ModlTiod

Budget

incrcaao

(Decraasa)

Amourit

Revised Modified

Budgot

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Ser\1cas 90080121 50 522.252 522.252

2025. 102-500731 Program 90080121 50 5111.268 5111.268

SUBTOTAL; 50 5133,520 5133,520
TOTAL: 5759,762. 5269.007 51.028.789-



OocuSIgn EnvelopeJO: O1E3457B-8A67-432C-A985-CFOFC0FC0DB7

State of New Hampshire
.  Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 •

This Amendment to the .Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Elimiriate Maternal Mortality contract is
-by-and-between-the State-of. New Hampshire,-Department_of-Health-and-Human-SerVices. ("State" or ...3.
"Department") and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock

. Clinic (collectively doing business as "Dartmouth-Hrtchcock") ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 10. 2020 (Item #12). as amended on June 16, 2021 (Item #34). March 9. 2022 (Item #17) and
most, recently amended on May 31. 2023 (Item #28) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon'written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and. Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1,8. Price Lirnitation. to read:

$1,028,789 ^ ^

2. Modify Exhibit A - Arriendment #1, Scope of Services by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit A -
Amendment #4. Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 2. to read:
■ 2. ■ This" agreement is funded by 100%'Federal Funds:

2.1. 53% Federal Funds from the Preventing Maternal Deaths: Supporting Maternal
Mortality Review Committees Grant, as awarded on July 20. 2023. by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for .Disease Control &
Prevention. Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.478; Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) NU58DP006693.

2.2. 5% Federal Funds from the New Hampshire MCH Data Linkage Project, as awarded
on November 16. 2023. by the U.S.'Department of Health and-Human Services,
Health Resources and Services Administration. Maternal and Child Health Federal
Consolidated Programs. ALN 93.110. FAIN H1800033.

2.3. 29% Federal Funds from, the- Maternal and Child .Health Federal Consolidated
Programs, as awarded on October 19. 2021. by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration. ALN 93.991. FAIN
B04MC45230 and as awarded on October 27,2022 by the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration ALN 93 991'
FAIN B04MC44732. , " ' '

2.4 13% Federal Funds from the Alliance for Innovation'on Maternal Health State
Capacity Program, as, awarded on September 5, 2023, by.the U.S". Department of
Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration ALN
93,110, FAIN A3049997.

4. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 4. Subsection 4.1 to
read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as
specified in Exhibit B-1. Budget through Exhibit B-7 Budget-Amendment #4.

Maiy Hitchcock Memorial Hospital A-S-1.3 Contractor initials^^.^^^^
SS-2020tDPHS-11-MATERN-01.A04 ■Page1of4
v7.12.'23 ' . .. ^



OocuSIgn Envelope 10; C1E3457S-8A87-432C-A985-CFDFC0FC0DB7

5. Modify.Exhibit B-6, Budget - Amendment #3 by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit B-6 Budget
Amendment #4, which Is attached hereto and incorporated'by reference herein. ̂

6. Modify Exhibit B-7. Budget - Amendment #3 by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit B-7 Budget
Amendment #4, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Mary Hitchcock'Memorial Hospilal A-S-1.3 - Conlraclor lnltia!s_

SS-2020-DPHSr11-MATERN-01-A04 Page 2 of 4' Dale
v7.12.23



OocuSfgn Envetope 10; C1E3457B-6A67-432C-A985-CFOFC0FC0DB7

1... . conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in fulrforce and'effect. This-Amendmenl shall-be'effertive-iirinn r^n\/e»mAr Qnw-r>oiinVji.ors,N..rv.,-.i_:-Amendmenlshail-be'effective-uponGovemorand-Council-approvalr

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
. Department of Health and Human Services

6/10/2024

Date

~-(>»cuSlgn«d bj:

Title;
Director - dphs

6/10/2024

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing business as
."Dartmouth-Hitchcock") '

- ObcuStgntd by:

Merrens

Title: chief clinical officer

s I

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

SS-2020-DPHS-.11 -MATERN-01-A04
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,' substance, and

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL ■ -

rOoeuSlgnod by;-

6/10/2024

Date- '■."■iifuarmiiuamcee-
Vlame: Robyn Guari no

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ■ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Maty Hitchcock Memoiial Hospital A-S-1.3

'SS-2020-bPHS-1-1 -MATERN-01 •A04 Pace 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

r.

Scope of Services

1. Provisions-Applicable to-AII-Services-(Maternal Mort'ality Review eommittee-—
and Alliance on Innovation on Maternal Health)

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state "court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subreclpieht, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300. • ■

2. Scope of Work (Maternal Mortality Review Committee)

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure one (1) FTE, Maternal Mortality Abstractor/Co-
Maternal Mortality Review .Committee . (MMRC) Facilitator whose
responsibilities, in .conjunction with the Department and In accordance with RSA
132:29-31 and He-P 3013\ Include, but are not limited to;

y'

2.1.^. Collecting maternal death Information as identified In RSA 132:29-31;

2.1.2. Abstracting maternardeath cases within two (2) years of death ; and
'  :'2.1.3. Reviewing maternal death cases within two (2) years of death.

2.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department In the maintenance as identified In
the RSA 132:29-31, of a multidisclplinary NH Maternal Mortality Fievlew
Cornmittee (MMRC) In accordance with and members essential to the category
of cases being reviewed. »

2:3. the Contractor shall attend and co-facilitate a minimum of four (4) MMRC
meetings each State Fiscal Year of the contract period. This includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.1. Obtain and keep current signed NH MMRC Confidentiality
Agreements and provide the Department with copies.

2.3.1.2. Keep a current list of all NH MMRC Committee Members after
each NH MMRC quarterly Meeting and update this list on the
Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network
(NNEPQIN) website.

2.3.1.3. Provide the Department with the updated list of NH MMRC
members after each NH MMRC quarterly-meeting. ■

2.4. The Contractor shall provide completed Decision Forms with recommendations
according to the "Who. What, When" format to the Department's Maternal
Mortality Review Coordinator within twenty-one (21) days pf each meeting.

'OS

' hllps://www.nh.gov/glancc/lavvs-rulcs.htm i.'
Mary Hitchcxjck Memorial Hospital Exhibit A - Amendment s Contractor Initials

SS-2020-OPHS-11 -MATERN-01-A04

Rev.09/06/18
Page -1 of 12 Date

6/10/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillarice to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

Exhibit A-Amendment #4 .

2.5. In conjunction with the Department, the Contractor shall;

2:5:1—eonduct-arecordreview-in-accordance-wilh-RSA-1-3-2:-29=31:31-in-order'
to atDstract data and information related to NH maternal death cases.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall enter abstracted maternal mortality case data and
information into the Maternal Mortality Review Information Application
(MMRIA) hosted by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) within one
(1) month of receiving the infomriation from the Department's Maternal
Mortality Review Coordinator the Contractor must: ■

2.;5.2.1. Follow the guidelines within the Department's Data Sharing
=  Agreement (DSA) 2019-008 with the CDC for MMRIA.

2.5.2.2. Collaborate with the Department on reviewing and renewing
.'the DSA with the CDC as appropriate-

2.5.3. The Contractor shall attend abstractor trainings conducted by the CDC.
2.5.4. The Contractor shall, as part of the abstraction process, perform Key

Informant Interviews as such:

'•-i 2.5.4.1 Acquire Informed Consent from Key Informant within 2 years
of the decedent's date of death.

2.5.4.2. Provide Department decided Incentives to participants of Key'
'  ■' Informant Interviews.-

2.5.4.3. Present Key Informant Interview information to the NH
^  MMRC during case review meetings.

2.5.4.4. Enter Key Informant Interview information into MMRIA.
2.6. The Contractor shall maintain a Recommendations Work Group, consisting of a

multidisciplinary group of individuals. The Contractor shall:
2.6.1 Facilitate, in-person or virtual meetings of the Recommendations Work

Group at least twice a year to review and discuss plans for implementing
the recommendations of the NH MMRC.

2.6.2. Utilize information provided by. the Recommendations Work Group to
inform action on no less than two (2) projects each year of the contract
period. =

2.6.3. Develop the necessary educational content, and materials required to
implement the two referenced in Section 2.6.2. . '

2.7. The Contractor shall attend monthly project meetings with the Department as
scheduled by the Department.

.  2.8. The'Contractor shall conduct monthly Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to
Eliminate Maternal Mortality.(ERASE) Maternal Mortality/Alliance for Innovation
on Maternal Health (AIM) educational vyebinars representative. of. the

Mary Hilchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A - Amendment #4 . Contractor- Initials

SS.2020-DPHS-11.MATgRN-01-A04 ' Page 2of 12 Datp
Rev.09/06/18 ^



OocuSJgn Envelope ID: C1 E3457S^67-432C-A985^FOFCOPCOOB7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality
'  ■ Exhibit A-Amendment #4

j) educational cpritent and materials developed which may include, but is not
^  l'it'Jjeiltp.,.Ppwpr^oJn,t.pxej5jep.ta

' 2.9. The Contractor shall attend quarterly meetings with the CDC as scheduled by
the Departrhent.

3. Scope of Work (Alliance for Innovation (AIM) on Maternal Health) *

3.1. The Contractor.shall provide the following:
3.1.1. One (1) PTE, one full time data specialist whose responsibilities, in

conjunction with the Department, include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Collecting AIM process, structure and outcome measures from
participating birthing hospitals as defined'on the data collection
plans for each patient safety bundle being implemented.

3.1.1.2. This data will include, but not be limited to:-

3.1.1.2.1. Providing technical assistance to each participating
birthing hospitals on data collection, visualization of
collected data and navigating the AIM dashboards.

3.1.1.2.2. Developing data collection tools utilizing a;,HIPAA.
compliant platform approved by the Department to'
verify the baseline mid-term' -and ' completion
surveys.

3.1.1.2.3. -Submitting to IaIM on a quarterly basis collected
)  data on AIM measures associated with the

implemented bundles.

-  3.1.1.2.4. Develop and disseminate actionable, bundle-
,  .specific data visualizations t)ased on data collected

from participating birthing hospitals and -other
relevant stakeholders.

/  3.1.1.2.5. Follow all terms and conditions related to use of the
AIM "Licensed Materials" as listed in the Data Use
Agreement between the American College of
Obstetricians and Gynecologists (AGOG) and the

, Dfepartment, in Paragraph 2 and 3(a) on page G-3.
and Paragraph 3(f) and 3(g) on page G-4. arid
shall othen/vise abide by all terms and conditions of
the Data-Use Agreement relating to use'of the
agog data base and Licensed Materials as
described therein. The Parties acknowledge that as
of this date, the.Data Use Agreement has not been
-finalized arid reference is made to the provisions ■

-v ■ contained in the draft"dated May 24, 2024 as.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment #4' Conifactorlnitials

SS-2020-PPHS-11 -MATERN-OI •A04 Page 3 of 12 DatP S/10/2024
Rev.09/06/18
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

'  provided to the Contractor. To, the extent the
:——exe.Quted p_a,ta Us.e: Agreement contains.

substantive differences to the referenced
provisions, this section shall , not apply until the
Contractor agrees in writing to comply with the
referenced provisions. The Department will provide
a copy of the executed Data Use Agreement to the
Contractor.

3.1.2. 0.1 PTE AIM clinical lead, whose responsibilities, include, but are not
limited to: . •

3.1.2.1. Implementing, facilitating and/or setting up trainings on clinical
.  screenings.

3.1.2.2. Participation in technical assistance with birthing hospitals and
other perinatal health providers.

3.2. The Contractor shall implement AIM patient safety bundles in NH birthing
hospitals by:

3.2.1. Inviting and engaging all NH birthing hospitals to participate in selected
AIM patient safety bundles.

3.2.2. Conducting an initial baseline survey, prior to any patient.safety bundle
implementation, with all obstetric providers across perinatal care
pathways to understand their capacity to implements new patienf safety
.bundle and to determine perceived needs for education to facilitate
implementation practices of the selected AIM patient safety bundles.

3.2.3. Developing and maintaining a-HIPAA compliant database approved by
the Department for participating birthing hospitals to use in reporting de-"
identified data associated with each AIM patient safety bundle's
structure, process and outcome measures.

3.2.4. The Contractor must have individual data sharing agreements with each
^  participating birthing hospital.
3.2.5. Registering participating birthing hospitals on a HIPAA compliant

platform approved by the Department for the contractor's AIM data
center and providing technical assistance on collecting data using a
HIPAA compliant platform arid navigating the AIM dashboards.

3.2.6. The contractor must develop and maintain a database in the vendor
hosted HIPAA compliant platform approved by the Department as
referenced in 3.2.5.

3.2.7. Conducting monthly trainings to all birthing hospitals participating in the
implementation of the AIM patient safety measures. Trainings, should

I:': include the 5R Framework of each patient bundle (Readiness,
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Recognition and Prevention, Response, Reporting and Systems
■ -Le.aming and_Be.spe_c.tfwl,Jiiuitab.le_a_nd3_upppd^^^^

3.2.8. Performing surveys, mid^term and end of project, to evaluate the birthing
hospital's progress in implementing the patient safety bundle in their
perinatal care networks.

-  3.3. The Contractor shall engage Federally Qualified Health Care Centers {FQHCs)
and other Community Health Centers to improve their capacity for providing
evidence-informed best practices for pregnant and postpartum people. The
•Contractor shall;

_  3.3.1. Identify and invite FQHCs and Community Health Centers (CHCs) to
participate in monthly and quarterly AIM webinar meetings/conferences
and trainings related to AIM patient safety bundles.

3.3.2. Conduct trainings with FQHCs and CHCs on screening and initial
interventions for prenatal and postpartum mental health needs,
including assessing and intervening for suicide risk.

3.3.3. Link participating hospitals with participating FQHCs to increase referral
*  ■ resources for conditions such.as mental health. '

3.4. The Contractor shall increase capacity for AIM data collection and reporting
arihongst participating birthing hospitals by:

(

3.4.1. Completion of data sharing agreements between the Contractor, and ail
participating birthing hospitals.

3.4.2. Training of hospital teams regarding accurate collection of AIM bundle
measures, as well as best practice in collection of demographic data.,

3.4.3. Giving participating birthing hospitals their own aggregated hospital level
data on number of birthing people with conditions related to the selected
patient safety bundles.

3.4.4. Providing resources and training for data entry personnel in each
birthing hospital to improve completeness and quality of Race Ethnicity
and Language (REaL) data collected and reassess data quality.

3.5. The Contractor shall conduct monthly Maternal Mortality/AIM educational
webinars representative of the educational content and materials developed
which may include, but is not'limited to, PoweVPoinl presentations.

•  . 3.5.1. The Contractor shall provide all training materials developed through the
AIM initiative to the Department including recordings of oral
presentations or upload to the public-facing website for future access.
The Department will review all training materials in collaboration with
the contractor before public facing and submission to AIM.

{

3.6.' The Contractor shall submit to the Department quarterly reports upon requested
by the Department AIM program process, structure, and outcome measures that
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are associated with the implemented AIM bundles utilized in the
.statjs/junsdic.tipn. ' .•

3.7. With the Department, the Contractor should participate in the writing and
submission of AIM bi-annual reports to Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA)/AIM. These shall Include, but not be limited to:

3.7.1. A summary of all achieved objectives, activities and measures of
evaluation for each activity as identified in NH's AIM Capacity grant
workplan.

3.7.2. A description of challenges and barriers.

3.7.3. Identification of objectives not met, and activities not implemented fully.
3.7.4. A summary of the dissemination of AIM work such- as measures

collected for each AIM patient safety bundle to all relevant stakeholders.

3.7.5. The AIM impact statements.

3.8. The Contractor shall attend all HRSA/AIM training and meetings, such as, but
not limited to:

■■ ^ 3.8.1. Attendance at the HRSA/AIM Data Community of Learning, the AIM
monthly calls and the HRSA quarterly calls.

4. Confidentiality •, * .

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure any disclosure of identifiable confidential health.
SUD or mental health inform'alion or data adheres to state and federal laws and
regulations relating to safeguarding the confidential information, which includes,
but may npt.be limited to:

4.1.1. The Health Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), as
amended in 2024.

4.1.2. 45-CFR 160-164.

4.1.3. 42 CFR Part 2 for Protection of-Substance misuse data, as amended in.
2024:

4.1.4. NH Administrative Rule He-M 2019 for Mental Health Data.

4.2. The Contractor shall not collect, receive, store, or manage confidential data
related to the scope'of work and deliverables identified in this Exhibit A unless
or until the parties have agreed in writing to a Data Sharing Plan that includes,
but is not limited to the following:

4.2.1. The purpose of the data exchange:

4.2.2. Description of the Department's data elements to be disclosed;

4.2.3. Source or Systems of Records;

4.2.4. ■ Number of Records Involved and Operational Time Factors;

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment iM Contractor Initials
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4.2.5. Data Elements Involved;
^  ̂ 4t2:6—Reporting-and-Secure-transmission-of Confidential-Data;-

4.2.7. Description of the Contractor's data elements to be disclosed; and
4.2.8. Responsibilities of both parlies regarding the exchange of data.

4.3. The. Contractor shall meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

4.4. The-Contractor shall ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view,
store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws
and. regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements
Exhibit. The.Contractor shall ensure said individuals have a justifiable-business
need to access confidential data. The Contractor shall provide attestations upon
Department request.

4.5. Background Checks '

4.5.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said Individual has
undergone: ,
"it.5.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and

has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under this
Agreement;

4.5.1.2. A name-search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could

■  endanger individuals served under this Agreement; and
4.5.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children.

Youth and Families (DCYF) Central RegistiV pursuant to RSA
169-C:35, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement. -

4.6.' Privacy Impact Assessment
♦

4.6.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portaI(s)/website(s) or Department
system{sVappiication{s)/web poi1al(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, .used,
accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must
provide the Department " access' to applicable ■ systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to ■ assess, at
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minimum, the following:

How-Pli-is-gathered-and"Stored;
4.6.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

4.6.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

4.6.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

4.6.1.5. Privacy practices.

4.6.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting-the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

4.7. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

4.7.1. If Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
■> Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement,

are authorized by the Department's Information Security Office to use a
Department Issued device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or
access the Department network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, each

■  End User must:

4.7.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New .Hampshire
"  Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use

agreements, policies, standards, procedures and guidelines,
and complete applicable trainings as required;

4.7.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely
,  ■ for conducting official Departrnent business and agree that all

other use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not
limited, to personal or other private and non-Departrnent use,
and that at no time shall they access or attempt to access
Information without. having' the express authority of the
Department to do so;

■" 4.7.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;

4.7.1.4. Not copy, share,- distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
engineer,, rent, or sell softvyare licensed, developed, or being
evaluated by the Department,, and at all limes, must use
utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential ' in accordance with^the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department;

4.7.1.5. Only use equipment, software,-or subscription(s) authorized
by the Department's Information Se.curity Office or designee;
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4.7,1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department
.1 ei^uipm-e.nj_unles5_aiJtbon2e_4.hyJhe.p.e.padm.eot:sJn^^^^

Security Office or designee;

4>7.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-issued
email system are the property of the Department of New
Harripshire and to be used for business purposes only. Email
is defined as "internal email systems" or "Department-funded
email systems.".

4.7.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH-DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

4.7.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

.  4.7.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address
assigned to them with a .
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".

4.7.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information'
identifying the End User as a non-Department-
workforce member; and

•> 4.7.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: ' "This message"
may contain information that is privileged and
confidential and is intended only for the use of the
individual(s) to whom it is addressed'. If you
receive this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and delete this' electronic
message and any attachments from your system.
Thank you for your cooperation."

4.7.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access
or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace
in a Department.building/facility, must:

4.7.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Info^rmation
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior

,to accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or
transmitting Department Data or Confidential
Data.

4.7.1.10.2. ̂  Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide

Mary Hitchcbqk Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
i  Agce.ement and annually thereafter; _

,4.7.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view the
Department's Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

4.7.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation
of any. of the above terms and conditions, said End User may
face removal from' the Agreement, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

4.7.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations
of End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges. If End Users who

.  possess pepatlment credentials and/or badges or who have
system privileges resign or are dismissed without advance
notice, the Contractor, agrees to notify the Department's
Information Security Office or desigriee immediately.

4.7.2. Workspace Requirernent

4.7.2.1. If applicable, the Department .will work \vith Contractor to
determine requirements for providing necessary workspace and
State equipment for its End Users.

4.8. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services ; ^

4.8.1; General Requirements

4.8.1.1. If applicable, upon" termination or expiration of the Agreement the
part.ies agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the
Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
-unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor
must begin working with the Department and- if applicable, the
new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

■ 4.8.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection with the transition from the performance
of Services by the Contractor and its Erid Users, to the
performance of such Services. This may include assistance with
the secure transfer of records'(electronic and hard copy),
transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the

Mary Hilchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials flferU
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transition of any such Service from, the hardware, software,
_Oetwo,ck_andJeJe(^QiTirn,uni.ca,tipns_e.quip;iTient.a.nd_inte^^^
information technology infrastructure ("Internal Ft Systems") of'
Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of- the Recipient and
cooperation with and assistance to any third-party, consultants

*  engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

4.8.1.3. If a system, database. hardwai;e. software, and/or software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store O'epartment Data In relationship to this contract said

>  ;■, Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Department Data
is complete.

4.8.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Departnient and if ■
applicable the Recipient In a^timely manner. Ariy such Transition'
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Agreement..

4.8.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information Security

,  Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

4.8.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department
Data and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible,
the Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's .
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit. r

. 4.8.2. Completion of Transition Services ■ " " *■
Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed

"  ■ (and the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business
days after the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to
the Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the
mutually agreed upon Transition-plan, unless within said. 15
business day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an
issue requiring additional time to complete said product;

4.8.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions

the Department's Information Se.curity Requirements Exhibit.
4.8.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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4.8.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Jt3Qsilion_Seryip.e.Jhe_D_epartment.shall nojify the.Cqntra.ctp^^
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 'is"
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not

. reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

Mary Hiichcock Memorial Hospital
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New Hampihire Department of Health and Human Servicet
Compitu one Oudpct form for tteh Oudget pedotf.

-  Contractor Name: May Hitchcock Mpmortal HozpHel fof ftsplf end on behalf of Dertmouth^ilchcock Oinic "
H»Q«eit for: Enhanc/np Reviews end Surveillance to Eliminate Maiamel Mortality . • • ""

Budget Period 64CApprova/-S'3Q'2024 - - •

indirect Cost Rate (II applicable) IS.50%' ( i —

..

*  ... Llrwlterh nT,;. Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Metemal'
Mortality and Msternal Child Health Program Cost - Funded by OHHS AIM .

1. Salary &Waoes
$102,479 $13,280

\
2. Frinoe Ber>enis $35 458 $4 595

3. Consultants $22,950 $1,350
•

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cptnot b« applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

'li
N

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 • • ' : , .
5.(0) Supplies - Lab :» so -

5.(c) SuDpijes • Pharmacy " SO
5.(d) SuDOties ■ Medical $0 ■

5.(e) Supples Office
$15 $1

•

6. Travel $4,000 $40
•V

7. Software
SO

..

8. (a) Other - Marketing/
Commuf^cations.

• i

.  . $0
•  -

'  • • -1
8. (0) Other - Education and Tralnino $500 ...

8. (c) Other - Other (soeofv below) ?

stipends .. ; $0 .

evert/ *• 5219
Other (oleose saeciM u SO
Other fp/ease soeciM SO
-

9. SuOredpieni Contracts $0 ' M -

Total Direct Costs S165.621 $19,266

Total Indirect Costs S25.671 •  .. $2,986

TOTAL $191,292 '  $22,252

/

SS-2020-OFHS-J}-MATEftN-01-ACM Page 1 oM
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Date
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlce»
•Complttt one budtft form for •ach budo*t otrlod.

Contractor Name Mary Hitchcock Mamorial Hospital for Hself and on behatf of Danmouth-HilchcMk Clink
E■ Budget Request for nhancing Roviaws and SurvaHlanca to Eliminala Matamal Mortality and AIM capacity
7/1/2024Budflol Period • 6/3Q/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable 15.50%

l.lne Item
Program Cost • Funded byOHHS Maternal

Mortality
Program Cost - Funded by OHHS AIM and

,. Maternal Child Health
• -r- . '* ' ■ "1'

1. Salary & Wages

2. Fringe Benefits

3^ Consultants

S95.974

S33.207

$19,500

SI 34.542

$46,551

$900

4. Equipment

indireci cost rale cannot t>e applied to
equipment cosis per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IVIo2CFR 200.

SO

5.{a) Supplies • Educettonal SO
5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO
S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy SO
5.(d) Supplies • Medical SO
5.{e) Supplies Office.

S8 S14

6. Travel S6.000 S900

Software SO

■ (a) Olhcf • Martetlnq/Commurticatlons SO

■ (b) Other • Education and Tralniiw

(c) Other«Other (specify below)
S75

special aveni

Other (plaase specify)
SO

SO
S9

Other (please specify) SO
Other (please soocify) SO

■ Subreclpient Conlracts SO

Total Direct Costs S1S4.764 $182,916

Total Indirect Costs S23.988 $28,352

TOTAL S178.752 $211,268

SS-2020-0PHS-ll-MAT£RN^))-A04 Pago 1 of 1
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Date
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state op NEW.HAMPSIfllU:

DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SER\aC£S

DTVISON OF PUBLIC HEA L TH SER PICES

LpriAiWcam
leuria Comaluieoer

Pitrlcie M. filky
Dtrreiof

29 lUZEN DRrVE. CONCORD, NH 03301^57
603.2714501 14IMi«n0345 Ext. 4501

Pext 603'27M817 TDDAccct3:,l-S00-735-3964 www,dhl>x,oh.BOV

March 30. 2023.

Hl» Excellency, Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTfON

Authorize the.Departrnent of Health ancf Human*Service, Division of Public Health
.Services, to enter Into a S^e Source amendment to an existing contract vsnth Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital for Itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing
business as ■Dartmouth-Hitchcock"). (VC «.1771M). Lebanon. NH to cqntiri.ue to provide Alli^ce
on Innovation In Maternal Health patierrt safety bundles to reduce maternal, morality, by
Increasing the price limitation by $434,556 from $325,226 .to $759,782 and by extending the
completion date from June 30. 2023"^to June;30. 2025, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds. '

TTie oriijlrial contract was approved by Governor and Council on Juhe 10.2020, item #12,
and amended on June,16. 2021. Item #34. arid most recei^y amended on March 9.2022, item
#17. " .

Funds are available In the follov/ing.accounts (or State Fiscaj Year 2023, and erie
■anticipated to be available in Stale Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the ayil[at)illty and
conlinued appropriation of funds In'the future operating budget, virtth the authority to adjiiit budget^
line Hems within the price limitation end encumbrances betv^en state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if neelded and justified. . .
05-95-90-902010-34870000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV.
MATERNAL MORTAUtY -100% FEDERAL FUNDS

•SUte
Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increase
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

program
Services

90080478 $88,278 $0 $68,278'

2021 102-600731
Contracts for

Program
Services

,00080478 $68,278 $0

A

;  $68,278

2022. 102-500731
Contracts for

Program .
Servioea

90080478 $68,278 $0 $68,276
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-2023- '102-50.0731-
Contracts for
Program—
Services

-90080478- —$68.-278- --$0.

■  ■ ■ f

-  $68,278: ^

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Program
Services

90080470 $0 $66,276 $66,278
i;

2025^ 1.02-500731
■ Contracts for

Prpgrarn '
Services

90080476 $0 $68,276 $68,278

■M ... V-:; Subtotal $273,112 $134,556 $407,668

.0&;95-90-9d201045260b00 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, MCH DATA
LINKAGE - 100%FEDERAL FUNDS

■■ -

State
Fiscal
■Year

'  Class/
. Account Class Title '

Job
Number

Current
Budget

increased -
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

t

• 2022 074-500589
Grants for

, Pub Asst
• andRel

90080125 .$52,114 '  'H $52,114
•//.

f.'.',". *"■ N
2023 074-500589

Grants for
Pub Asst
andRel

90080125" $0-

t

$0

iV.-. •

*  ■■■■ $0 '
.. •

:v-/ ' '■■ft
.2024; 074-500589

Grants for.
Pub. A^t.
and Rel

90080125 $0
i;

j

$0

2025 074-500589
Grants for
Pub Asst
and Rel

.'90080125: $0

?  ■

■ $0
j,;

tV 'V V'/;
.  .

..

. Subtotal $52,114. $0. ^  . $52,114
»  •

5.'' ^ 05.95.90-662010-51900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, .DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; PUBLIC . HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV,
MATERNAL-CHILD HEALTH 106% FEDERAL FUNDS . i "

V —

•

State
Fiscal
Year

Ciasa/
. Account

Claae Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

IncreaMd
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget •

2023 ' 074-500589' . Grants for Pub
Asst and Rel

90004009 $6 ■  "'$100,000 ! $100,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub
Asst and Rel

90004009 '  ■ $0
i'.

$ip0;000 $100,0.00

.2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub
Asst and Rel

90004009 .  $0 $100,000 $100,000

1'. •' ^ •

; W Vi
Subtotal r . . ■■ $300,000 $300,000

-t' Total $325,226 $434,556 $759,782
♦  • *

i-i -4^:
im

•; 1;;^;

t
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—EXPLANATION-

' ■* V'*

This request Is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
pre&lousty approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Additionally, the. Department
Is seeking to extend the agreement l)oyond the completion date and there are no renewal options
available. RSA 132:30 stipulates that the" Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvernent
Network at partmouth Health work ^h the Department on both reducing maternal mortality and

.morbidity and abstracting/co-facilitating the Maternal Mortality.Review Committee. The Contractor
ts therefore the only vendor able to provide the necessary seivices.

:  ■ The purpose of this request Is for the Corrtrador to continue collaboration with the Alliance
on Innovation In Matemal Health (AIM) to implement a minimum of two (2) AIM evidence-based
patient safety bundles, which Is a structured way of delivering health care, to provide a
standardized approach, to improve the quality of health care provided to pregnant woman
Impacted by opioid use and other substances. Opiold overdose is a leading cause of pregnancy*
associated deaths In New Hampshire. Each patient safety bundle Includes a set of straightforward
evidence-based clinical practices that when'perforrned collectively and consistently has been
pmven to reduce maternal mortality and pr^nancy associated deaths. These patient safety
bundles help pregnant-woman and their families access support for behavioral health, mental .
health„and other commuriity resources, which help prevent substance misuse associated Illness
and death during pregnancy, and will also result In cost savings to the Department. '

The Contractor will also continue to support the Department's Matemal Mortality Re.view
Committee; which include, but Is not limited to collecting matemal death infonnation. abstracting •
medjcal and nonmnedlcal records on maternal death cases, and participating In reviews of
maternal death cases. .

^  The Department vwll,'monitor services to ensure:
, , • 100% attendance at. and successful completion of. the national AIM Data'Community

.  of Learning to address data quality and share best practices In addressing needs of
' - the New Hampshire birthing facilities In .implementing these bundles.

•  Complistionof at least one AIM data training session with the Department.forallof the
participating birthing locations to identify -bam'ers to reporting AIM bundle-specific

-outcome measures, including the percent of pregnant and postpartum: people
screened for substance misuse and validated screening tools and resources shared

' wfthprehatalcare sites.
•  Timely submission of quarterly aggregate data reports to the Department regarding

AIM program progress, which include outcome measures associated vrtlh the patient
safety bundles being Implemented.- •

Should the Governor and Council hot authorize this, request, the Departrnent will-riot be
.able to effectively address opioid related disorders.in. pregnant women In New Hampshire, which
may resylt-ln an iricrease in matemal rnortalily related to opioid misuse.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.478. Federal Award
Identification-Number (FAIN) NU50DPOO6693: ALN. 93.991. FAIN B04MC45230.

'i'.

•i

V*'.

;T..'

Vs
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.  '.vr';

In the event that the Federal Funds beccme no longer available, General Funds will ri'ol
be requested to support thirprogTam. ' " ' •" "

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

n.-

y.'
'':i '• in.

••'iV:

I

Tfie Deporimeni 0/Health and Human StruioWMUsian it uyjcin camnun'iUte and fomllin
in prauidinf opporliuuiiee for cilUtn* lo ocAuue htalik and independenet- ' '
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendments :''V '•

This Amendment to the Enhancing f^'eviews and'S'urveillaTCe'tb'EliminateMat^arMbltalityc^ —
by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or
•Department") and.Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock

• Clinic (collectively doing business as "Dartmouth-Hitchcock") ("the Contractor"). . '

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council ■
on Jurie 10. 2020 (llem.#12), as amended on June 16, 2021 (Item #34), and most recently amended on
March 9. 2022 (Item #17), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and •
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and i-

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 10, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreemerit of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modjfy the scope of sen/ices to support continued delivery of these services; and -

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the'foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained •
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follo.ws; ''

1.. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.6. Account Number, to read;

05-95-90-902010-34870000 ' :•• •■ ' 4: .
;  05-95-90-902010-45260000 . '

■05-95-90-902010-51900000 ■; '

•  2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:
June30. 2025 ' ■'

■3. -Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitatiori.-to read:
$759,782 _ '

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read: "
Robert W. Moore. Director ' _ -n; '*'• • '
Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1 i Scope of Services, by, adding Subsections 2.'l 9 through' 2.2i.
to read: , , ; ... . .

2.19 The Contractor shall establish a palient safety bundle learning collaborative comprised of
.  perinatal care providers.

The Contractor shall facilitate collaborative monthly vyebinars on AIM' and Maternal -
Mortality (in addition to learning collaborative).
The Contractor shall provide the following AIM data quality activities: •
2.21.1 Provision of 1:1 data.qualify. assessment/support to participating birth hospitals

and. birth centers; ' ' ' -i:

2.21.2 Inclusion of content on data quality in monthly webinars; and {f. :
2.21.3 In collaboration with the Department, develop a hospital-level disparities'

.  dashboard to track statewide and institution-specific metrics disaggregated by'-
race, ethnicity, and payor.

5.

.2.20

2.21

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

SS-2020-DPHS-11 -MAteRN-Ol -AOS
A-S-1.3

' Page 1 of 4

■<T.

Contractor Initials

Data

09

£JH

"syTTZUTT
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i.i'-

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payrnent, Section 2, to read:

2. . This agreement is funded by 100% Federal Funds:

• —r-r.v—2v1t—54%-Federai-Funds-from-the-Rreventing_MaternaLOeaths: ;Suppor1ing Maternal..
Mortality Review Committees Grant, as awarded on June 30, 202.1'. by the U.S.

ij; Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for Disease Control &
•  • Prevention, Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.478, Federal Award Identification

■ Number (FAIN) NU58OP006693." • -

2.2. ■ 7% Federal Funds from the New Hampshire MCH Data Linkage Projeci, as awarded .
on August 18, 2021 by the U.Si Department of Health and Hurhan Services, Health
Resources and Services Administration, Maternal and Child Health -Federal

\  ConsolidatedPrograms. ALN 93.110, FAIN Hie00033.

'2.3. 39% Federal Funds from the Maternal and Child' Health Federal Consolidated
Programs, as awarded on October 19. 2021 by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration, ALN'1*93.991,
FAIN B04MC45230. '

7.. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1, io
■  read: •' '

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for, actual expenditures incurred in the
j. . fulfillment of this Agreernenl. arid shall be In accordance with the approved line items as'

• specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-7 Budget-Amendment #3.

8. Modify Exhibit 8-4, Budget - Amendment #1 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-.4 Budget -
' Amendment #3. which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget - Amendment #3. which is attached hereto and "incorporated by reference
herein. .

10. Add Exhibit B-7 Budget -Arriendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference '
herein.' • '

■y:\

•v..

■ M' i'-

Mary HitchcocX MerrioHa) Hospital ■•ii

"SS-2020-OPHS-11 -M ATERN-OI-A03
A-S-1.3

Page 2 ol 4

— M

BJH
Cor^traclor Inllials .

Dale 5/2/2023 , •
•.•;V
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All terms and conditions of the Cdntract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect, this Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

"I N"WITNESS' WHEF?_EGF;'the parties"have set'their ha7iar'arof thi67datewritteh~belpvi^—-.^v. ■ --

Slate of New Hampshire *

S/2/2023

Date

. Department of Health and Human Services

C—0eei4lgn«4 frgri
Name:Patricia H, Tllley

Title; oi rector

••

Mary. Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (collectively doing business as
".Dartmouth-Hitchcock") '

5/2/2023

Date

-Oa«vSlpn*4 br;

Name^

Title: chief clinical officer

■A

■  '■

« m

■fKj

■V

••',v

Mary Hitchcock Memohal Hospital

SS-2020-'DPHS.11 .MAT£RN^0V.A03 -
A.S-1.2

Page 3 o( 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
. execution. • . ' ■ '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-0Mw«tpM4br.

5/V2023

Date laHigWbi^H'^Ouar-ino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: fdate'of meetlnat-

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

..'4'-

\ J;

.'"•JiV

... .. .IV',

Mary Hilcttcock Memorial Hospital

SS-2026-OPHS-11 -MATERN-OI-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-4 Budget - Amendment #3
New HempaMre 0«par1menl of Health end Human Services

C6mpf»fontbvtfgti'(Qnnf9r0»eh'bu^gttfiVh^. '
Contractor Nam'a: 'Mery Wlcftcocfc UimoriH Hospilol fofitstllond on bahmoutft-HilctKOcJi Clinic

-B"udfldt-Rcquetl-for":'v£nnanc/no Rbviews and.SvrvtUbncilo £tim/note MtemBi.UortolirY_..
•  BudgatPcriod7/>/?0??r&OCKW23 ""T -- •• • •-•.• ■

; V. .1* . •  ̂ ' VV

.  .T-rT^-
Llnatlom •

•Prdgram.Cbit'.
Fu>id^(1.1)'y'0HHS!

'• , ; _• ••*/•/,• •• 'i IT--v/' »-.CI • fi )-|T.
*Proofarii'Coil:C'or(traciorSKare/Jtfatc'h'.>'

t. Sftlarv & WsCfel . Si(i0:227
V

2. FdmBenems 129.435 '*■ '-'SO
■■" -T'w.

9. Con»uQanl$ 89.750 ... • w
>r.

4: E<iu^)rnem
ln(&d^ coil rait connpt be appOM ib
equ.lpmanico&ispar 2CFR-200.1 and
Appendix tV to 2-CFR 200.

Y

•80
"1

'• * •
'•V»: ;•

S.fa) SuooBea. Educaitenal s;:;- . .SO :• V • .._'.so
5,(b) Swoooesaab $0 .s .v.- , . . . • so
S.fcl SuooOm • Phamwcv ■> ■... 1 . • SO
SJd) SuooiitJ • Medical so •  .... —80
5:(c) SuppBosOlltee ■-"■■p'''' $5,634 so

"■ .. :ii' ''v

8. Travel
$3,149 ,  '' ■"' ' so

•. ii ' •
7. .Solfwaro -v . $0 :  ; -.i <■ - $0

.  C-v ;/ -  . .V.-.

8. (a] Other ^ Markotlnp^ Comrnunrcatbni so

0. fb) Other • EducaUon snd Trainrnd 8500 J  At-;, so
B. lc» Other'. Other (spedfvbctovrl

Other fofease aoac</vJ .* ■ 50 $0
Other (olitst sP9dM :&■■■ 80 •• SO

Other tbfe0se'e0«c//vl" - t:: $0 v: --:-v :'.-y , . v. w SO
•r" ■ Other (oiense soedM ■' v>' * •■50 ... JQ

AVVf; r.;. •:;*.• •;•' . i' iJ y'-' 'i'.'y.-

9. Subrcdplonl Contracts •  so iO

.TotaiDlrect.Costa $145,895 -• so
' ■ .r' .• *

:»

..TotalIndirect Costa 522.5^3
u; • /*•' — •*' • •' ' .V. " f'

total iiee.27ft a f; . ^6

■

•*r ' /

•Pi

page 1 of 1

Contrscior tntilaii -!

"VDate

'  t § •
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Exhibit B-6 Budget • Amendment #3
N«w KAfflpthlrt 0«p«rtni«nl of HeaRh and Human Strvicat

Cofflpf«ri'ana'6vd9*< rorm/o/.aach'OtKfparpar^.
^,j Cofitfaclor Na^: Ut/yf^ichdockUeircHalHos^i»itorlit9Hon0onbeh$ifofO»rtmooth-MiiciKock Clinic

Budgat Period 7/>/7d23-:6'3a«)7< •• • • • •• V

indiroci Coat Ralo (it appikablo}-15.50%
.

•
- _• i'-. r.

«"• '

ft 'Une.ltarn i-)'*'
);'■ ,-y-

\f"''Ofli2!aCo»t;i;
'Fun(iad''by;DHHS
•• v»k3 r.ki*-- • * .ft /

j  "• *.. 1 '-...i v.
^ JiRro^ram CoitirCohtfa'ctof/Sh'i^e/ M'ateh^ '*T>^ v 'li

1. Salary iWooaa . . ' 592,944 r  •::.vy .v . 10
• •

2. Fringe e'cnafla $25;846 SO

'T'**- ■ f* ' • *. • •

3. Consufumu ' ' izoriso

4. E<|u$)rnOr>t
Indlreci cost rale cannot bo bpp^ to '

costs per 2.'CFR 200.1 srxl
Appe«fix'rvio2CFR200. ' I

$0

t

1

•

S.iol SiADles - EducationaJ •- $0 •* » (•

o
•ft

V

S.fbV Siipotei* Lnh-~ •r - • • so ' *r- •- ff'.r.r "jo
5,{c) SopoSei . PhaffTOCY : r- ■  ...so .',1 'tfi*. J-.-- • -•4... 4 JO
5:<(JI Suooies-Medfcel .' ' . ■ ~ 1 so ' - • • . • T-. SO

'.i'' S.fflt SuoolM Otflce $245 • > .. .. . JQ
1  •• !*•>'

-^v V '
/> .N

'S4.239 .  . ' ■ • JO
8; Tniwei

'• V. ':,s. - ;
7. Software . SO .  -r. j-. -• . .-w -2. $0
..t:. rt * V"»'r-.'r'

6. [»yOther • Miriietirxi/ Corrviuhlcabons so 'if *9
f

- 8: fb) Other < EducatJori.Dnd TrohinQ . S500 .4' .".i .  : • SO •

); <cl Other • Other fsbeciiv below) •  •

Other fotoaso soecrV)' •50 .. *. ••• so
Other /0<t»sa jdoc/M SO
Other foToosa SDodM •V- •• SO V  -■ isv.-.- • .-'. so

: Other falcosa socdW . 50 .v., s.. . $0
:

- 1. .Subrodoicnt Controcis ; -fi'-'.".!. . .-.SO i. so
*" • • '..- r^''" • -t;.. •}'. y _

.. .  . Total Direct Ceati S143.964 A' -Z. SO
: • y' »'•••• • a««^- •* -i«irV

.1

.u v. .TotalIndirect'Ceals %  $22.3V4 5.... , . . "50
>. 1,

^. /A -t" ' :.v>' .total '  S168.27B V ■ " SO

.Yi-.

Pagcl of 1-

Contracts Inltl

.Date
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Exhibit 8-7 Budget - Amendment #3
SS-2020-DPHS-1 l-MATERN-Ol-AOa

New Hampthire Depertment ef Hsallh and Human Services

. . . . ot>9bCdgHtomtor$BCb bvdgtt fii'rioit.
CotArKtotN»mt:;Uafy:Hiicf>cockklt/twi»l^spilaft»kseUanaonbehalfoiooftmouift-HJlcfii^Cllr>k

''•^yi»'.'®£i'''f''rtflne/npPew/e»vf,flntfSui;veWance'foei»>nf/iaf»/Wflie/rte;MoftoA/v '• •• r
Bodgel Pertod 7/1/K24 • ̂30/202$ ^ tt-—

Indirect Cost Rete llappUe«ble).i&.50>; ... , 't--- , .-L.

^'i'.V'T. t-tneiltem.' .v'l.'.v-n ' P.r6st»^\Co»t •.
.  Funde^^'OKHS 0'^' P''09'4.'?'CMl-C6ritracl6r,Sharc/M,8lcK.J ■

1. -Sebnr A Waoe». ' . * sda'Iae')
-

•.i 2. FrtnooBenWli .. ii . ■■•V-l .J?6:37C '. y ••. /Ve •. ,v«r • • V 1 « • • i' ..

3. .ConwHanl) r»'* •820:) 50 ^ * $6
..7..;, .

i-

4. Equipmeni
Irldirecl.^i rate cannot be'opisKeU id
e^ipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 end
Aooendl* W 10 2 CFR.20b.

ib
>  ; I

, «•'

^  ̂ F - ;■ ' '.b
-

5-(«) SuDoSes • Educaitonal ' .> ■ r.: . .* "SO •  • • ' I- - ■■■•' ■- so
S.tbl .SuooSes-Lnb • •.* .. ' i a  .. .so
5.(ci SuooBes • Pharrrvicv •' so •" "■• JO
$:(d) SuooCes-Medicai . ■-■■■ t:. $0
S.(o) SuppliuOince ' "

.:• •••■ $15 V- *0

•v ••••• •: V

6.- Travel .. . ••) . r.'j _  53.793 lil*- . T'jS'O
v-" V.

7. Soltware . - •• M v., -$o;
"ft -U t  .•>; y-i'' ' ' ~ • ••"

6. la) Ot>ter • MBrkelirX)/ Convnunlcations .  SO ..^ ■■ >.V-V. jq
8. lb) Other - Education and Trainino ' '.•vv • -SSOO vv - . C' , -.JO .
6. Ic) Other - Other Isocoly below) ' " .•■-"w'* CT . ^ • 1,1 •.; -"T-

'• Other (olfbso soeciM. • i. .V . .so I.-... • .r.. ...- . . . 10
Other {otoDse soecJM '  -Sit
Oihorfoieo'se soedM: U  ':v .n
Olherlo/easosaec/M. ■ •  SO

9. Subrecisleni Contracts ... so r  SO
r. • •.■:• u. -m: ^ .V " ^

... Tote! Direct Coite '  5145.695 >  -50
V  •; f .

v-e,

Tetalir>diroct Costs •' $22,583 ... . ■. .-v-v.:. ..-jq '
Ir 55H,- .  -• •• •-*. . . •

TOTAL 5188.275 - 10

V;; ^
ie'"

1  • ^

'■i'cil

Pegi 1 0/ ^

Ceflinclorirtliltl

Ojtc.
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FE822'22p„3:35rc«D ^

UrI A.SM»iBrtct

CemmliiUnrr

Purtfli M. Tlllo-
Dlrctiftr

STAtE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE '

DEPARTMENT:OEHeALTH.AND.H.UMAN.SERyj_CESi

DmSJON OF PUBUC HEALTH SEftyJCES

29 lUZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
60)-27MS0t 1-8M-852-U4S Ei(. 4S01

fai:M>2?M827 . TODA^m: I•80O-7)S-2964
*»>*»r.dhl>l.fth.gov

December 22/2021

His Excellency. Governor ChrislopherT. Sununu
.80(1 (he Honorable Council < .
Slate House-

Concord, New HamjIishire 03301 ■ • • t- • .v

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sendees. Division of Public Heallh.
Services, to amend an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital <VCtf 177160),
Lebanon, NH. to provide Alliance oh Innovalion in Maternal Health (AIM) patient safety bundles
in orderlo reduce malemai mortality^ by increasing the price limliation by SS2.114 from $273,112
to $325,226 with no change to' the contract completion dele of .June 30, 2023, effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal-Funds. • •

The original conlfed was approved by Governor and Council on June 10.2020, item 1*12".
and most recently amended with Governor, and Council approval on June 16. 2021, Item #34.

Funds are available In the.following account for Slate Fiscal Year .2022." -and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2023, upon the availability and continued'
-appropriation of funds .in'the future operating bUdgel. with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limltatioh end encumbrances between stete'fiscal years througti the Budget Office,
If needed arid justified.

05-95-90-902010-34870000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH. ANO'
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC .HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV,
MATERNAL MORTALITY. .

■ji,.

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /
. Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2020 102-500731
Conlracis for

Program
Services •

90060470'
$68,270 $0 $68,278

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program ■
Services

90080478
$.68,278 $0 $68,278

.2022 102-500731
Cpntracts for

Program .
'Spfvioes . '

90080478
$68,278 $0 . $68,278

2023 1.02-500731
Contracle for

Program '
Services, -

90080478
$68,278" $0 $68,278

' Subtotal $273,112 $0 $273,112

Tfit Dtporimtiti 0/ Heahh ond Humei> $truiet$'Miuioii it tcjoin «>inmuiiiiitt ond/omllitt
ui prtuidiiic epporhtiiilitt for dtUtnt 19 OtSitiM hiolih and Indtptndntet.
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Hit.Excollericy .'Governor ChrlitophorT.Sununu ^
and the Honorobto Council

Page 2 of 3
.  * . ..

"05^95W902010=45260000-HEALTH-AND-SOCl^:-SERVieESrDEPT-OF-HEAL-TH-AND-
HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH 0)V, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, MCH DATA
LINKAGE f

,, ,. State
Fiscal

Year

Class/
. Account

CIbsb Title
Job

Nurnber

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

r
2022 074-500589

Grants for
- .^ub Assf •
and Rel

' 90080125
$0 $52,114 352.114

I- ''
Subtotal $0.. $52,fU 352.114

*  ̂
Total $273,112 $52,114 $325,226

■  EXPLANATION

The purpose of (his request. Is for the Contractor to collabordte wilh:-the Alliance on
Innovation-in Malerna) Health (AIM) to irfiplement at least two (2) AIM evidence-based patient
safety bundles In order to provide a standardized approach to.linprove the quality of health care
provided, to pregnant woman Impacted by opiold use and other substances. Opiold overdose is a
leading cause of pragnancy-associatdd.death's In New Hampshire. A patient safety bundle is a
structured-way of delivering health care: -.each l^ndle Includes a set. of straightforward.evidence-
based clinical praciices that, when performed collectively .and consistently, has been proven to *
reduce matemel rriortallly arid pregnancy associated deaths. These patient safely bundled help
pregnant woman end Ihelr families'-access. suppod for behavioral health, rhentet Health, and other
community resources. These steps will help prevent substance use associated iQness and death

'during pregnancy and will also result in savings to the Dapanment. ;<

The Contractor will also continue to assist, the Department's Maternal Mortality Review
Committee. lncluding collecting maternal deathjnformation, abstracting medical and'non-medical
records on maternal death cases, and parllcipating in revlews-of maternal death cases.

The Oepartmenl.,will monitor services to ensure: 'ixv

•  Successful completion (100% attendance) at the national AIM Data Community of
Learning to address data quallly and share best practices in addressing needs of the
New Hampshira birthing facilities In implementing these bundles. -

•  Completion of at least one AIM data (raining session, with the Department, for at) of
the participdling birthing locations to identify barriers to reporting AIM bundle- specific
outcome .measures. Including the percent of pregnant and poslparturn people
screened for substance use disorder and validated screening tools and resources
shared with prenatal care sites. ,.v

•  Timely submission of quarterly reports to'the Department-'regarding AIM program'
.  ' progress, which Include structure and outcome measures thai are associated with the

■  patient safely bundles being Imple.menied. ^ •

Should'the Goyerrv^r and Council not sulhorize this request, the Department will not be
able to effectively eddress opiold related disorders in pregnant women in New Hampshire, wtiich
may result In more maternal mortality related 10 opiold rpisuse. *

Araa served; Statewide

I'rr.

^ ' 7'

'i;. ...ia.

'kit'

•■i.
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Hlfi ExcoHoncy, Govemof Chililopher T. Sununii
fintl the HonoraUo Council

Page 3 of 3

-Sourceof-Federal-FundSrAssisiance-liisnn9-Number-#93.1.l0,.RAIN.#,H18000d33..
.. The Department will request General Funds in the event that Federal Funds are no longer '
available and services are still needed.

;  RespecHully submitted.
,  • V.' \

L6rl~A;'Shlblnette

Commissioner

'•>

y\-

.c-
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State of.New Hampshire -.yi
Department of Health and Human Services

•; Amendments ^ ^ .j. .

This Amendment to the Enhancing RevieNVS and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality contract Is
by and between the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Departmerit") and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself , and on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Clinic (collectively doing business as Darimouih Hiichcock) ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved bythe Governor and Executive Council
on June TO, 2020 (Item U\2), as amended on June 16. 2021 (Item #34). the Contraclor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In ^ "
consideration of certain sums specified: and ^ -

■ WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended ■
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEf^EAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement.'increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and .. •:«

" NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to arnend as follows:.

1. Form P-37, Ger^eral Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limtlalion. to read: .

$325,226 . • - '

2. Modifying Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope'of Services, by adding Subseptions 2.15 through '
2.18; to read: :•

2.15 The .Contractor shall comply with all privacy .and security requirements 8§ outlined
in this Contract, and collaborate with the Alliance on Innovation In Maternal Health ■

(AIM) to provide a standardized approachTo delivering improved patient outcomes'
•^> at birthing locations by Implefrienling at least two (2) AIM 'evidencc'tased. patient. .

safety bundles, which include, but are not limited to, the .followir>g resources and
•; aggregated data:

■  "2.15.1 Number of substance use disorders (SLID) among pregnant and;
poslpartum individuals.

.  2.15.2 Num^.c_6f Severe Maternal Morbidity (SMM),'Including transfusion
.  ;> . - codes; among individuals with SUD.

.  .* • v,:
2.15.3 Number of proportion of pregnancy associated deaths due to overdose. '

2.15.4 Percent of newborns exposed to substances in uterb who go home to
,  either birth parent. • v

;V '2,15.5 Percent of pregnant and pbstpartum Individuals with opioid use disorder
(OUD) who received or were referred to medicalion for opioid use

• S': - disorder (MOUD). ' • •

.  2.15.6 Percent .of pregnant and poslpartum Individuals with SUD who received
or were referred to,recovery treatment services.

2.15.7 Percent of pregnant and postparturii Individuals with SUD who received
•  or were prescribed Naloxone prior to delivery discharge.

'. 2.15.8 Percent of pregnant and poslpartum Individuals screened for SUDs.

-ff' 2.15.9 Percent of pregnant arid poslpartum individuals with OUD who were
counseled on medicalion for opioid use disorder (MOUD).

^  ̂ ■: ■ MU- '
SS*2020'OPHS-t i-MATERN-01-A02 Mary Hiichcock Memorial HospHai Conl/eclof Inlllals
A-S-V1 Pago lot 5
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V  . r ^ ■ 'fs
2.15.10 .Percent of pre9nant and postpartum individuals with SUD who were

counseled on recovery treatment services.

'  ̂ "" * 2.1^11" " Percefit~of pregnant'Tr)3"^st'prturfrihdiviaci'als"wilh*'SUO who"rec6ived *■
Naloxdne counseling.

Vf>> ■ t ■ ■ .

'  ̂ 2.15.12 Provider and Nursing Education-:Subslance Use Disorders.
,  -2.15.13 Provlder.and Nursing Education - Respectful and Equitable Cere.

'  .j '
; ~ 2.'15.14' Resource Mapping/Identification of Community Resources.

.  2.15.15 • Patient Even! Debriefs. -•

2.15.16 Gerieral Pain Management Guidelines. ,

.. ... 2.15.17 OUD Pain Management Guidelines.

p, .ir- y- " " 2.15..18 ■ Validated Verbal Screening Tools and Resources Shared with Prenatal
Care Sites. ''

5  2.16 . The Contractor shall participate 1n the national AIM Data Community of Learning to
-  address data quality and share best practices in addressing needs, as directed by

the Department.

2.17 the Contractor shall faclliiate, in coildboration with the DepaiHment, an AIM data
■  training session for all participating birthing locations to identify barriers to reporting

AIM bundje-specific metrics.'- .

2.10, The Contractor siiail work submit quarterly reports to the Department that Include,
butarenollimiledto, AIM program progress, structure and outcornemeasures-lhat
are associated with the.palieni safely bundles being implemented.

■' ■ 3. Modify Exhibit B. Methods arid Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 2, to read: .
*  . '2. This agreerrient is funded with; ' ' . . .

2.1 . 84% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control & Prevention on J.une 30.
20i21, Preventing Maternal Deatfis: Supporting •Maternal Mortality Review ■'

•- Committees Grant. Catalog of Federal Domeslic Assistance (CFOA) #93.478. •: -
'  Federal Award Identification" Number (FAIN) #NU58OP006693.

2.2 16% Federal Furids fronn Department of Health and Human Services, Health
Resources and Services Administration on August 18. 2021, Maternal and Child
Health Federal Consolidated Programs. Catalog of Federal bomestic^Assistance
(CFDA) #93.110, Federal Award identification Number (FAIN) #H1806ilD33. "

4. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods, and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1. to
•read: ,

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred
^  . in the fuiriltrneht of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved

Jine Items as specified in Exhibit. 0-1, Budget through Exhibit 8-5 Budget.
>. Amendment #2.

j; 5: Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 4, Subsection 4.2, to
read: ' -v.•V:

4.2 The Conlraclor. 'shall submit an Invoice and supporting documents to the
Department no later than the fi fteenth (15lh) working day-of the follov/ing month.
The Contractor shall: . ,

>  V • '

4.2.1 Ensure the Invoice is presented in a form that is provided by,lhe Department
or is otherwise acceptable to Ihe.Deparlment.

SS-2020-DPHS-11-MATeRN-Oi-A02 Man* Hilchcock Memofifll Hospital Conlraclor Inlltols^
1/21/2022

y  A.S'I.I - r Pa9e2of5 Dalo
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.  4.2,2 Ensure the invoice ideniines and requesis payment for.ailowable costs
'  incurred in the previous month. ^

""4:2:3~Rro^ide~sup^in9lJocumehtalion of'allWabircostrtRa^ —^
is not limited (p, iime sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases.'and
proof of.expendilures. as applicable.

y  Ensure (he invoice is completed, dated andrelumed to the Department with
'  . fhe supporting documentation for authorized expenses. In order to initiate -

payment. , , ■ <

6. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget - Amendment «2 which is attached heroic and inccrporolod by reference
herein.

"••j-

■A

-k-

;'n'

SS-2020-DPHS*11-MAT£RN*01*A02 Mary Hitchcock Momoriol Hospital
A-S-t.1 Page^oiS

Wl/
Cont/aclor:lnilidls
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All (erms end conditions of the Contract and prior smendfTients not modined by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands'as of the date written below.

T-
State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

.1

Title;.oi rector '

1/24/2022

Date-
-

■j'

vV

1/21/2022

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memoriai Kospiial for itself and on behalf of
Dartmouth-HilcHcock Clinic

t?c^erA & : \JcnAj^
Name:B8''hara a.- vaoce
Title: vice President, Research-operations

i; • z

jf.

•>*
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hotpllal

SS-2020-DPHS-11-MATERN^1.A62

A-S-1.1

Pogo 4 ol 5

Contractor IniUots
My...

Daio1/21/2022
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The preceding Amendmeni, having been reviewed by this office, is approved .as to forrn. substance, and
execyiion. , _  OFFICE OF THE AnORNEYGENERAr'

2/11/2022

«tieM4Ur

■Dale ^
TiUe: Attorney y.%<

I hereby certify thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stele of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: -jj, (date of meeting)

'  OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF-STATE

Date Name:
Title:

V: .

.

.. ^v

Ma<v HIichcocK Memorial Hosplioi ' ;
SS-2020-OPHS-11-MATERN-O1-AO2

A-S-1.t

Pago 5 of'5
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_ STATE OF WEW HAMPSHIRE

■/

Led K SUMndi*
CenmluWMr

Uu
Olffttev '

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

brmJON OF PVBUC health SERViCES.

29HAZENDRIVe.COKC0RD,NII OJJOl
<0J-27HMI l-S0O432.J34Seu.4SOl

f*ji:60M7MlI7 TDO Actni: I-IOO-73S.2M4'
- i: wtxu.Phtti.nh.gov

It'

June 10, 2021

His Exceliency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu'
and ihe.Hon'orable Council

State Houm
Concord. Hampshire 03301

isl
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depart/pent of Heaith end Human SeMces. Division of Public Health
Servioos. to ampnd an odsting contract with Mary Hitchcock Mamoriai Hdspital (V/C0 17M60),
Lebanon. 'NH, to continue (he cdleclion and abstraction of clinical and non^Iinlcal data to address
mat'arnel morbidities in order to prevent future maternal deaths, by exercising a cont/act retiewa!
option by Increaslng'the prtce.iimttation by $136,556 from $-136,556 to $273.112 and exler^dlng the
comptatton date from June 30, 2021 Id June 30, *2023 effective July 1. i2021 or upon .Govemor-
andCouhcltepproveLv^lcheverlsieier. iOO%FederalFunds. ' '

Theorlglnaloontrdcl was approved by Governor and Councilon June 10,2020, Item #12..
Furids are anticipated to be available in 'Stele Fiscal Years 2022 &nd '2023, upon the

st^ilability arid continued eppropdalion of funds In the future operating budget, with the aulhorrly .
to adjust budget line items within ihe.price iimllation and encumbrances batweAn state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if flooded and jusiined.
.05-9&-6a-902010-34a7 HEALTH AND SOCIAL-SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, PAATERNAL'
mortamty

State
Fiscal
Year

Class I
Account

■Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
<Docroas6d)

Amount

Reyisod
. Budget-

2020 .102-500731
Conlracts for

ProflSvc 60060478 $68,278 $0 568,278

2.021 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for
Proa Svc

^060.478 $66,278 so'- $68,278

'202? 102-500.731
Conlracts for

Pmn Svc
90030478 ' $0 $68,276 $68,278

2023 102-500731
Contractsfor

Prop Svc
00060476 $0 $66,278 '$68,278

Totals . lueisse $136,558 $27J[.112

EXPLANATION.

The purpose 6f this .request Is for the Cbnlrector lo con|tnue essisting the-efforts of fhe
Meterne! f^ortality Program. Including coile'cltng mataroal death jnfpmiation. ebslreclihg .medical
and non-madicel reMrds on tiiaterhal death casets, end participating In reviews of malerrSel dealt)

%•

Thi 0€port»ttnl e/ Htolth citd Hnmon'Stfvittt'Mlujoii itttjcin nmhuiiiiiti ond/omilin
inprtwdini cpportiinUln fvtHitini '4 ocMfbV hntih and liidtp*»dtnti.

I* • H

•j -f-----
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We ExceUency, Governor Chrlelepher t. Sununu
Ortd Ihe .Honorebto Counc" /
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S

cases. OartmCTuth Hiichcodi MecJical denier (s uniquely qualified .to provide (he eervlcoS as It
oversees.-the Northern New England Perinatal Quality IrhprovemenI fretwork (NNEPQIN)
NNEPQIN Is tho.80)e:pefinat8l quality coitaborailve for Northern New England.- NNEPQIN la
■nofned in New Hampshire Matema! MoHalily legislation e"s a partner in the coilectton. ahstraclioh
and padicipalioA in review of maiernol dealh deses.

Thd Conlractor will ehler data inio the Maternal Mortalily .Review Informalton.Appllcetlon
regarding .deaths of womeii.ln New Hompshlre during pregnancy-end during the year foiiovrino

: :.fho arid of prog.oancy. Tho Contractor will attend the Maternal Morlalily Review Committee
Meetings-.and assist (he Depedmenl'a Ma(erftarMorl0llty Review Coordina(or a& ndeded The
Corttrac(or vnll worts with aiakehoiders end the Ddpartme.ni to create en acllort pieri -id implemdht
•the matema! health-and weiiness rocommendalions end to develop educatlonbland other
'nieterlals for heallhcaro .professionals and.the public.

The Department will mo.nhor pontrecled services to ensure:
•  Maternal Morlalily cdse" data end Review Commjttee recorhrnendallons are

ertiered fntq the Maternal Mortality Review Infdrrriaiibn Application within one'(-l) '
ffionth of (he.Melernal Mortality Review CoiYimitiee.Meetings.

♦ A Recommendations WorKsheei is subrnlited to the beparimqril within one (1)
rnonthofihoMatefnaTMonalltyReviewCommitieeM.eelinps.

As refe'renc^ in Exhibit C-1 of the original 'agreement, the parties have- Ihe opUor) (o
dxte.nd the'egroe.rneni for-.up to two (2) additiofial years, conliriger)! upon .eetlsfacto'ry dellveiy of
•services, available fijndlng. egreenieni of the-parties end-Governor-and Council appr^dval.- The
OepaflmenUs exerdslti^ its opilon to extend tt),e agreement for .(2) years of the two (2) year

- renewal option, leavlf^'rib.renei^l ti.me remaining.
.  Should the Govomor.a.nd Councll not aut.hortza this request; (he wor1< conducted by the

•Ma.lemel fterlallty Review Cdm.mlltee to rriake- recommfe'ndaiions regarding rrialerrifil deaths- In
New Hampshire iMH be delayed due to lack of assistance In completing the absiracling -end case
preparation for rTtalernal mortality review.

Al^a.served: Statewide J'.;,
Sou^.qf Funds:-CFOA #93.478, FAIN N58DP006691
In the-event the Federal. Funds become no tohger available. General Fynd$-will not be'

requested to support:thls-program.' .

RespecKully.submilied.

■■•■i

'V

K\\ * !•

I'ori A. Shibinette
.Commissfoner

y-; > ...,
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Amondmont PI

: This Amendment to the Enhancing Reviews end Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality contfeci is
by and. between the State of New Hampshire. Oepartmeni of, Health and Human Services ("Slate" or
•Oopartmenf) and Mary Hitchcock. Memorial Hospital forJiself and on behaif of Dartmoulh-HiichccK*
Clinic (colleclivety doing business es partmoulh Hitchcock) ('Iha Contrector^). "
whereas, ̂rsuani (o en egroemoni (the "Coniroct') approved by the Governor ond Executive Council
on June 10. 2020, (Itorh tfl2).tho Contractor ograed to porform certain sorvJcos based upon the terms ond
conditions specified In the Conlracl end In consideration of ceriairi aums.apecified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Fotm P-37.- Ganora) Provisions, Paregreph 18,.and Exhibit" C-l. Paragraph 2.
Renewal.-.ihe Contract may be amended upon written agreemeni o'f the'parties "and'approvai from the
Governor and Executive Council: and r, •

WHEREAS; 1^ parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation and
modify the sdope of services to support Mniinued delive^ of thes.e seivices: and
I^OW THEREFORE, In.conskJer'ation of the.foregoing and the mutual coven^ts and conditions .contained
In the Conlract and set forth herein, the parties fiereto agree to amend ps follows: '

1. Form P-37 (Seneral Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

Juno 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Umilation, to read: '
$273.11^ , ■ ■ 7 \

3., f^ify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by deleting it- in its entirely end replacing with Exhibit A" - .
Amendment #1. Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. ^

4. Modify Exhtbli B. Method end ̂ nditidns Precedent to Payment. Section A Subsection 4 1" to
,  read:

4.1- Payment 'shall bo on a cost feimbursament basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
f^'f'i'rtieni of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance wth the approved line items as
•specined in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-4. Budget". .-.i-

. 5. Modify Exhibit B.-Melhod and Cbndilions Precedent to Paymenl. Section 8, to.read: "
.; fl. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required deliverables and documentation" as

idcniified in Exhibit A - Amendment (fr. Scope of Services, and in"'lhis Exhibit 8.'

6. Add ExhiWt 8-3, Budgei-Arriendmentffi.which is attached hereto and iocoroomied bvreference-
herein. ■ .

7. A(W Exhibit 8-4. Budget - Amendment #1. which is .attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein..- ^ ■

V..;,
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TWs Amendmenl shajl bo otfecbve July 1. 2021, upon Governor and.Executive 'CbOhcli approvai;
.whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ihe parties have sei their harids as of ihe date written below,

•vj' -v • Stale of New Hampshire , -■ «=•
?!- Oepartmeni of Healih and Human Services

5/25/2021

Dale

V -

C-OMvtKMvvr
Ai^. Tflty

Name: p«crtc>« h. Ti)i«y
Tille: ,

interim Oircctor

S/2S/2021

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital for itself and on behalf of
Oartmouth-Hiichcock Clinic

WAUiWmUML.

y—

(
Name:
Tille:

Jennifer Lopei '

Director of'Rejeerch Operations p'inance

•i-v
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>  i; OFFICe.OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

execulion.

-u

S/27/2021

/7—OwiJjpH

V—•* >M»XJ
Dale

-.p-

Name: Catherine Pinoj
Tllle:

Attorney

I horoby certify (hat ihe foregoing Amendmenl Was approved bylhe Governor end Eicecwlivo Council of
me SteJeof NewHampshirbel the Meeting on: .Mate of'meeting)

■' *' ' ••• • ' :

■<ii -r " >; . V QFF'CE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date

I A*' 'tv', '»

• * • v«

Name:
Tide:

•■r.

* il*
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Now Hampshiro Department pf Health and Human Services "
'Enhancing Reviews and Surveillance to Eliminate Maternal Mortality
___ Ex Hi bi t "AAi^ endmerit# r~

'  Scope of Services

1.. Provisions Applicable to All Services

t  1,1. The Coniraclpr agrees that.- to the extent future legislative action by the" New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have ah impact
on the Services described herein.^the.'State Agency has the nght to modify

V  ■ Service prioriiies and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so a.s to
achieve compliance iherewlih. '

.  1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has Identified the
Contractor as a Subreclpient, in accordance with 2-CFR 200.300.

•1.3. The Contractor shall ensure one (1) part-lime Maternal Mortality AbWactor
'i, provides data-related activities, which Include but are not llmlted tb:

1.3.1. Collecting maternal death" information. • '

iA- 1.3.2, Abstracting maternal death cases. V-.:

1.3.3. Reviewing maternal death cases. ' "

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Ccnlfaclor sh&li enter data into the MaternarMortallty Review'Information
Application (Mh^RlA) regarding deaths of wo"men in New Hampshire during
pregnancy and during the yearfollowing the end of pregnancy.

2.2. The Contractor shall enter abstracted maternal mortality case data and
information into the MMRIA within one (1) month of,receiving the information
from the Maternal Mortailty Review Coordinator. The Contractor shali:

.>;• 2.2.1. Conduct a record review in order to abstract data and information related
to NH maternal death cases.

2.2.2. Maintain working knowledge of the Center for Disease Control's (CDC)
maternal mortaliiy praclices and resources;. " • •

2.2.3; Refer to the Center for Disease Control's Review to Aclion website and
•  the Enhartcing Reviews and Surveillance to Eiiminpte Maiernal k/lortality
(ERASE MM) website for updated, maternal mortality information.

2.3. The Contractor shall attend abstractor trainings conducted by the COG. .

,2.4. The.Conlractor shall attend a minimum of two .(2) Maternal Mortality Review
Commillee (MMRC) m.eeiings each Slaje Fiscal Year of the contract period and '

.provide meeting minutes with recommendations to the Maternal Mortality
ReviewCpordinatorwilhinone(l)week'ofeachmeeling.

2.5. The Conlraclor shall mainlain the established Recommendations Work Group,
consisting of a multidlsclplinary group of individuals including, bul not limited to:

t:.

V- . p/, ,
Donmouin HiicTicocX Metflctf Qentef Ej^IWi A - AmenUmeni i!() CofUfaeio; IniUait L

SS-2020.0PHS-U-MATERN.01-A01 • PBgo1of4 Date
Rov.os/oens

'/.■

lH-'l



DocuSign Envelope 10: C1E3457B-fiA67^32C-A905-CFDFCOFCODB7

OecuSlgfi Envelope ID; efil6l406.5766-4332.B2CE.36A5A1A99A3e ' '

OoftiSieoEnvelwlO;77F76M)-OF5B-4CtC-A94J.FOeg56£e56M • * •}'
•••

Design envelop* to: SAe07Fte^8EB-«&F4-B475>14900COD2AM

.New Hampshire bepartmeni of Health and Human Services
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vir;

i,'

'  2.5.1. Mental Health Fadlity staff.

2.5.2. Community Health workers! <: .

.3 . 2.S.3. Medical personnel.. ' • .

The Coritractor shall facitilate in-person' or .virtual .meetings of the
.Recommendations Work Group on an as-needed basis to review and discuss
the reoommehdatibns of the MMftCi.
The Contractor shall utilize ihfor/ri'Slion provided by tho Recommehdaliono Work
Group to Iriform action on no less than two (2) projects each State Fiscal Year
of the contract period..

2.6.

2.7.

2.8. The Contractor shall in collaboration with the Department implement the
■recommendations of the f^MRC.

2.9. The Contraclpr shall attend weekly Organlzaliona! Meetings with the
.  ' • Department as scheduled by the Department. Meeting activities will include, but

.  are not limited to: i?-. '
• ^

"2.9.1. Identifying required educational content and materials.
2.9.2. Establishing Annual Performance Measures.

' = ■ 2.10. The Contractor shall develop the necessary educational content and materials
required to implement the recommendations-ofthe MMRO. •> .

2.11. The Cohlractor shall conduct monlhly MaternarMdrialliy educeiional webinars
representative of the educational content and materials developed which may
include, but.is not limited to. PowerPoint presentations.

2.12.' The Contractor shall in collaboration with the Department meet the Performance
Measures established at the weekly Organizational Meetings.

2.13. The Contractor shall attend monthly meetings'with the CDC as scheduled by
, the Depaftmeril. Meeting topics may include, but are not limited to;

.  . 2.13.1. Progress of Annual Perfonnance Measures.
2.13.2. Fuhclibning of the Mat.ernarMortality Review Information Application

(MMRIA).

2.13.3. Current national news.

2.14. The Contractor shall expand the Association of Women's Health. Obstetric and'
. Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN) Post Birth Warning Signs RiloC Program to all

State birthing hospitals. The Contractor shall:. ^
-2.14.1. Provide hospitals with the AWHONN education prograrn for mothers and

their farnilies lb increase awareness of postpartum warning signs; and .
•2.14,2. Ensure education is provided utilizing the Information developed by-the

•  national AWHONN. - •

OdrtmoulhHIlUwcKMedicalC«AtCf . ExhWiA-Ameftdmcrnfll Contr»ctoi lnlila1$:L_
SS-2O20OPH$-1 \ -MATERN-OI-AOl
R«v.09/06/1d
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i  ExKtbit"A"Amendnhent"#1'

3. Deliverabjes

.  3.1. The Contractor shall develop and sut)mit a Recommendations Woriisheet io the ^
Depanme'nl no laier-than thirty (30) days after each monthly Maternal Mortality
.Review Comrnitlee Meeting that includes. bUl is riot limited to: .
3.1.1. Actions"to be facililaled. by priority; and •.

'3.1.2.' Actions implemented. ^
3.2. The Conlraclor shall provide copies of PowerPoint proseniaiJons presented et-

Maternal Mortality education weblnars to the Department at the conclusion of
each webinar. -v >

4. Data Sharing

4.1. The Conlraclor shall.ensure any disclosure of identifiable confidential health,.
SUD or mental health information or data adheres to slate and federal laws and

5.: regulations relating to"safeguarding the confidential information, which includes, '
.  but may not be limited to:

4.1.1. The Health Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)'.

4.1:2. 45-CFR 160-164. 4, . ' '

•  ... 42 CFR Pan 2 for SUD Data ' .
^  4.1.4. .NH Administrative Rule He-M 2019 for MehtarHeallh Data. "V

" . 4.2.- the Contractor shall ensure confidentiality agreements are signed by all parties
sharing data in order to safeguard any identifiable information, collected arid <7 " -
disclosed to prevent any inadvertent disclosure of Indefinable iriformallon.

4.3. The-Contractor shall riot collect, receive, store, or manage confidential .data"
'  ; . related to the-scope of work and deliverables identified in this Exhibit A unie?s

Of until the parties have agreed in writing to a Data Sharing plan that Includes.
but is nollfmlied (0 the following: -t--

,  4.3.-1-; The purpose of the data exchange; . * ...i;:

•  4".3.2. - Description of the Department's data elements to be disclosed;

... 4.3.3. Source or. Systems of Records. .. b,

4.3.4. Numberof Records Involved and Operational Time Factors

4.3.5. Data Elements Involved '• •• i.;
• ••• ■ • ■ .vVjiv... 'V

4-3.6. Reporting andSecureTransmissionofConfideniialOata

4.3.7. ■ Oescripllon of the Contractor's data elements to be disclosed; and
4.3.8. Responsibllillesof both parties regarding the excharige'of'data.

y|ifi)9 ID«rtn>oulhHilchcockM«dic®lCofMei ExWbil A-Amendmcnifli , tonUacior tniiiala

SS-2KO-OPHS-11-MAT6ftN-Ol-AOl Pi>go36U Oolo
Rov.O9/0e/»8 . ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
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;  • ExhibitA^Amendment

4.4. . The-Contractor shall execute (he Data Sharing Plan'in a timely manrter so as
not to impede the scope of work- and deliverables identified in (his Exhibit 'A. '

4.5. ■ The Conlrectof agrees to modify the Data Shartng Plan in writing as necessary,
due to any changes to' the scope of work and deiiverables identified in (his

.  Exhibit A. • * ri

4.6.' The Contractor shall comply with the terms ot Exhibit K. DHHS Inrormalion
Security Requirements, which is attached hereto end Incorporated by reference
herein.

'''V-v:.:-
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• V'

•  Hie EKceUoncy. OovemorChrialophcrT. Sunufw
■ end me HonorBWe Council ,
State House ,
Concon). New Hsm^hlre 03301

1  REQUEiSTED ACTION
AutNdrtze (he bepsrtmeni ol Heellh.end Humon Servioes. Division of PubOc Health

Sen/ices. to-enidr-Into'8 Sole Source contract with Mory Hitchcock Memodai Hospitol
.  (VC0177'l60). Lebonon.'.NH In the amounl of Sl36.S5d for the collection end ebstrectior^ of dlrMcsl'
*' -QnO norvdinlcei date in order to prevent future meterna) deaths arid oddrest maternal morbldriloe

with the bplipn to.renew for up to two' additional yeers. effoctiv.e upon Governor ond Council
Bppfovfilthfouflh'June 30.2021.100% Pcdcrul Funds. "<

Funds efoovallabte In lite following account'for State Fiscal Veoro2020 and 2021.'with
the authority to adjust budget line itema.wtinin the price lirnitatldn end encumbrances between
etete fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and Juslffied.

^06-96-9D-002010-3A87000d HEALTH AND SOCiAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANO
I HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HWLTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
\ AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, MATERNALfftORTALiry •

-•v.-

Siato

Elscel Yeer

Cleee f

Account
ClBWTillO Job Number To^t Amount

2020 • 102-500731 Comroctsfoi ProgSvc eck)80476' $68,278

202'l 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080476 .$68,276.

Total-. $139,686.

,  . , ffcPiAWftTIOM- -

This request is Soio Source because (ho Department opocified (he vondor'o name during -
the grant eppticolion process, prior to the grant oward being issued. Dadmouth Hitchcock Medical
.Center oversees Ihc Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvemeni Natwortc (NNEPQIN);-
NNEPQIN is the aoja'perinotel quefiry 'collaboretrve for Northern New England. NNEPQIN Is
nomed in New Hempshlre Molornol Mortality legislation es.a partner In tt>e coliacllon, absl/e'ctlon
end partldpetlon In reyiew'.of rneternai death cases.

The'purpose ol this refquesi is for tno vendor to hire e part time abslroctor to assist In (ho
work around the Maternal Mortality Program. The obstr'actor will, collect'melemel death
infofmalion; obstract medical end non-medical records on maiemal death cases: end participate
In review of metemaldealh cases.

I-?'

..rt;;'
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Thfi eWufictor will'onter'dolo into UieMalernel-MorloUty Reviow Intomallori AppUcalioh '
reserding duths of 'M^rnan In Hew Hampshlm during pregnoncy find during thfi yeor following
tho ertd of prognflney. Tho obstractor wlfi etteod Vie Mfilemet Mortality Rovtew MeeUnge and
eaalol the Matornol Mortality Review Coordineior fit the Oepartmeni, as needed. The Contiaetor
will work with atakaholdere ei>d department to aeate en action plan to Impidmeni tha maternal
heatih ond wellness recorfimendfitione oa weD os develop educaUoriai and other, mBteriels for
healthcare protesslonalo andlhepubOc. .The Contraaorwtli oisoplloian AitodsaonofWomen'o
Ke6i(h,.0lMtetrie end Noonalol Nureoo Poet Birth Womlng Signs program in ot leeat throe (3)
birth hospflala ee/oso New Hampshire. The Assoclalion of Women'c Hoollh. Obstetric, end
Naoneial Nurses pilot progrem will provide education for mothers end thair femiuas tb tncrease
ewareneBD Of postpohum issues requiring medical attention.

The Department -will monitor cbntraded aaiVtces using the following performance
meesurfisr'

.  • Enter Intormatipn into Ihe Materhel Mortality Review information Applicotlon oh
motornal mortality case data 'end information within one {1) month of recelvlrtg the
Information front (he Maternal Mortality Review Coordtnator at (tte Oepartmeni. ,

■ Provide en annual rapbri on March is of oach year -that outlines the number of
' recpmrriendalibns for aclion prtorilttad'by the Recommendations .Work Qroup.

1  . • Provide a fIrtBlreport on jiinc S. 2021 that dotaiia lhe research completed by the legal
• ' ' . consultant.- - •

r;!, Ac loferencod In ExhlbH C-1 of the attached contract, the pariies have the optiorv to eslbnd
the -Dgreement for up two (2J oddliionol years, contingent'upon Balisfactory delivery ol aervlces.
avaUeble fundirig. agreement of iha pariies'and Govamor and Coundi approval.

... Should the Governor'and Coundi r>ot authorize this request. Ihe vvork that (he Metamal
Mortality Review Comrfilttee doos to make recommendations eround maternal daaths In New
Hampshire will bo delayed duo to lack of aislslertco in" completing the abstractirtg and cBae

• preparation for mzjlorhatmonpliryfevlfiw.

.s Area ecrved;.SieiewMe

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Fundsfrom Oepartmeni of Health and Humart Servicea.
Center for Oisease Control and Prevention. ,GFOA 0 93,478/ FAIN fl N58dP008893.

In Ihe event thai the Federal Funds become no longer available. Cenarel Funds will not
...' bdrequeaied (o.suppoft (hia program.

■  -..'.p Respectfully submitted.

loflA. Shlbinetto.
Commtesionar .v
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FOR>M NUiyieCR F-37 (vtnUn S/I/IS)
Su^jtCi: tfltllfltini Rtritri /inti <0 Eliminate Maltrml Monilitf [SS '' -MATPgNl

Noitcc: TK<)i|tc<mcn> end *11 ofiuituchnKnti thill brconx public wpon iubniitiior 'oCovcmof ind
Executive Ceuncti (or epprovel. Anjp lAfonutien ihoi'tt pri t«tc. conridcniiil or prop!iciiry inwii
b< cUiri/idcnitfted to (he ecCACy iirrtd loln wtiiin'ipfioi le tlgninf iKccoeimi.

•  ̂ ^ • ACfttChltWT '
T>tc Smc of New Himpihire end ihc Ceni'Kior hc'cby mutwtlly t|'rc et (oDoui; 7.

•  CCNCRaL PROVISfO.XS
•  . • ' • .' 'V'

1.1 Suie Agency Nimt
NH OcpiremeAi of Hcelih end Humin Scrvicei

\.i' $(ate AieneyAddiTit •
129 Pktiini Sircti

CoKe«d.NH<IJ]OlOI)7 . •*

"-t -fJ
1.) ComnciorNime'
Muy Hiichcoek Mtmoviel Hotpiul fee iiu'lf end on behiff of
Oinmowik-NiuKcork CliAie'fcollcetivtly (doing buiihcnei
"Donmomh-Hiiebcock")

1.4 Cnnirxigr Addreii r

One Midirel Ccnier Dr. L<benon. NH. 0)2)6

y.,

■ I.J. ComnciorPhonc'
Kember

AOVA30-3000

l.d ArcouniNiihiber'

0)-09s-090'-90}0i00487cio00

!.' Cemplciion Dale'

Jwrx )0.202l

1.8 Price Lii/nitaiion

S08.J>6 A  ;

1.9 ConirxliniOfTeer for Sieic Agrncy
•Nilhao 0. While. Olrteior

1.10 SiiK Agency Telephone Number
60J-32l.96)r

l.ll Conveeio/SigAiiurc

V  H 'i.

1.12 Nimc ind Title ofCoiMnCiOr Sigiutory ••'t
LeIihUwrgnj. Vice Prciideni"
Oftk'c vi'Reicareh Opertiton) *'

A'-
. ;•>.

rfo.

.. X'

I.I) Acknowlc\lgcmcrvi: Siitc'or ' .Cowftlyol

On .before ihcuAdcni|ncd.o(r<ccr.pcneeii)/eppceicd(he pcnon IdcnurKdinbtock I.O.or tetiificiorily
proven (0 be the pcnon irhou r»<rv iiiigned in block,'-I I • end tcknovlrdicd ihet t/he ciccuicd ihitdKvmcnt in the eepicity
indicettd inbleek U_2. .

1.1 ).t. Signaiurr of NoUiy Public or Jvidce of(he Prerc

IS.tll

t.l).? Name ind Title ofNoitry or Jvitke of ihr Peice

i.ld S .AecncySiiMiure

C-1-
Oik

I.I) Ninie end Title of Sietc Agency SigAAiory .s.

1.1A Appiovfti by ihc N.H. DcpinincAl Of AAn^AUirei<on..OMlion ofPcrtonncI {1/tip/tllet'hit}
U  ' ' . ' *

Oirceiof.On;

l.n Apptovel by ihr Attorney Cenrro.l (Form. Subxxncc'and Exceuiton) (i/niifdituhU)

B/U. ( lrUu.,iAa£e 0" ■ '^®>' 282020

1.16 .Af^ove)byibcC«vcrnorindCieeuiivcCDvai-il {\}

• ^By; Qn:
\-S'

•■fi

I-;.,

Pegclofd ,

■■
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2.-EMftOyM£NT.OF.CO.VTBACT;OR«eRVlCCS-TO -
. 0£ PtRFORMEO. The Sioio.of New Hompihire/nclinji
ihfOujfK ihe OfltiKy icWniirieJ in block .1.1 {"Smc"), Mtiejjri
cenirtdo/ Wtniififd.io bJotk I.J (••Conifscio;">'iop<<<onn.
end ihc Conirocior tiiBll perronn.^hc wofk c.lole orgoodi.o/
boih. idcniifitd end moft pafiicidiHy deicribcd in ihe omchrt
EXHIBIT A whichi$ iftCOfponird herein byetfeiencc
("Service I").

3. CFFKCITVC DATtrCOMPCETjON OF S£RyiCCS.~
•J.l NoMvlimndingeftyprbvijioporthii'AgrefnLenno the
eoftuery, end.mbjeet lo the epprovol of ihe Ce^trnor end ..

. EA'taiiive Council of ihe Sme.of NeiVMhmpthW. if
eppiiceblr, ih!i Acrcemcnr. end ell eblipniiont of thr psrilep
hereunde/, thell become efTceiivt on the dele liie Governor
end Execuilve Council npp/ov< (lii> AgrecmcMl es indiciicd in
block I.It, unleit no luch approve} is required; in Hiiehcuc
ihe Agneemrm piall beco'nK efTcciive on ihe deie ihe '
Ajreetvnr it ligned b>- ihe Sioie Agency ai ihown In block"

.  i.ieC-Eflecii^-eOaie"").
•.3.J IfihcComraeioreoinmcrKfi ilie Ser'vicei prior lo ihe

EfTeeiive O.iie. ell Scfvieei pcrforoud by ihc Coftirtcior prior
10 ihe EfTeciive Oaie ihaii be performed ti ihe lolf ri»V of live
Conirocior, ond in ihe evem ihai ihis Agrecmeni doei r>oi
bccon>e efTccliyr, ilie Siaie phnil lnvenbliablli^- loihr

;  Conirector, inciudiiig Vvi|l>oul limiiaiiori.any obligation to pay
•  ihc Coiiinictor for any eoiu incurred or Servkei performed; '

Conlfccior nruii compltlc all Scrvicci by ihe Completion Date
ipeciriedinblock 1.7.

*. COrVOinONALNATOREOrACBEEMENT^
Noiwiilijiandinj; nny provijipn of ihi» Agrcetneni <o ihe'
coiiirnry, all oblrgeiioni of ihc Sloie hereuiidcr, incliidift|.
wlrfioui limiuiion; the conliiuirmcc of payriicnij herciimJer, arc .
ronilngcfli upon (he ovailnbiliiy ond cominued approprisijoi)

• of fundp. end in no evcm thell ihr Siaie be liable for any
papiienii hcrtmider in c.ccejj ofnich ovnilabk opproprlaied
fundti'laihc evcfti of a rcduriionor lerniiiiaiion of
oppropriaitd'fuiidi.ilit Sinte thai) Kavc ihe righi.to withhold,
paymem until tvch fundi become ovtilabie. if ever, end ihall -
iievcihc right loirrtfiliioie rhii Agrcenuni immediaicly npon
giving ihe CoiHricior noiiec of luch icrinleaiion. The Simc
floll not be required to iranjfei furidi from ony oiher eccoum
io ihe Acconni idehiifred in block l.b in il* evem fnndi in ihm
'Accoun,! arc reduced or unavailable.'

.V CONTHACr PAICEfl'KlCE LIMITATION/
■ PAVMENT.
5;l The co^niraci price, method of p.^ymcnl, and termi of
payment ore identified nnd more paniculsrly described in
EXHIBIT 0 \vliieh is Irtco/pomied hercie by reference.
5.? *fhe payment by the Slate of the contract price shall bt ihc
only end ihc,complete rcimburjcnieni lo ihe Cottirtcioc for all
cupcniei, of ivhairvcr liainrc Inenrrerl by ihc Conirrcior in ihe

"pcrformance hereof, end shall be the onlyond llic eompleie'
compensation to the Cpnjracior for the Services. The Sine
^ihall have no linbiliiy lo the Contmcior other t}\an the coniraei
' price.

I'dfiC 2

—5.3-Thc-5iaic fTicrvfs.ihe rijht iodfriti from any amounts——
i-' oiheru jK pyobic to live Conirectoi under jhii Agrccmem

ihotc liquidated oflvoiinis required or pcnnliied by N.h! RSA
I0:7ihrough RS.A IBiT'Corony otherprovisionbflaw.
3.4 Nolvoihiiinding nny provision in ihii Agrecrnem to the

. conlfBry. end notwiiliKendiHg urK.xpecicd Crrruinilrmee'l. in
no event thell the loial of all peynieius iiiihoriud, br eeiually

•  ntede hereunder. eacced ihe Priee.timiiaiion i<i.fonh in block
1.4.

6. COMPLIANCE BVCONTftACtOR WITH LAWS
AiNDCieCULATlONS/EQUALEMPLOVMeNT " -
OPPOflTUiSTTV.
d.i In eonneoleii tvti'h ihc ptrrermanec of ihe ServScei. ihd,
Cunlnxior shall vomply tviih oil iiattiiei. loive.Tegglaiioni.
end order) of fedenl, iiaic, cduniy or mwrvicip.M evlhorlries
vvkichimpoie hny obligaiton or duty'upon ihe Contmcior;
including, but noi (invited lo. civil righii ond equal opportunity
li«v). This miy intlnde .the rcqoiremciil louilliic aw.*lliary
aids and seA*lee$ to eiiiure that persons with cemmunitaiion
distbiliiiet, including vljion. hearing sivd tpecchf Cdri
communicate with, receive infonhaiion fioin. luid convey
informniioft'to the Coniracior. In addition, the Conlratior
ih.tli cornply with all npplicoble copyright lawj.
6.7 Owing the icim of ihi» Agreement, iKe Cpniracior jioll '
noi discriminate agniiisi employees or epplicams fp'r
employment bcc.mir of mce. color. »eligion..ereed. rge; te*.
handicap, t'cjcuel oricniaiion. or national origin end will take •
afTifniaiive aciion lO prevent luch dlicrimlnoiion.
6.3 If (his Agreement is funded in any pan by nsoniet of iht
U/tilfd Sllttl. lite Con'irocidr shall comply wiili all Iht ' .
provisions of e.vcculivc Older No. ll246{"Eqoal '
Eniploynveni Oppominily"), oj jiipplemem'ed by The
rcgulahofisofihc United SioicVOepanmeni of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part SO)) end wiih any eulei, degiiloiions and guidelines
as Ihe Si lie of New Hampshire or.ihe Uniicd'Siaiei issue to
Implement these r'ejulaiipnt. The Commcior funhtr agrees to
pertnii the State or Utitied States access to nny of Ihe
Conirncior i books, records and aeebunts for the purpose of.
Asecrteiiiingcortvpliancc tvlih all rules, rcgnlaiions ond orderi.
Olid ilie covcntnis, icnns and condiiidiis of this Agrremcnt.

7.PERS0NKEU . Vi" ;..v.
7.1 The Conirtciorihnll at its otvn e.vpense provide nil
personnel neceiiary to perform the ScA'tcci. The Comnicior
werraiiis.itiai alt personnel engaged in ilic Services slull be
qtiDliricd 10 perform ihe Services, and shall be properly
hcMsed and othcnrijc nuihoflaedio'ck sounder all appticnble
law). .

7.2 Unless oiherxvise auihorited in'wriliiig, during the term of
Ihis Agreement, nnd for a period of lix fC) itionihs after the
Coniplfiioiv Daic in Uloek 1.7. the ConirTieipr shall not Itire,
oitd ihall not permit any Subcontriclor or bil»cr person, nrm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in n combined effort to
pcrforrti the Services to hire, ony person ttt>o is a State
employee or ofTieUl. wiip is materially Involved In the •. V
prxnremeni, adniinijirDiion 6r perfomthivec of this

of<l

Conireclor Initiali
Wfi. ■■■

• -V <t.

Pete 3/iS/2020
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-Agrcchieni.-Thlrproviilon »l>8>l lurv-lvr itfniiiiMion ofiliis
Ajrcement.
7.) ITie Coiiheciini OfTtccMpecirieil in ble<l> I -9. or hi) or
her tvccciior. ihall be ihc Sin.K'i rtprMeniAiive.' Inihe Cvtni
of eny ditpujc concerniftg die intcrprcoiioii or (his Agreeeieiu,
iht CoDinclingOrTicerli decisioii shall be Tniil Toi (he Sine.

I, EVEWTOf OCFAOLTMEMEOieS. r „•
■  I.I An)- one Of fnOK^o'Htt folto^'iflC Mil Or Owlltioot ofllvt
Conimrior shall consiiiiilc an event ordcTouli hcreundrr

.  ("Evcni ofDefaoir): .
B.r. I r«!lur( 10 pcrfomi the Soico laiiiraete/ilyor on
seheduU:
1.1.2 feilure lo submii ony report required hcrevnder; nnd^or
r.l.S railure.io perronn any .other covcntni, term orcondiiion
oflhij'A|fCcmcni.
1.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Ocrnult, the Stale
may i.lVe OnyOne*. or more, or ell. of the Collowlnj; nciion):
1.2.1 give the Coniraetor »sveliien noiiee spceirying the Event
ofOeiavit rtnd re^iHting It to be /cmedlcd vriihin, imhe
ebtcrtce of 0 grcott' or lose* tpeclfieaiidit of time, iliiny ()0)
days front the dnic of the notice; ond if (he Event of Ocfouli Is
not (liiKly rcnie^ied, termlnaie (hi) Agreernent, cfTebivciv'o
(2) dny) ofler gisnnt; (lie Coitintcior itoiice of (ermlnoiion:
8.2.2 give {he Contractor a ivritien notice specifyirtg the Event
of Ocfauli m>d sv'spcnding oil payments to b< made under (hi;
AgttemcBi nnd ordering ihni ihr portion of ihe'cpnimci pri^c ■
ttiiich tvDuld other^v()c accrue to the Contractor during the
period front rtic diieofsueh iiotrec tmtil such time as tltc'State
determines ihnt the Conirocjorhucuredihe Eveni.of Oefnuli
)hA)liKvcrbcpaidtoiheCoitirxior: - ■

f.?.}.sti orfngainji nny other obligiiiorts the Sinie rpay owe to
iheConinteioranydaniagci the Staip^iuffcrs by rteson of any
Event of [3efault: and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement rt) breached and purtuc o'ny of jts
remediu at inw or in equity, or both.

9. DATAMCCeSS/CONFlOENTIAUTV/

rneStRVATION.

9.1 At used in ilii) Agreement, (he tvord "data" shall tnc«n all
infprntstion eiid ihingi developed or obtained liurin'g the
perronnaitce'or.oi eequired or developed by reason of, this .
Agreement, including, but not limited 10, Ml Sludiet, reppn).,
file), formulne. surveys, maps, charts, sound recording), video
recordings, pictorial rcproduciiout. dmtvings, onnlyio.
•graphic rcpreteiilaiions, conipittc progreni); cdinptitcr
pn'moiiis, notes, Icucrt, mrmorond.a. papers, and-doeumcni).
all whether nnlshed-or unfinished.

9.2 All ditto artd any propeAy which ha) been rcce'ivcd from
(he State or purchased wiiii ruuds provided for thai purpose
(ritdci ihil Agrccriieiil. lliltl be the property of the Stile, end
th.->ll be .returned to the Smle iipon dcm.indot iippii
(Crinin.iiion of ihi) Agreeiiicrti for any reason.
9.2 Conndeiitinliiyof ilatit shall be govenibd by K.H. RS'A
chapter 91-A or other r.fisiiug law., pisclosu'eofdai.e '
requires prior writteu opprovitl of ilie Smc. xv-.

S,:

If TERhllNAHON. Intbecvem of tin early eerminition of
this Agreeinem fof.any'reflJOii other than the eomplciitHi of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Comrociing
OfTiccr, not later than riflecii (I J)days ofterthe dateof-
lennination, it rrpon (!'Terruinaiion Repot") describing tit
dftai) nil Strvieei performed, nnd .ihe eonimei price enrned, to
.(ind iududii>| the daicof icnninMion. The fom, subject
matter, conieui, and number of copies of the Tcrniiiiatioit ■■■■.■
Repen iKall be.idemieal io ihoie of any Final Repot
deseribed in ihc.atiiched EXHiBir A.- .

II.COiVTRaCTOR'S relation to the state, hi.
tiie perforhiancc of ihij Agrtemeni the Cottracier is in'ill
reiSKCis bn indrpcniltrii' conii.seior, nnd i) neither m a|CiU nor
an employee of the Stoic.' Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTiecrs. employees, ogcru; or members ihelthavc auihofity to
bind the State or receive Aiiy bettcfiij, troftceri' conipensotien
or other CMoliimemj provided by the Staid io.iis employees.

rZ.ASSlCNMEATfDr.LF.bATlON/SUBCOhrTRACTS.
TIk Contfacior shall not a)si|i\ or cihertWse irorisrci any
iitieresi hi t)iii Agreemem vriihgui the prior wriliea ngiiee nnd
conseni of Ihe State.. None of the ScA-ices shall be
(qbcomracied by the Contracipr snihc^ut iK'e snior wrliieu

'noiiceandcoDsembfthe State. .i

1). INDEMNIFICATION. Thc-Conttictorshafl defend. '
. indemnify and hold hirmlfstdic Sillc. itsoflicers and
. employee); front nnd against any and nil losses sofTcrtd by the.

State, its officers and employeei, and nn)' and all claims,
liabilities Of peiialiiej'pjsened ogelnst ihc Siritc. its ofTicos
nnd'Cmployccs.'.by or on behMfofniiy pcrsou, on oecouui of.
bisedot.fTSnltlngfrbm. arising put of (or whithntay.be
claimttj to arise out oO the acts' or omissions of.tht
Coniractcf. .Notiviihsiorsdhig'ihe foregoing, noihinglierein'
contained shall be deemed io consiiiuit o waiver of iht

' sovereign inmtimity ofiKe Stale, which ininnmity is hereby ' '
reserved to the S.iaic. This coycnnnt in paragraph 13 shall
survive thciernsiiiaiion of this Agreetneui.

H. INSUfUNCE..
14.1 Titc Contractor shell, at iij sole e-epenti, obtain and
nininiain in force, and ihnll require npy snbconiiiicier or
assignee loohinin and mainiain in force, the foliowing
ittsurancc;
14.1.1 compreheitslve general liability insiirance ognirtsi all
deliu) of bodily injury, dcAih Or properly dama'ge, in oniounis
ofnotlos then Sl.OOO.OOOpcr.oecurrcnce and 82,01)0,001)
aggregaic; and •
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage forn.t covering all
propenjf subject to subparagnaph 9.2 herein, in eh uriioimt not
leisjhnn JOV. pfthe tvliolt rcplaecmeni value of'tlic property.
14.2 The policies described In Subpamgraph I4'.rhcrein shall •
be on policy formi and endorsemenii approved for use in the
Stite.ofNew HAinpihircby the N.1-). Oepanment of
InsurAnee, nnd issued by insurers licensed in the Sime ofNew
Hampshire. *

[
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—l4:}■TI>cGonlre<lor'ihftll:fumilhtO'lhe'Colllleeltn|•0^^ccl-—
.  idcniirirdin.biock l.9,orhitorhci,tu<criio/. treniricRicI})

of intunncc for all iiituranee rc^ui/cd undcr'ihii AgrecmcKi.
' Conimcior ihMI etio fumiih lo (he Conireeiiny OfTicer.

. jdcniificd in blKk 1.9. or his Or hci tucccnor, (CAificeicft) of
msuiance for ell reneuilfs) of iflsuroiu required ut\dcr ihis
Agnrmer^i no later than ihiny (JO) days prior to the cxpirotion;
daieofeaeh of (Ik iniuruice policies. The ccniri(eic(t)ef
Nifunnce and iny rcnctvils thereof thsti be eitarKed and are

* ineeipo/oicd herein by refcrtnee. Each cc/iinc»le(t)of
.Hieurtnce itiall eeniaiit'n claute rrqniiinp (Ik injurer lo
pfpviPe (he Coninciing OfTicer idemified fn blxf: 1.9. or his
or her tucccssor.'no less than (hiny (36) days prior MTtiiai
'npiicr of cencelloiiOiiOr niodirrcsiionof ihc'policy.

15. WORKERS'COMFCnSATtOK. , ^
15.1 By signing ihisagreernent.ihe Conirocior agrees,
ceniries end werrani} thai ibe Coniracior is in compliance «viih
or cacmpt from, the reqniremenijof N.H. RSA ehnpter lSl-.h
^'ICo»-if»:»'Co/n;>er«o#/0n7-

,  /i.7 To the cxiem tlte Cortincipr is subject to the
reqiiitenicnit ofN.);!. RSA chapter 2II«A. Coiiinrtor shall

. malniain, and re'quire Any subconirector or atsignec.io secure
apd nieintarn. payhicnt of Workers' Coinpciistiion in '
COniKdion >vilh activities vvliich ilie person proposes to
undertnle pursumi to ilii^Agreemrni. Conimcior shall
rtirnlshtheConirAciingOfncer identiricd in block 1.9, orhii
oriicr succciior, proof of Workrrs' Con^cnsaiion in the
ntAtmtr described in N.H. RSA Chapter 211 -A ond Any
eppliceble rcncvvAl(s) (hereof, tsliich iliall be onoclied and are
incorponicd herein by reference. The State ih til not be
'retponsible for payment ofan^ Workers' Co/npcnsaiion .
prentiuins or fpr.any other cbini or benerit for Coniraetor. Or
any lubcOAtracsor or employee of Conirnetor. Vihieh luighi
arise under applicable Sieie.of Kec Hampshire-Workers' '
Compensst'on letvj in conneeiion'mih the performance of(he
Services under lhis,Agieeip(ni.

.id. WAIVER of; breach. No failure by (he Siaie (o
enforce any provitions hereofnfler any Ewhl of OcfauH shall
be dcentcd n tvsiver of ■() rigtxs itIiIi regard ro thai Event of
Ocfrtiiii.or nny subscqutni Event of Ocfnuli.' No e.xpreh
(allure 10 enforce nny Event dfOerauli slialj bcdernied a
svoivci of the righi of the State to enforce each and all of ihe

..provis'ions bercofupon any furthcr-or 0(hu flvciti of Dcftuh
OA the pan ofibc Cofliiftcior.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pa'rty hcrcio (O the other jisny
shall be deemed ip have been duly delivered or given ai the
(in)c of mailing by certified mail, postage prepeitS. in a Uniird
Si.-uei Post OfTice nddretied to the pan'»es at the itddrrsict
given in blocks 1.2 and i.d. herein.

16. AIMEA'OMtNT. This Agieemeni tisoy-bc oniendcd.
(voivcd or discharged only by An instnimeni in uviting signed
by the paAies hereto ond.only nfler approval of such
oineiidincn). waiver or doeharge by tlie Governor and
Execiiiive Council of the Sinic of New Hampshire utsless no

-such approvol.i).rtquired.iindei;.ibe.circ(imstaiK<s.punuani.4o..
SiAie (nw. rule or policy.

19. COiVSTRUCTION 0> ACREEMEFTT AKD TERMS.
Tliis AgrecAiini tloll bc cortstrued in accordance wiih ihC'
laws of (he Stale of New Hampshire, 0i(d is binding upon and
Innres tothe benefit of the pan! ts and their respective
(uceeKors and assigns. The-wordi<i| used hwKis Agreement
it the (voiding eliosen by ih< ponies (a r.(press ihe*' tnusual
.inirni. and no nile orconst'KiiOii ihalt be applied againtt or
ill favor of any party.

20. tHiRO TARTtCS. The .ponies hcreio do not inieha to
benefit any ihiid penici and iKii Agrcenieni fhtll noi be ; y
<onstr»»c(}iocflnfcfonysuchbcnefii. .-'•-p "v

21. headings. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for rcfcrcitee purposes Only. And the words coniained
therein shall in ito wpy be held to e.tplai'n. modify.'nmplify or
aid in the iiitciprclation.eoiutrveiionor me tiling of (he
provisions of this Agrecniei)!. ' .

22. SPECIAL TROViSlONS. Addii'mnai provisions set
.fonli in (he eiinchcd EXHIBIT Core incorporsicd herein by
refercfsec. i •

2); SE>^ERABILtTV. In'Ihe cv£nitny.ofihe provisions of
this Agreement are iield by acoun of conipcicni jurisdiction ro
be'eonirary to nny sifi'eor federal Inw, the remaining. .
provisions of this Agreemeni uSlI remain in full force and
effeci. - ■ . , •i'

2J. ENTIRE ACREEMtNT.Thls Agreemeni, which may
be executed In n number of connierpans. each of which shnll
be decntcd an orig'tial. conttimies the entire Agreertitm end
undcrsiftiiillhg betxccn ihe'panies. and supersedes all prior
Agreetnenis and andentandings relating hereto.

•7-: ■

If

tpy.
.;k'

Page 4 of 4
■Conlrnclor Iniliols k

j .Dart
Trnrmr

('•..v.

•M/



DocuSign Envelope ID: Cl E3457Br8A67^32C-A985-CFDFC0FC0DB7

OocuSign Envelope ID: E816UD6-5766-4332-B2CE-36A5A1AMA3E

OocuSlpn Envel^ 10: 77F7E38VDF3O<4ClC-A94>F0EeS6E83838

OeouSlpA Envelope ID: SAM1Fi6.FQ£(M»E4-e475-14BOeC002AU

**V ■ ' . • ' .
OecuSign EnvttepeSX- oe2i0iA»e7|F-43C8-tAte^iE7f 7»ot le

New Hampshire OepaKment of Keelth and Human Services

"Enhanclng'Reviews and SiirVelllance'lo Etlmlnaie" MatefharMortalitf
•  Exhibit A

.r?

■M-i

Scope of Services.

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Conlracior shall submii a delalied d8SCiiplior> of (he language assistance

•  services (hey will provide (o persons with .limited .English proflciepcy lo ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within "ten (I0)'days of the
conlreci effective dale.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative eclion by (he New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on (he Sen/ices described herein, (he Stale Agency has the right to modify
Service priofiiles and expenditure requirernents under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith. . ' i; .

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreemehl, the.Departmenl has identified the Cor^lraclor
as a Siib recipient. In accord.ance with 2 CFR 200.300. •

T--. 1.4. The Cohlractor shall ensure one (t) part-lime ts/lafernai Mortality Abstractor
provides data-related acilviiies. vyhich include but are no! limited (o;

.  1.4.1. Collecling maternal death information.
1.4.2. . Abstrscting.maternaldeath cases. " "
1.4.3.. Reviewing.malernai.dealh cases'. v

.2. Scope of Work ' , .
2.1. The Contractor shall enter data into the Maternal Mortality Reylew Information

Application (MMRlA) regarding deaths ol women In New Hampshire- during
pregnancy and during the year following the end ol pregnancy."
The Contractor: shall enter abstracted maternal .morlolily case data and
informatlorl irrio (he MMRIA withir> on.e (lj month of receiving the information
from the Maleinal Mortality Review Coordinator'. The Contractor shall; .

'2.2.1... ConducI a record review in order to abstract data and information
related to NH maternal death cases. '.r

Maintain vyorl^lng knowledge of the Center for Disease Control's (CDC)
maternal mortality practices and resources. •
Refer to the Center for Disease Control's Review to Action website and
ihe Enhancing Reviews and -.Surveillance to Etiminale •Maternal

V,, Mortality ■ (ERASE MM) website for updated maternal mortality '
Informetioh.

2.3. The Contractor shall attend abstractor trainings conducted by the COC as well
as meetings as required by the'Deparlment.

2.4. The .Contractor shall allend .a minimum ol two (2) Malernal h^orialily Review
Meetings each.year.and provide minute meeting notes wiih recommendations

.2:2.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

OsitmouU) Hi(cftCOCk'M«(fic<) Corner

$S.2D20-DPH$.n-ktATEftN
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' wllhin one (1) week to the.Maicmal Mortality Review'Coordinator.
^  ̂ 2.5. The Ccntraclor shall establish a-Rccommendalions Work Group , in person or

'fr Via Virtual mBeiing, to discuss the recommendations deveioped through the
Maternal Mo'rtallly Review CommlHoe (MMRC) The conlroctor. shall ensure
thai the Recommendations Work Group, consists of e muliidlsciplinary group
"consistingof. but are nollimiled to;

;*'■ 2.5.1. Mentel Heallh feciiitics . v-; y
2.5.2. Community Heallh Workers

irv*. S 1 2.5.3. Medical personnel ' "
2.6: The Coritraclor sholl use infomiation gathered from the Recommendations

• Work Group.to inform action one projecl for the year.
.. 2.7. The Contractor shall develop an action plan to implement MMRC maternal
f; heallh and wellness recommendation's. The Contractor-shall:

"  . 2.7.1. ' Provide an annual report thai details: .y'^'
2.7.1.1. Fcasibliify assessment by the Recommcridations Work

Group of which recommendations from the MMRC are'
-• " actionable in NH to improve slalewidfe maternal heallh and

wellness.. ; • • '
2:7;1.2. Acllon'plans'lor selected recommendatidhs.

2.7.2. Develop up to* two (2) forms of e'ducatio.nal.materials for NH obstetric
medicar professional's and/or the public' ' based on the
recommendations chosen lo focus-on by the Recomrmendations Work
Group. Educational maierial shall Include but is no! limited to the

.iv. • '• .. .. following:
... ' 2.'7;2.i.1. Eleclfonlc reading material "

■''* V 2.7.2.-1.2. Brochures ""

2.8. The Contractor shall conduci a pilot project inyearone (ljusingthe Association
of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN) Post Birih
Warning Signs program m at least three (3) birth hospitals across New

.-i .Hampshire. The Ccntraclor shall;
2.8.1.1.1. ; Provide hospitals wilh the AWHQNN education program forrnothers •

- and their farn.ilies to increase awareness of poslpartum- warning-
■  6"9n5. ■ ^ ' - ■ •

"  2.0.1.1.2. Ensure edOcalion Is provided ulllijing the information developed by
,  the naliprial AWHONN.

-7 2.8.1.1.3. Gather feedback about the pilbl p.rogram from' personnel at
'  v. hospitals to inform widespread use of the AWHONN Poslpartum
DBftmoiAhHilchcock M^dlMlCenlct. EicNtHiA •"? CoftVKtofIftiliBla - -
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Warning Signs education to all.NH birth hospitals. .
2.9. .The Contractor shallimplemenl (he AWHONN Post Birth Warning signs program

in all New Harhpshire-birth hospiials that are inleresled in participating aOer the.
initial period of tho pilot program based on results of the pilot program.

...ji. '2.10. The Contractor shall essisl the'Maiernal Mortality' Review Coordinator with
Increasing obsieuic medical professionals'undcrslonding of. local access to
Fan\ily Resource Centers in order 1c support pregnant, postpartum ond .
parenting women. The Contractor shall:
2.-10.i. ■ P/ovfde a list'of suppdrts developed by the Governor's Perlnaial

Substance Exposure "Task Force. Plan of Safe Care (POSC)
subcommiltee lo the slaKeholders Subsection 2.6. • '

2.10..2. Provide..,all obslelric providers in (he State of New Hampshire with a
-svv; comprehensive list of community-based .supports and Services for

^am^lies. • ;
,  2.11. The^ Contractor shall work with a legal expert to inform the Maternal Mortalily

. . Program about the legality .of sharing information across state borders in -order-
to obtain complete records for review of cases,for all maternaf.dealhs.

3. Reporting
;j 3.1. The Contra.clor shall provide ari annual report, due March. 15 of each year that:

3..1..1. Outlines the number of recbmrnehdalions for action prioritized by the '•
Recommendaiions Work Group '

3.1.2, Specifies the actions taken. • ' ?-• ^ •i.-.v —,•<>
■3.2. The contractor shall provide a finalrepbn no laler lhan June-5, 2021 ihat'delails

the research completed by the legal consuliant. which includes, bul is not limited
'  -to;.

3.2.1. ' Informaiion collected on daia sharing belween slates.
.3.2.2. MalernarMortalitylegislBlion passed, specifically in'bordering slates. *'

,.A 3.2.3.- A potential: plan for. moving forward toward cross-border sharing in
order to successfully review all maiemal death cases.

«  . • • * '

4. Data Sharing
'• 'V* }'■ •

4.1. The Contractor shall cnsure.any disclosure of identirrable confidential health.
SUD of mental health info/malion or data adheres to stale and federal lows and

-•v; cegulations relating lo safeguarding (he confidential informaiion, which includes.
but may not be limited to: • . .

' ' . * * * . ..\KJ, 4.1.1. The Health Information Portabilily and Accounlabilily Act (HIPAA).
4.1.2. 45-CFR 150-1&4. ' p.-

DlflnioulhHilchcodtMocJicOlCcnier - EitfiibilA " "" Conlrwaof

'  SS-ZOJO-OPMS-II-MATERN Peg# 3 0(4 Oolo'5/^5/2020
Hov.OffOfi/re • —TTTTi-.'

•■Ijr 'A-i

;x:. ■if,-



DocuSign Envelope ID: C1E3457B^67-432C-A985-CFDFC0FC0DB7

bocwSign Envelope ID: E816l406-5766-4332-B2CE^36A5A:iA99A3e'

O^Sipn Envelope ID: 77F7E3»1«FSB-4ClC-AM34:0E9ME8&636

OoeuSIgn Envelope lO: SA907« ie-FeE8:4iF4«478-'l4909COO2AB«

OecvSl^ Envfflcpe lb; b87t0lAM7fir4]Cfr-9A9MA^pF7S0i 16

New Hampshire Departmen! of Health and Human Services .
CaakfkM^lMM Ci ■ Ml A II A Ia ClImlns^A fU aFavaEnhancing RevieweahdSprveiiiancOo'Ellmlnate'MaternarWoHairty*

Exhibit A

f- ..

'.9. ■"

...
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A.t.

■4.3.

4.1.3. •42CFftPafl2fofSUOOata .

4.1.4. NH-Administfative RuI.e He-M 2019 (or Mental Health Data.

The Contractor shall ensure,cbnridentiality agreerne'nts are signed by ell panies
sharing daja.in order (o safeguard any ideniiri'able Infor'maiion collected and
disclosed to prevent any inadveneni disclosure of irtdefinable Information.

The Contractor $hall hot collect, receive, store, or manage confidential data
related to the scope of work and detiveraoies identified in this Exhibit A-uniess or
■until the parties have agreed in writing to a Oats' Sharing Plan that includes, bul
is not limited to the following:

4.3.1.

4.3.2.

4.3.3.

,4.3.4.

4:3.5.
4.3.6.

4.3.7;

4.3.8.

The purpose ol the data exchartge;
■)

•  4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

.Descripilort of the Departhienr's data elements to be disclosed: •

Source or Systems ol Records

Number of Records Involved and Operational Time Factors

Data Elements Involved ^
Reporting'end Secure Transmission of Confidential Data -
Description of the Conlractor'i data elements to be disclosed; and
Responsibilities oi both'parties regarding the exchange of'data.

The Conlr^actor shall-exe'cute the Data Sharing Plan in a limeiymanner so as not
to impede the scope of work and deliverables identified In this Exhibit A.

The Contractor agrees to modify the Data Sharing-Plan In writing as necessary.'
due to any changes io.the scope of work and deliverables identified in this Exhibit
A. -.'i

The. Cor(Uacldf shall comply wilh the terms of Exhibit K; DHHS Information
Security Requiremenls. which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference-
herein.-

'-r vF.- • "
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• - Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Procedertt to Payment: ;

1. The Stale shall pay the Conlraclor an omouni hot to exceed the Porm P-37. Block 1.8.
Price Ltrnitation for jhe services provided pursuantJo Exhibit A, Scopeof Services. -

2. This Agreement life funded with 100% Feiderai Furtds from Centerfe for Disease Control
& Prevention. Preventing Maternal O^alhs; Supporting Maternal Mortality Review •
Committees Grant. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA)P93 470 Federal

.  Award Identlflcalion Number.{FAIN)#NljS8DP006693.

3. Failure to meet ihe scope of services'may jeopardize Ihe funded Contractor s current '
and/or future fur^ding. . ' *

4.. Payment for said-services shall be made rnonlhly as follows:

■  4.1. Payment shall be on a cos! reirnbursement basis for ecluarexpendilures Incurred ■
In Ihe fulfilliment of this Agreerhent. and shall be in accordance with the approved
line Items as specilied.in Exhli)ii B-1. Budget and Exhibit 8.2 Budget.
The .Conlraclor shall submit an invoice in a form seiisfaclory to the Slate by the ^
twentieth (20''') working day of each month, .vvhich identifies and requests
reimbursement lor aulhorizcd expenses incurred in the prior month. -
The Conlraclor shall ensure the invoice is compleled; signed, dated and relumed
to the Department in order to iniiiatc payment.

■ 4.4. The State sh'ati make payment lo theCbntractoi within thirty (30) days of receipt '
■;t: invoice ,.subsequent to .approval of the submitted Invoice and'if sufficient

■  funds are available.

5. The Conlraclor. shall keep detailed .records' of their activities related to Ocpartment-
funddd,programs and fe ervlces and have records available for Department review as

'  requested. '

6.. The final invoice shall be due to the Stale no later than sixty (60) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General provisioris Blo'ck"1.7 Compleiion Date; ■

7: In lieu of hard .copies, ell invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed-
to DPHSconi/actbilllng@dhhs.nh.gov(gdhh5.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to: '

;-j Finaricial Administrator'
Department of'Healih and Human Services
Division of Public Health
29 Hazen Drive. • '' i

4.2.

4.3.

Oatmourn HitcticocX Mc0)c«)Ccnlcr'
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Exhibit B

♦4 ^
8.

. 9.

10

.  Concord. NH 03301 • . '

Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Idenlified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 0.
i^otwithstanding anything to.the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that.funding
under this agreemeni may be withheld; .in whole or In.part,..in Ih6 event of non-
compliance with any l^ederal or Slate law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the eatd services or products have no! been satisfdciorlly complcied In
accordance wilh the terms and co.n'dllions of this agreement.
Notwithstanding 'paragraph' 18 of the General Provisions P-37. change's limited to
adjustirig amounts between budget line Items, related items, amendments of .related
budget exhibits within the. price limitation, and to adjusting encufnbrences between
Stale Fiscal Years, may be made by written egrcerhenl of both parties and may be
made without obtaining epp.roval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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SPeCiALPflOVISIONS . • 5

• Conirecton ObCgalions: Tho Contn)6lor covenenli 'ond agrees that ail funds received by Ihe Cor>lrDcior
under (he Contiecl shel) be used only as paymeni lo Ihe ConlVdcic for servicos provided lo eligiblo
ifld^duels and. In (he furVierenco of Ihe aloreioldcoveAanis. (he Cohlroelorhcrebycovonanls end '
ogreei as foOowi:

1. CompiJanee wiih Federtl end Stele Lowe: II (he Conintclor is pe/miTled lo determine Ihe oliglbCiiy
of tn'dividuais cuch eligibiSiy determlnaiion ehei bo made in occordenee vAh appl^ble loderel end
stele lews, reguieitons, orders, guidelines. poCcies ondprocedures.

2. Time and Menner of Oetermlnatlon: Siiglblliiy dtiprminelioni than be made on forms provided by'
Ihe Ooponmeni lor (hel purpose end ehali be mede end remade oi tuch limes os are ptetcdbed.by
(he Depertmeni.

3. Documentallon: In addition lo lha delermlnation forms required by (ha Oepirlmeni. (he Contractor
shaU moinlBin a deleTile an each recipienl-ot ser>^es hereunder.'wf^hfila ehaU iryclude aO
mformalion necessary lo support on eligibfliy deiermihation end such other inforrrieiion as (ha
OepartrnenI requesd. The Conlrocloi shel lumlsh lha Oeperirheni wUh all forms end documenteiion
regardingeiigibllilydalermirietionsihellheOepsrlfltenimayroquosiorroQulre. ■

4. Fair Heeringst'The Cof>lrac(orundersionds thai all eppiicents for servicos hereunder, as well as
indivlduBis declared inaiigtele have a right 10 e lair hearing regerdiryg thai deienmineitdn. The
Coniraclor hereby covenants end agrees Ihei pu epplicanii for services shaD be permined to nu out ■

• an epplicalton form and thai qach epplica'ni or re-epplicenl shall be Informed of his/her rig'hi to ofoii '
hearing in Bcebrdeh^ with Oepdftmenl regulai'Bns.

5. GreiulHes or KIckbacho: The C'oniracior'agrees lhal it Is o breach of this Contract to accept or
rneke o peymerq. greluiiy or offer of employmenl .on behall.oj Ihe Coniraclor. any Sub-Coniractor or
(he SlBle in ordqr lo Infhienco the performance of.lha Scope of Work deialled in Exhibit A of this
Contraci. The S.iale rnay lenmlnale Ihis'Coniroci drvd ony sub-coniraci or sub-agreement if It Is
(talermined (hoi payments, gratuities or offers of cm^oyment ol any kind were bftetad or received by
eriy officials. oHicers. em^yees or-agenJs of iho Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

€. Relroaciive Payments: Nohwfthsianding enythirvg lo Ihe conlraryxoniatned in the Contract or in
any other documcnl. contracl 0< understendng. it is expressly yirrdorslood end agreed by'the parties
hereto, lhal no payvnents'will be made hereunder to reimburse the Coniraclor for costs Incurred (or
any purboso or for any services provided lo any individual prior (o Ihe Effective Dale of Ihe Contract
and.no'paymenls shali be made lor expenses incurred by Ihe Coniraclor for any series provided
prior to the dale on which'Ihe indivldudl applies (or services or (except a^s otherwise provided by the
federa) regulations) prior lo a determlnaiion ihoi the indrvidua) Is eligible lor such services.

'  ■'** '*

7. Co'ndiilons of Purchase: Notwtlhsianding anything lo.the conlrary conioined in the Contiaci, noihlr>g
herein cordaincd.shatt be deemed to obfrgale or require (he Oepartmenl to purchaso sarvic'es
hereurxler ol a r6lo which reimburses the Conlrecior in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
whtch exceeds the bmounis reasonable and nbcessary.lo assure the queiiiy of tuch saiv'ico.-or at o

•  role whtch exceeds the rate charged by (he Conlrqclor lo inefgible r'ndtviduols or other I'hlrd party
-  furtders lor such cervica. If ol any time durlrtgihe term ol (his Contract or ohar receipt of the Final •

^x'peodilure Rapoil heraunder. Ihe Oepehmenl shall deterr^ne Ihol the Conltoclor has used
ppymenis hereunder to reimburse iicms of espenso olhcr than such cosls. or has received payment
in excess of such cosls or In exceSs of euch rotes charged by (he Contractor lo inefigible indlvkfuais
or other third parly fuftders. the Oopanmenlmoyciecito:

■ T

in' V '

pi

r'-

7.1.
7.2.

Renegollele ihe rotes (or payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall bo eslabllshod: -
Ooduct Irpm any future payment.(o Ihe Coniraclor Ihe amount of any prior reimbursemenim
excess ol costs; • p-
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7X- Oemond.repflymenl.of Ihe exce»« ppymeniby Ihe Conirecio/ in vAich evenl folluie to ma^ie
Duch 'epBymenl'sheD conttilulo en Event of Defaul) hereundcf. When lh« Conlrector Is

', pcTfnined 10 deiermlAo ihc eiigibHiiy of indVtdveis f(K se^'<ces, the Contractor agrees lb
reimburse the Oewrtmenvfor all funds paid by the Oepaftment to the Coniractor for services "
provided to eny Ind^t^uai who Is found by the Oeparlmenl to be ine^We lor such-services et
onyllmeflurinsthepcriodolrelenlionoliecordscVoWishodherelh. • • i-

RECOROS; MAINTENANCE. RETEnTJON. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFlOENTfALlTV; r."

6. Malnienanco-of Rocords: in eddiiion to the eBgiD!.iiiy recoids specified above, the Contrsclor
covenenls eod epreea to melniBin the loUowtng records during (he ContreciPeri(^;

6.1. Flicel Records; rocords reflecting ell Income recelvod or coHoctcd by the Coniroctor vr>der ihij
Agreemeni..

■I E-2. Stdlit(icel,Records; Slaiisilcal. enrollment, eltendence or visii records for eechrecipleril of'
services during the Contract Period, whichrecords shall irKlvdo oil records ol oppt'cationarid

■ eiiglblliiyfincludirvg'at) forms requiredio.determtneeDgibBiiyforeachsuch re'c^ieni). records
•regarding the provision of services ond eu invoices tubmilied to the Oepertmenl to obtain .
payment for such services under this Agreemeni.

8.3. Medicel Records: Where appropriate ertd os prescribed by the bepartmenl fcguleUon»;\he
Corriractor sheD reiai/t medical records on each peiienl/recipleiM oi services during-the
Conirecl Period. '

.  S. 'Audii:Conlr8clor>ha0submiten-annuar6udito(heOipartmentwHihih60days3Rerihoctoseofihe
• agency ftuoi yoar. li is recommended Ihet the repofl be prepared in accordance wiih the provision of

ptficoof Mahagtmenl end Budget Circular A-ijj, "Audit of Siolcs. Local Oovernmenls. ond Non
Profil drgoriiictions" ond the provisions o) Sianderdt fp' Audti of Govcrnmonlal Organijolions.
Prograrns. Acliviiics ond .Functions. Issued by Ihb US General Accooniing Office (GAO siondords) bs

'■"> (hey pertain to financial compliance audiis.
•  * • •

9.1. Audi! end Retnew; During the lerm of this Cortlrocl add the period for retention hereunber, (he
. ' Oepisrtment. (he Unlied States Oepartmenl of Heeilh end Humen Services, .ond ony of (heir

. designated represenieiives sha9 hove access lo ou reponi and records maintained pursuant to
. the Conirecl for'purposes of oudil. exerbingiion. excerpts ond Irenscrrpls.

, 9.2. Audit Liabmies: In oddilion to and not ineny way Inlimtiaiiortol obiigelions 61 the Contract, it Is
understood end agreed-by the Contractor Ihbl the Conlreclor shall be held iialiie for any'flate
or federal oudii exceptions' ond shell return to iho Oeparlmenl. el) peymenls made under iha
Coruract lo which exceplion has been Irten or viWch have'been diseJlbwed because o' such en
oxc6olior>.'

.  , -i '•' t'"
10. Confidoniielity of Records: All informalion. rspods. bnd records rnp'tniainedhefet/rtder or colfeclod

In conneelion wSh Ihe performence of (he.eervices arid the Cbhtrect shell bo confidential end shall '
not be disclosed by (he Contractor, provided however, tliai pursuant to stale laws ond the regulations
of the Oeparlmenl regarding the use-ond disclosure of such information, disclosure maybe made to
public oft'cials requiring such informalion in connection wnth (heir official duties er>d (or purposes
^irectlyMnnecled to the adminislratioriof the services end ihaConuaci; and provided further, lhat

.  Ihe use or dtsclosyra by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for eny purpose not
directly qonrsected with the odm'tnisiraiion of (he Oepe/tmoni or the Ccntrecior'&.responsiDihTiee with
respect lo purchased sorvtces hereunder Is prohiblled except on written consent of Ihe-feclpienl. his -
etiorney or guardian.

1.
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j'i

Notwiihtlanding anylhiny lo Ihe conliary conleined herein ihe covenenie ond condilions contoined Jn
ihePBiegraphihdDturviveiheterminadoAofmeConuacifofonyreetonwhdKoewer.

>1. Reporter Fiical and Sioiitlk^ The Conl/aclor ao/oo>'io eubnftii the fpUovAng /epodt at the '
foltowing llmee d roqyeeled by ITio OopadmenL * • ■
>t.t. lA'erim FinehciBi Reports: Wrtnenlftierim financial reports contelning a deieiteddeecnptionof -'i.'. •

. on com brtd r^/valip^we expenut incurred'by (he Conifacior to the dale o» ih* report end
eont«.n»n9.su<h otherjnlormelion as iheil bo deemed soHsfactory by the Oepartmenj id
justify the rale ol payrrrent hereuntJer. Such Financial Reports shal) be submined oo the form
desloneied by Ihe Deportment or deemed eoUsfactory by Ihe Ocportrnem.
Final Report; A final.report ahaU bo submitted wiihin thirty {30) deya eftei the end of the term ''
ol iWs CoAiroci. The Final Report ahefl bo In o lortn toilsiaciory to the Deportmem ond choli
conioln 9 summery aietement ol proerota toward ooais ond objeclivos siolod in ihaPropODBl ' •'
01^ Other informeiion required by Ihe Departrnent.

11.2.

^<5

■Ci-

12; Completion of Services: OisBflowance of Com: Upon the purchase by the Oeponmeni ol iho
rnaxinum number of uruis prodded for in the Contrsci end upon paymehi of Ihe price limilollon"
hercuftder. Ihe Coniroci and aU iho obligeiioni of ihc parties hOreundcr {oxcepi ouch obiig8tid.ni os.
by Iho lornia of Iho Conl/acl aro to bO pertormod ofiot the crid Ot the lonrn ol Ihis Contrpct ond/or
survivd Ihe lernynpflon ol Iho Conuoci) ehpirterminole. provided hoi^ver. ihoi il; upon review ofiho
fiirtbl E*pcnd»luro Report the Oepartmeni sho9 diiaDow any expenses claimed by Ihe Conjractor as
cojis hereunder the Oepartmeni shell reiein ihe rfghii, at lis discreliort. lo deduct the amount of ttich
cxpeijies at ore disatiowad oi to recover such sums from ihaContracior.

.^13. CVodns: Wld^.uments. noltces. press releases, researchreports ond other maleiials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the lervices Ol Iho Coniroci shall include Ihe
following stetemani:
13.1. ■ The "preparation olthis (report, document cic.) was finonced untJerbConlraci vwihiheSiete

t .V Ol New Mampihlra. Department of Heaih ond Human Services.-with funds provided In port •
by the Sieto_ of New Hampjhira orxPor such other (urKling sources as were ovaiiabte or
required, e.g...fhb Umled Slates Oepartmeni of Hedlth and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval end Copyright Cwnerahip: AO materials (w/inen. vidoo. oydio)" prbdvcod or
purchased under the conitacr shall have prior approval from OHHS before priming, pfoduciton..
distriuiioft or use. The OHHS wUl iclotn copyrighl (iwnersHIp for any end eD original moieiials
produced, including, but no! limiled lo. brochwea. resource direclories. prolocois or guidelines "
poslcfs. or reports. Comracior sfiall noi feproduce any rnaierials proved under ihc cdnlracivriihoui '
prior vrriUen eppreyal from OHHS.

15. Operation of Pecllllles: Compliance wllh Lews and Regulallono: In Ihe cporolidn ol any iocililiei'
for providing services. <he Contractor ehall comply with oil laws, orders end regulalioos erf federal
Halo; courtly ond municipel euihorjiies and wlrn ony diredion oi ony Public Ortjccr or officers
puriuBfll lo laws which shall Impose on order or duly upon the conlroctor wiih respect lo the
operolion of Ihe fecfiity or the provision of lf>e services al such locilily. If ony goYerrvnerilal Hconse or
permit sKaD be raquirod lor Ihc.operation ol the said faciSly or iho performance ol the soid services
the Cofliroctor wDi procure said ikanso or permit, and will at on times comply with Ihe lerms end
condilions ol each such license or perrnfi. m tonnecilon wfih iho foregoing rcQui/emenls. tho

^ Corii/flclor hereby covonanls end ogrcoi thai, during the term of this Coniracl the focliilias shaO • •...
comply wiih oO rules, orders, regulations, andrequl/emenis ol the Stole Office oUhe Fire Marshal

.  and iha local rireprotaclion agency, end ahell be In conformance with local buading and toning
. codes, by-, laws end regulations. '

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (E60P): The CortUaclor w»n provide on Equal Employmonl
.  Opportunily Plan (EEOP) lo Iho Office for CW Rights, p'ffice ol Justice Progromi (OCR). II ii has

received a single awardol JSOO.OOOor rriore. 11 the redplem receives S25,000or more and has 50 or

• - k':
■K-, ■ oriyii
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7 <«v.

f}}. mote employees, il.will maintein a putreni EEOP on fdo end aubmil en EEOP Cerliflceijon Form lo ine
OCR. cetlilylAg thai its EEOP is on nie. For recipients recie'rvinp less l^8n S23.(XX}. or public grahlees ^
wiih fewer Ibon $0 empfoyees. regeidleis ol ibe emouni ol ihe awerd.-IKo recipient will provide on
EEOP CenidcetionForm lo ibe OCR certilyinp iiis not required <o submil or mainiain on EEOP. Non- -
■pron orgenix'elions. lndIor> Tribes, ondmedicel end cduceiioneHnsb'iutiont ere'exempi from Ihe - -
EEOP requiremenl. but ere required lo tubmii a cerfirtcalion fo<rn lo ihe OCR lo claim the exempion.'
EEOP Cenidcoiiiof) Forms ere evaliable ai: hnp:/Mvrw.ojp.usdoi/ebout/ocr/pdrs/cert.pdr.

f7; Limited Enpilf h Profidertcy (lEP): As clariftad by Execulive Order f3f66. Improving Accoit.fo
Services for persons wflh Llmtled EriglJsh Prolici^hcy. ond resuliing ogcncy guldarvce. neiipnel - :{
oirglh discriminatiorv Includei disciimiAailon on (he basis of iimlietf English prortcjeney (LEP). To
erisurecompUari'ce wfihlhe Omnibus'Crime Conlrpt end Safe Sireeis Aci of 1666 end Title Vl of Ihe
Chrll Rights Acl of 1964. CorMreclors must lehe rea'soneble sieps to ensure ihb) LEP persons r^eve ^ '
meaningfuiocccssioiliprogrDms. \

'  "■ ■

16. Pilol.Program for Enhencemeni ol Contractor Employee Whistleblowcr Proiectloris: The r-. ;
following shebepply lo oil controcis thai exceed ihe SimpEfied Acquisiiion'Threshoid'ss dofmed In46
CFR2."l01(Corranl)y. $150,000) '

•  ♦

,~rV' Contractor Empiovee WHisTiEecOirrER Rights and Reouiaeweht tq ikform Employees of
WHiSTLEOLOwrERRiOHTSfSEP JOO) '

(o) This coniracl and employees wording on this coniracl-wfll be subjeci to Ihe whistlob.iowcr rights
ond remedies In the pilol program on Conlracior employee wtilsUeblower protec'lions etieblishedel
41 U.S.C; 47l2by aeciion 626 of iheNalionoiOefense Auiho'lzaiion Acl (or Fiscal Ycoi 20l3.(Pub. L. -.X
112-239) Bfid FAR 3.908.

• >.; ; (b) The Contreclor shaDinlorTnlis employees in writing, in Ihe predommanl languoge of the workforce. .'V.
o.f employbe whisti.eblower righls andprotaclipns under 4'i U.S.C. 4712. OS described Insecllon _
3.006 of Ihe Federal/\cqui»iiioriRegirlalion. .

'  (c) TKe Conlroctor shetl inserl Ihe subsience ol this clause, including this psragraph (c). in all
subc'onUocls over (he simplified ocqu'aiiionihreshold.

19. Subcontreclorb: OHHS recognJiet Ihet the Comractor moy choose lo use subconlrectorvwiih.
grealer experiiso to perform ceriein heeiih cere servlcaf or funcfloni (or pfficiency or iconvenlenco.
but the Controcfor (haO relein the reiponsibiSiy ond accouniabiniy for ihe lunction(8). Prior to •'
subcontrpcdng. Ihe Conirecior shod ovotuole ihe subeoniro'clor's-ob'ilily (0 perform the delegaled

' 7. funcl'on{t). This it occottipiished through-e wililen egreement ihel.specifics ocliviiies ond reporilng
responslbiCiies ol the subcontrsclor ond provides for revoking the delegot<oft or imposing sonctions if
the subconlraclor's pedormonce is not adequslc. Subcontractors ore sulked lo ihe same contractual
con'dilions OS Ihe Coniroctor 'and ihe Conirador is responsible lo ensure subconuectorcom^Iartcc
wiih those dondiliont. ' •

v

'* \^on (he Coniracfordelcgeleso function toe subconl/aclor. Ihe Coniraclor.shall do (ho toilowing:

19.1. . Evaluate Ihe prospective subeoni/DCiorsebtiiiy to perform Ihb oclMiies. before delogoting
Ihofunclipn ■ • ' " .

19.2. Have 0 wrilion ogreemenlwiih (he subcontractor ihel speciDes oct'iviiies endrepori'irig
,  f; ' .y ' respOntibiEiiesondhowsancOons/rcyocaiionwfllbomanaged.itlhosubconlractoi's

•  •' performance is no) odequelc « '
(9.3, .Monilor Ihosubcpnlroclor's periorrrianceon onongoingbDsl! '

f  >■ ^ '"' '
if r"
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20.^. DEPARTMENT: NH OepadmeM of HeaVi end Human Services.

20.3.. PROPOSAL: II oppUeoble. Shell meort tho document submilled by (he Controclor one
form Or forms roqutrod by the Oepehme^l ond conlelntng o doscr'pliort of (ho soryices snd/or
goods |o bo provided by i7>o Conlredor In accbrdence wUh the tenms and cortdiiions of (he
Cont/ociondsehing forshihoioial cost end sources of revenue (preach service lobe.provided
under the Conlrocl.

20.4. UNIT: For each service l^8> the Conl/actor Is io provide to eligible iridrviduels hereundet. shall
meen ihei period of time or (hat spedTied octiv^iy deiermlndd by Iho Ocporlmenl end specified
iri Exhibl) BoUheConirecl. -

20.6. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whcrover federal or stele laws, regulelions. rules, orders. or>d
policies, etc. are referred to (r> the Contract, the said reference shot! be deemed to mean
all such taws, regulations, etc. os (hey rnay be emended or revfsed from lirne loiime.

20.$. ' SUPPLANTING.OTHER federal FUNDS: Funds provided lo (ha Conlraclorunderihit
■ Conlreclwilinoisupplanl orry exislii^ federal funds ovsilsble for these services.

'tt.

19.4/' Provide lo DHHS on onnual schedule idenlifying ad subcorvtractors. delegated functions
and reiponsibitilies. and when the subcontractor's performance win berdvlowcd.

'  19.6.' DHHS shall, oi lis discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the ConlriKior Idenlines dericiencics or o/eas for improvement bio identricd. Ihe Controctor shall
lake corre'cliva octioa ....

20. Contract Oonnldens:

20.1. COSTS: Shall meeh those <Croci ond indirect items of eipente determined by the peparimenl
tote ollowoble and roimburioblo in occordart^ with coil and eccounilng principles eslablishbd

■In occordence wtih siaie and (edorol taws, regutations. rules ond orders.

"li' -
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t' REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P'37, General Provisions

r'.V

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.2. Effective Oate/Completlon of Services, is
deleted in iis eniirety arM) replaced as follows; .> : '

3.2 II the.Contractor commoncos the Services prior to the Effctclivo Dale,
' all Servicee performed by Iho Coniraclor prior )o the Effective Oalo

shall-be performed et the sole risk of the Contractor, and in.the event
... ' .that this Agrccn^ont does not become effective, the Stole shall hove ho i--'*'

%  . liability to the Contraclof, including .without limitation, any obligallQn to
-  pay the Contractor for any costs incurred- or Services performed. '

Contractor must use reasonable efforts to coritplele all Services by , .4.
the Complciion Dale specified in block 1.7,

1.2. Seciion4, Condiliondl Nature of Agreertienl. is replaced as follows: ,•.£/

4.' Notwithstanding any provision .of this Agreem'eAt to'the contrary, all ,
obligaiions of the Slate hereunder. including\wiihou) llrniiation, the
conlihuance of payments, in vyhole'or in part, underlhis Agreement are

•  contingent upon continued appropriation or availabiliiy of funds,
.  including any subsequent changes to Ihe-appfoijrialicn or availabiiity'of' I.- .

.  (urtds affected by any state-or 'fe.deral lcgislallve or executive action ,
thai, reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the eppfopriatibn or

,  availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services
,  provided in Exhibit A". Scbpe. of Services, in wtiole Of in part. In ho

■V; > event Shall the .Slate be liable for any payments her.eunder.ln excess of
-  -'r' appropriated or available lunds. In the event of a reduclion. termination'

or modificatton of appropriated or available funds. Ihe'Slate shall have
the right to withhold, paymenl- uniil such funds become available; if.

s  •/ ' ever. The Stele shall have Ihfe righi lo reduce, terminate or modify
... services under this Agrccmenl lmmedialely upon giving the Contractor

notice of such reduction, terrhinatlon or rnddification. The State shall • ' .
no! be required to transfer funds from any other source 6r account-into
the Accounlfs) identified in* block. 1.6 of Ihe General Provisions. ' ..
Account Number, or any other.account iri the evenl funds are reduced

1  j- Of unavailable.. '

1.3. Paragraph T, Subparagraph 7.1. Personnel, is deleted In ils'cniirety and
;vi replaced as (oliows; ,

... '• 7.1 The Conlraclor shall al its own expense provide all personnel
"■ ■r'F:'r • -necessary' lo perform Ihe Services. The Contractor certifies that all

-* - j personnel engaged in iHe Services shall be qualifled lo perform the " "
..j, Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise'aulhorireflo do u

. so under all applicable laws. . ..
SMUiC-l-Rt«liivurE«upecniioSiv4JrdCoviDci Lfiigusgc f
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10.4 in the event that services under the Agreement, including but
not limited to clients receiving services under the Agreement
ere transitioned to having services delivered'by another entity.

'  :■ includiijg contracted providers or the Stale,-the Contractor shall-
provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the

'  ' ..V Transition-Plan.

M  , . . '

t;';-""-' ' 10.5 Tho Co'nlraclor shell establish a-melhod of notifying clients and
... other affected individuals about the Iransllion. The Contractor

Etfitui C'l - ne«4»ion»rEcuP<OA) lo Sundxd Coniitd Liryuopfl CorottlM

Pt9<Iot3

■^X . % ^
•  ■-> . Fii'

'  *1;'" iJ.-i' v' ' -'j - '

1.4. ' Paragraph 8, Subparagraph 8.2.3. Event of Default/Remedies, is deleted in
'  its entirety. '•> ••

"^yri;.- ■ 1.5. Paragraph-10, Termination, Is deleted in its entirely and Is replaced as
•Vf! " •: follows:

"'i'.: -10. In.the event of an early rcfmlnatior^ of this Agreement for'any reason
i-K other then the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall, at the '

• Stale's discretion, deliver.to the Contracliog OfTicer, not later than thirty
■" (30) days after-the dale of termination, a report (Ternnination Report*)

describing-in detail all Services performed, and" the contract price
.  earned." to and including the dale of termination. The form, subject

. matter, content, and number of copies of the Termineiion Re^rt shall •
be identical to those of any Final Report described.In the attached -

■■■■ " * EXHIBIT A.
10.1 • The State" may lerminale. the'Agreement at any time for-'any

. . reason, at the sole discretion of the Stale, 30" days after giving ^
'the Contractor'written notice thai the Stale is exercising its

,y ; option to terminate'the Agreement.. ,.

/if 10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within I'S
''days of notice of early" termination, develop .and submit to the

4  !' ' ' Stale a Transilion Pl'an for services " under--the Agreement.
including but no! limited lo. idenlify'tng-Ihe present end future ^

v  needs of clients rece'rvihg services under the Agreement and
"f' establishes aVocess to meelthose needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate-with the State and shall
>1 promplly provide detailed information to support the transition

•  Plan including, bul not limited lo. applicable .information Of data
"' "requested by the Stale related to, the termination .of the

Agreement and Transition" Plan and shall "provide ongoing
corhmu.nication and revisions of the Transition Plan to Ih'e State

v., . as requested. iv;.
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shall include the proposed conimcinicdliohs In its Transition
'V.' Plan submitted to the Slate as'described ebove., v. "

1.6-. Paregraph 13, Indemnification, is deleted in'its entirely and replaced .as
' follows:

,  13. The Contractor shall delend, indemnify and hold harmless the State,, its

.pfTicerc and employees, froni end against any and all losses suffered .toy
"  .? the State, iis officers end employees, and any and all claimS; liabilities

.or penallies assorted against the State, its officers and employees, by
, Of on behalf of any person, on account of. .based or resulting from.

vv: arising out of (or which may-be claimed to arise out of) the'negligent
acts or reckless, wanton or willful misconduct of the -Conlraclor.
Notv/ithstanding the foregoing, -riothlng herein contained shall be

..' deemed to. consiiluie a wajver of.the sovereign imrpuniry of the Stale,'
. V which immunity is hereby resorvcd to the State. This covenant in
vC' paragraph 13 shall survive (he termination of this Agreement.

1,7. Paragraph 14. Subporagraph 14.1.2, tnsurerice. is deleted in its eniirety'and
replaced as follows:

14.1.-1 Commercial general liability insurance against ali clairhs of bodily
injury', death or property damage. 'in amounls'of no) fess than

.v^ $1.000,000-per. occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate., except for
propecty damage due to fjre which has a $100,000 coverage limit per

:i:- occurrence; and

Paragraph 14, Subparagrapb 14.2. Is deleted.in its entirety and is replaced as
follows: •

14.2 The-poticies described in.subparagrapb 14.1 herein shall be on policy
- .forrnvend enddfse'mehts approved for .use'iri the State of New

"  -Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
Insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire or registered to.

"  conduct business In tha'Slate of Nfew Hampshire.

/r.

\h*' - "

■Xi*'': '

.i/

2. Rpnewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for .up to two (2)
additional years, contingentuponsalisfactorydelivery of services, available
funding, written agreement of ihe.parties and approval of the Governor and

* . Execultve Council! ,

.'V-ii .'i-.',

''•*1 ■■:L
.... v'

EiMdIi C^i - RoUt)o(WecUr()OAi <» C«v/ia LA^ul^e CoAl'tctftt trtiiittUlil
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CgRTiFiCATION REGARDING Ot^UG-PfteC WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS .

The Vender idenilfitd In Section 1.3 oJ Ihe General Provhions egrees to comply wilMho provision's of
Sections S1&1-5160 ol the Dn^g-Freo WoAplace Acl of 19M (Pob; L. 100-6S0, Ti»e V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 70t el apQ.). end further egrees 10 have the Coniroctor'e rcprcsenioiJve. es Ideniiried In Secttons
1.11 end 1.12 ofiho General Provisions oiecute Ihe lollowingCertificeiion:

ALTERNATIVE I. FOR GRANTEES OTHEfl THAN INDIVIDUALS ,*v.
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • COnVraCTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATfON-CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certirjcetton Is reoolre^'by ihe regulotibn's implemeniing Sections 5151-5160 oflho Oruo-free
Wortiptaco Acl of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Tfile V, Svblillo O; 41 U.S.C. 701 el aep.) The Jenuary 3!
1089 regulations were amended and puoiished as Pan II of ihe May 25. 1990 Federal Regiiier (pages
21661.21691). ond reouirc ccrtiftcaiion by groniees (and by Inference, tob-grenices snd'aub.
contiectors). prioi to award, that they w3l miinlein a drug-free worVplece. Section 3017.630(e) of the
reguWbn provides that a grantee (and by inferenta. sub-grdnteei ond »ub<onlr8ciors) thai is g Slate
may elect to molie one oertiflcation to ihe'Oepertmenl in each-federal fiscal year In lieu of certlficelei for
cech groni during the federal Cscol year ccrvcred by.ihe certificaiioo. The certirtcale set out below It e
material lepreiemaiion of fact upon which reliance is placdd when ihe agency awards ihe gram. Folse
certificolio.n or yiotalion el Iho cenifcafoh ihafl be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or.
termination ol grami. or govcmmeni wide suspension or dcbarmcnl. Comroclors uiino this form ihouid
•end It to; - .

Commissioner ' ' ''
NH Qepartmonl of Healih and Human Services
129 Pleasant Sireet.

•  Cor;icord.NMO330l-6505 , A'. :-

Thegrenlee certifies that 8 will or wfa continue to provide e.dmg-lree worVptace by:-
1.1. Publishing 0 jlaiemenl notifying employees thai ihe unlawlutmanufaciure. distribution

dispensing, possession or use of a controiied substance is prohiblied in the'g/aniee's
workplaco and specifying tha oclidns ihtl wHI be latton aga-nsi employees for violation of such
prohibillon;
Eslfiblishlng en ongoing drug-free swaieneis program to inform employe'es about '

•1.2.1. The dangers ol drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2, The grantee's policyof mslnialiUng a drug-free workplace:
1.-2.3,' Any avoHobip drug counseling, rehabiiiialion, and ernployoo iossislance programs; end
1.2.4. The por^onies ihai may be imposed upon employees lor drug abuse ylotaiions

occurring in the workplace:
. Mak'ing ii a rcquiremenMhai each employee to be engaged in the pertormanco 01 ihe granl be
givon 0 copy of the tlalemeot required by paragraph (a):
Notifying the employee In ihe slaiemenl reguired'by paragraph (a) ihol. as o condition ol
employment under Iho grant, ihe employeo-wilt
1.4.1.' Abide by Iho lorrns of the slelemcni; ond
1.4.2. • Notify the emptoyer In wilting olhis or her-conviclien for o violation of o crtmln'el drug •

sialulcoccu/ringlniheworkpia:erK>r3ief lhan five calendar doysafier such •
conviction;

Noli/ying tha agency In wrrling. wilhln tfci galcndar days after receiving r>otico under
subporograph 1.4.2 Ifom on employee or otherwise roceiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers pi convicied employees musi p/ovido nollco. including posHion line, lo every grarM
officer on whose grsnt ocliviiy Iho conyitlc'd employee was.worki/jg. unless the Federal agency

1.2.

1.3

1.4

1.5

OMWViieiO

. .Eition 0 - CcHOUdOn 'CQtitfViQ Onig Free
iV. WersplKiReeUre'mcnii
^  PjSeloU

Vcnoer iNtfiU
[Ut>

'  "'li'

0|te
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has ddiignated'ecenuolpoini forihe receipi ofeuch npUc^i. Notice shell include (he
identiriceilonnumber(i)ofe'acholfec.(e()gfeni; '

V6. Taxing ol the (oSomng octions. within 30<eiender4e)rs ol receiving notice under
lubperograph t.4.2.wilhrespecttoonyemployeewhoisspeonvicted
.1.6.1. Te'xino epproprisle personnel odion ogolnsi such en employee, up lo and Including

■lermirtetion. conusienlwiihlhereguiromenlsoKhe RehobiliiBliQn Aclol 1973, as
emended; or

'  1.6.2. Rooulringftuehompioyde top&rOcipsle seiiilactorOy tnpdrug sbusoattistanceo/
reh'abilit'olion program approved for such purposes by a Fado'ral.^Siaie. or local heatth,
law enlorcomonl. oi tfher epproprialo dgcncy;

1.7. Making o'good faith eKon loconiinue lomolnialn e drug*lree workplace through
implemenisiion'Of paragraphs i!'1, 1.2.>1.3.1.4,1.S, erid 1.6.

2, The giantee may inseil in the apace provided below (he eiie(s) lot the performanca o( work done in
connoctioh with Ihe speciHc granl

Placa of PorlprVnarica (streel address, city, county, slalo, zip code) (list each location)
j  ...*•

Check 0,li there ore workplaces on file thai ore not Identifte'd here.^

•iV;

5/1S/2070

Dole

.t<ly
Vendor Name:

y—e*«n«*wr

I (mjL II.
rr -■Name; Lelgntiyrgess .
TAle: Vice President. Offtco of Research Operalions

!.• •

>J' .

.

•  /.

CUOWOniWi}

Etfjsx 0 r CcrUluiion teaudnQOng Fraa
Wenptice Rcgutrenxni

,  ■ P*o#Joi7 .

(4t>
Vendor lr«W»t» ^

04U
5/aS/2020
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ict- . . CEHTlFlCATtONREGAROING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Sectkm 1.3 oMheGenerel Previsions egrees (ocomp^wim the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Low 101-121. Government wide Gvidencefor Hew ResUiclions on.Lobbying..8nd .
31 U.S.C. i3S2.eftd fudher agrees toheveiheConueeior's represenieiivo. as ideniifiodin Sections l.il
and 1.12 of iho'Oenerel Provisions execute the fotlowing Ce/iiCcaiion;

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTOftS
USOEPARTMENTOFEOUCATlON-tONTRACTORS ' i
US OH^ARTMENT OF ACRtCULTUR^-CONTRACTORS •

.•k

-•r.T

Progrems (indicate dpplicebla.p'ogrem covered):
V! 'TemporeryAsslstence lo'Hcody.Fomiliesvnder Title fV-A

•Child Support Enlofcemenl Progrem under Thie lV-0
*Sociel Services etecA Grarii Program under Title KX

'  'Medicold Program under Titte.XlX , y!
„  tCommunily Services Blocti Gienl under Title Vi- ,;V;

•ChM Ga/e Devetopmcnl Block Grant urtder Title iv

•,r ■ • ■ . • ■ ' '> '.'■x"
■  ̂ , The underiignad certifies, lo.ihe best of his or her iir^owtedgepnd belief, that: Iv '

I. No Fcderot oppropriaied fiinds'have been paidor wai be paid by or on behaii of (he undersigned, (o , ^
i  eny person for Innuencing or ottempUr%g to influence 00 otTicer'or employee of any ogency. 8 Member

'**' ' of.Co'^S'Ai^- 0" otfce.r orcmptoyee of Cong/ess. or on emolbycc of o Member o.f Congress In
connection with (he awarding of ony Fade'alconlracl.-coniinueltbn. renewal, omcndmeni: or
rnotflcation of ony Federol corktraci.;groni, loan, cir cooperal'tve agreement (end by specinc mention
sub-gronteoof sul«or\troclor). •. r

•  2. .tfanylundsol'horlhonFeder^b^roprtaledfundsh6vebaenpaidor<Mnbepaidieeny'petsonfor . ,
'influencing or ollempting to inDoence Oft officer 0( crnployee of any ogehcy.^o Member of Congress.

'  . oriofficeror'emptoyeeofCongrcss.'oranemptoyoooJoMemberofCongfcssinconnoelionwiihlhis •;
>'>' F^erat contract, grant, loan, or cooperal'tve agreement (and by specifie.mention sub-grantee or aub-. .i.

contractor), (he undersigned shall complete end aubmli Slindsid Form ILL. (OisctosureForm lo " <
Report Lobbing, in eccordancevwthiis iftsiAidions. oUached arid identified as Sfandard Exlubii E-L)

- 1' The undersigned shall.reQuire thai (ho language of this ceniricot'ion bo included, in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (irtclvding subcontracts, sub-grants, end contiacis under grants. . ^
loans, andcoopereiiva agreements) ond ihal d) oub-reopienli shall certily ond disclose occordingty.

.fi ' Thii certifcotion is amalerlal represenlation oi fed upon^ch reliance wos placed when ihislronsociion
'• wpi made or eniered into. Submission of (h'rs.ccrtiScolion is a prorequlsfie for making or cnfcru^ mfo fhfs

lrdnseclioftlmposedbySecllonl3S2.Tilla'31.U.S.Code. Anypersonwhofaiislolileiherequir.ed :.v
certificeiion chou be aubjeci to oc'ivi) penally ndless lhan $10,000 end not more than SlbO.009 (or

:V; ' each such follur'e. ^ ^ »•(•: ...
V, v' • Vendor Nome; ' ir-' i? t

•  r--

S/1S/20J0 I fl . ■' )
Dale . .. Nnmei-Lelgh Burgess
.r.' ^ .v, .Tito: Vice Presidcnl.OlfrceoI Research Oporolions i-.t;

EjNtnE-'CeniauiioftAcpsrobpLebbpfte vcnaerinkiib (up
Wi>/JO?D

Cstomvi|«)o PrgoioTi ..
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CERTIFICATION REGAROIHGbEBARMENT.SUSPENSION ■ V:
j- ...r'.- • AND GTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MAHERS ■ ' fi...

The Vendor idert\ined in Section V3ol the Gencrel Provisions egrees to comply with (he provisions of'
Esecuihre Offico of ihe ^fe$ldeni..Eiecuiivo OfdeM2S49 end 45 CFR Part 76 regofding Oebafrnent.'
Swspe.fistoh. and Other RcaponslbUiiy Moners. one .further ogrees lo neve (lie Conudcior'i

-'rcprescnieiive, os Identifled in Se^ns i.ii ond 1.12 of the Gei%erei..Provi'$ions execute ihe (oHowing ■
Certincotion; ■ ^

INSTRUCTIONS FO^ CERTIFICATION '
•  -• I. By o.lgNng ohd submliiir^g this propoioi {conirKl), the p'otpeclive prjmory penicipen) >s provfOing (he

certiiicaiiors set out below.

2. The inebiliiy of d pcrson lo provldo (he certifcdtion required below will rt'd necessarily resutl in denle)
of porticipolion in (his covered iiertseciion. II necesiery. Ihe prospective perticipan) shell cubmll an

'£■ 'W. . explanation of why I) cannoi provide the eertincalibn. The certificolion or ovpionoiion will be
*  ' conslderedlniconneclion wiih fho NHOepartrnenl of Heotih ond Human Services' (OHHS)

dolorminetion whether to enter intp.lhis Irpnsection. However. laUure of the p.rospacirve primary
participant lo fumish'o certincelion or an explanation shaltdisqualify such person from participhtjon In

. Ihii (retjjDctbn.^ " ' t. i: ' . ' '

3. The.certilicarion in (his clause is a motehat representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
vtii when OHHS delcfmincd lo enter Into (his tianseciion. II ii rs later determined that the ^ospeciive

prirpary participant knowingly rendered en erroneous certiHcation, in oddition to other rc'med'ios
;• fl vaileble lo the Fodcrol Government, OHHS may lerrriinotc this tronsaclion lor cause or Ckiloult. V;; ;V

4. The p'rospecCive primary participant shob provide immedlaie-wriiien notice to the OHHS ogency to < .
"  whorn this proppsel (contract) is submitted if at any lima.tho pros^ciive primary participantloarns -

^  .lhal its ccrtificellon was erroneous when subrnWdor has becorrie erroneous by reason of changed...
'  circumsionces.

. 5. The (erms 'covered (ransaction,' 'dobaVfod.* 'suspended.* 'if»etigiblo.* *ipwor tier covorod
iranseclion.*'participant.*'person.'•prlmarycevered Iransaclion.*'principel."proposBl.'k>d '■

.  ' 'vPtuniarllyexcluded.'asusedmlhUclause. have tha mearxngs sdloui inthe Dennltions and ^
Coveraga sections of Ihe rules implem.eniing Execultve Order 12S49: 45 CFR Part 76. See (he- ^ iv

..l:\ ortischcd definitions. i"' .. ■
•I * * * *

6. The prospectrvd primary partlcipani egrees by lubmitling ihiVproposal (conirect) thai, should Ihe •
. proposedcovcrcdlronseeiionbeent^redinto.hshaDrtolknowlnglyentef'lnlosnylowerliercovered

trahsecliorj with 0 person who is debarred, suspended, declared Inelig'iblc. or volurtlerily.excluded ' 'Vr-:
from participal'ion in Ihis covered trarxacll^. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. Theproipeclivcprlmary participani furthcrogrees by eubm'iiiing this proposal that it will Include the
.  clause tilled'Certiricoiion Regarding.Oebarmenl. Suspension. Ineligibitily or^dVoluniory Exclusion •

Lower Tier Covered Transoclibns.* piovl^od by OHHS, without modiricolion. in at) lower tier covered
•  transactions end in oil soliciiolions for lower tier covered transaciions. ' v

f - . 6. - A perticipani in 0 covered iranaa^t'ion moy rely upori 0 certincalipn of 8 prospocdvc participant in a
lowar.tier covered iransaclion lhal il Is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or irivoluntorily.excluded
front the covered trensBction. unless It Knows thai Ihe certification is. erroneous. A participant moy.-

i<. decide the method ond frequency by which ii determines the eligibility of its principals. Eoch '''
P^rt'rcipant moy. bul Is noi 'required to. check iho Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded part'ics).

•t-t"

9. Nothing contained in (he foregoing shall bo consltued lo rcquito esteblishmeni of a system ol records '
it> order to render in good f ailh ihe certification required by this dause. The knowledge and /.

EuiJtti F - CfnJrlMUw RtaatdV^ Oetunhert. Sviipemien vender
■AndOtht'.ftiiaontlMlryMtlMit (/tc/)n>A
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'.V,
'•A',*

iAiormalion o( a panidpani is not rcQuiied lo exceed lhal which is normaDy possessed'6y o pAidenI
person In (he ordinary course pi business dealings.

10. Except for trartsactio/fs authorited undcrpsragrsph 6 oi these instrucUorts. il s participapl in e . ivvy
■ ^ve/edlrensaclionknovvihgfyente/Bintostowcr<ier.coveredtrdns8;tioriwlihapertonwhoit ' '

suspended, debarred, Ineitgipie.'or vohrntariiy excluded from participaiior> in this trensaction; In
,  bddsUon to other rom'odles.evailabte to (he Federal povernmeni, OHHS moy lerminaie this (rontacilon ' •<

forcPuseordefouli. '

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS • . ' • •
11. The prospective pri/nery pancipeni cerliriei lo me best of 'is knowiodpe ond belief, (hot li ond n»

principals: -
1VS. ere r^l presently debarred, ausponoeo. proposed (or debormoni, dociered InoDglbie. or

vblunierily excluded from covef^ (ransaclions by any Federal department or agency;
s'i .2. have rwi wiihin B Ihfce-ycor period preceding this proposal (corMracl) been cor>vlcled of or had

.  a civil judgmenUendofcdogainsi them tor commission of fraud or o criminal offense in 'ff ̂
connaclron with oble)r\ir)g. attomplingio obtain, or porforming a public (Federal. Siaio or local) '•
transaction or a conlrecl under o public transeclion; violalion ol Federal or Slate antitrust
statutes or torhmljsion cf cmbeufemeni, thoft. forgery, bribery, laltificiiion or desUucUon ol
records, mak'ing lalse slalemervlt. or rece'iving sloton property; '

11.3' are tsol presently indicted for oihenvist criminslly or civilly charged by o governmental entity
(Federal. Stale-or local) wilKcommissicri of any ol (he offenses anurrieroied in paragraph 0}(b) .^
ofihr>certinceiion:ond

It.O. hava nolwilhir^ a lhree«year period preceding this appBcetiorVproposBl had one or rnora public- '
transactions (Federal. Stale or locoi) terminated for cause c default.

■•5. ■>.

12. Where ihe prospecltvo primary panicipani is unablo to certily to ony ol ihe siaiemenis in this
coriificalton. Such ptospecirve padicipani shall eitoch on'explonslion to this proposal (conuacl). '.v

LOWER TIER COVEREO transactions .
13. 6y signing end submitting this lower liar proposal (contract), tha'prospacliva tower tier participant, as

•  oelinad in 45 CFR Part 76. cortiries lo the bait of its knowledge and betial thai It end fis prlnclpols;
13.t. are. not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for-dobormenl. daclared-ineligiblB, or'

voluntarily excluded from psrticipaltor) in this transaction by opy.federaldepartment or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower liar participant to unablo lo certily to any of (ho above. such

prospeciive participant shall attach on explanation to this proposal (coniraci). (■{ '

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai i) wiD'
includo Ihis clauip onliiled 'Ceitificallon Regarding Oebarmeni, Suspension, tneligtoility. and '.

' Voluntary Exclusion - Lowor-Ticr Covered Transactions,* wiihoul modification In pi) lower tier covered
ironsBCtions and in oil soUdlalions for lower tier covered iransociioris.

5/l$/2070.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAININC TO
FEOERAt NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TReATMENT OF FAITH^ASEO ORGANIZATIONS ANO

7  WMisTLeauoweR protections

The Vehdo/ idenlifiedin Seclton 1.3 of (l^ CeAerelProvitiont e9<ees by s^nelu/eof the Conirectof'e
le^eseniAtive oi Idcnilfied in Sections i.i i and i.tZ of Ihc Generoi Provisions, lo eiocut'e.ihe flowing
ceniftceiien: . • _ .

Vendor will comply, andwiu'r^guire any eobgreniees er.Bubcontraclerf .lo.co'mply. withany oppticabte
federal r>ond>scr1mln6l>on raqvlremenli. which may include;

• the Omnibus Crime Conifdi and Sole Stieeis Aci of-i9Se (<2 u.S.C. SeciiOh.37B9d) which prohibits
rccipleAii ci fedoraJ furtdlng under ihli slelute rrom discrimlrioltng. either In cmploymeni practices or In
Ihc delivery of servicos or benefiis. on the besii olroce. color, religion, nsiion&l ohgin. ond sex. The Act-
roquires certain rocipienis lo produce, on Equal Employment Oppohunily Plan:

• the Juvan9o Justice OolirvQwehCy Praveniion Aci oi 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which odoplsby
reletencc. iho civil'righis obligations of Iho S'ofe Stieels Act. Recipionis of federoi funding under Ihis
aielula era prohlbiied from discrlrnmaling. eiiher in emptoyrnent practices or.lnihe delivary of aarvices or
benefiis; on the basis of race, color, rof'tg'ion', national origin, ond sex. The Act includecEqual-
.EmploymonfOppOrtunily Plin requiremenls;

'  • (ha Civil RjQftls Aci of 19S4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits roclplenis of federal rmancial *
assislenca from discdmlnaling on the baiis ol race. c<^r. or naUonal origin in any program or activily);

• ihe Rehebtliialion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794); which prohibits recipients ol Federal financial
ostislar^ from discriminating on Ihe basil ol disatiiiiiy. in regard jo emptoyrnent ond the dclrvecy ol
ecrs^cos or benefiis. iri any program drauMi^: r;

• the Americans with Oisabililies Act oM9dO (42 U.S.C. Sect'ions l213l->4). which prohibirs'
'discrlmlnption and ensures OQual opportunliy for petsons.wiihddabiliiies Inemploymani.'Slaia and local
govcrnm.ehi lerytccs.bubtie occqmmodatibns. corrimarciairec^iiies. and lransportoik>n: '
- Ihc £ducollon;Amendni8nli of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Saciions 1661.1663. t66$-66).'which prohibits
diKrimination on Iho botis Ol aex in'fedorslly ossUled education'pro^ams: ■ •

• lha Ago OiKrimlnalion Act ol 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
.)T;> basts of ege in programs c activilies receiving Federal rmanclal ossistence. Il doos r>ol Inchida
•: cmpteymeht dbcnmination: •

•■29 C.F.f^. pi. 31 (U.S. Oepartmeni ol Justice Regutalions -.OJJOP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R. pt. 42 .
• (U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice Regulations ~ Npindisc/iminaiion: Equol Erhploym'ani Opportunliy; Policies

ond Procedures); Execulive Qrder No. 13279 (oqual proleclton ol Iho laws'forfailh-based and community
organitaiions): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamentat.princlples end potlcy-mahing
criteria for partnerships wUh fotlh-based ond ncrighborhcod organUalions:

• 26 C.F.R. pi.'39 (U.S. Oepartmeni of JusticoRequtarons - Equel Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whisttebtower proieclibns.4l U.S.C. 94712 and The Nationoi Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscol Year 2013(Pub.'C. 112'239. enacted January 2. 2613) the PiW,Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblowet Prelections, which protects erytployees egainsl
reprisalforccrtsin whistle bio^ng activities in connection wlihfedoral gronis ond cohirocls.

^  The certi6coto eel out below is 6 material reprcsentalion of fact upon wh'ich'relianco Is placed whon the
ogcncy owards Iho grant. Folso. corti'ncdlion or violallon of the certirtcalion shall be grouriOs for
auspens'ton of peymeriis, suspension or termination pf grants, or government wide suspension or '•%

'dCbormcnt.
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In the event o Fe'derel or Slete court or Fodorot or Sioie.odmiArsiraiive agency makes e Hnding ol
discrtminalion Cher a due process hearing on the grounds ol race, color; religion, national origin, or ttx
ogainst a recipient of funds, the recipient wil lonvird a copy of the fnding to the Office for Ciyi) Rights, to
(he oppliceble conirecting-egency or dMsion wUhin the Oepartment of Heollh ond Humph Services, and
to the Oepartmenl of Health end Human Services Office of (he Ombudsman.

■i-. i. a:,

The Vendor ider^tiffed in Section t.3 of the Generei Provitioni es'ooi by ••gnoture of'ihe Coniioclor's
representative os idenfifiad in Sections 1 .t s ond of the Gencroi Provitions.'io.eKecule the fdiiovhng
certificallon:

1. 8y ^gning or>d cubminlng this proposel (controct) the Ventfor ogroos to cornply wlih the provisions
tndiceicd obove.

S/1V2070

Oaio

Vendor Name: •

"eMvMsMvr

(W.vL (I .
r> »<ie;e*niti/<n..Hw'»«.Leign burgess
Tiile; vicePresldenl. Office of Research Operations '

* 'V,; •••»
'.O'

I

V"

0-. n-

?V •'

'ii.

Xr,
.V'-'v

■rj

■ '.'■W
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CERTIFtCATlOW REQAROlNO ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO RMOKF

■ K-

'!i ■

'V- .

Publfe low 103'22 7. Part C • Envvonmenial Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro<Chiidren Aci of 1894
(Aci). iCQuifas mai imokihg no! be pcfmillod li> any portion of any Indoor fociliiy owned or leased o/
comfartedfofbyanontiiyoftdusodrouiineiywrogylafiyfoftho-pfovisionofhealiH dayearc oducaiion '• Of lio/ory serviceeiQchiW/enunfleMh^agooi i8. iffhe.eervicei are lunOed Oy Federai pfogj^s eilrter

• d.fecfly Of (hfoogh Stale of local gpve/nmonis, by Federal groni. conlwi. loari. of loan buarantee The
law dooi not eppiy to chlldran-e Borvicoj pfOvWod in piiviie foildences. lociliiles funded eolely by
Madiccfo Of Mcdfcoid lof^ds. ond poniof>s of foctWej used for Inpalionl drug or alcohol iraaimeni: fei/ufo
to comply wilh Ihe pfOvlsioAi of Iho Ibwmay feiuii In ise Imposiiion bf-o cMi monetarv penoiiy of wp'io
$1000 per day ond/of Iho Imposllten of on odmlnistraiivo ed/npliance ofder on (he fcsponiiblo cniliy.

The Vendor idcnilfieo in Seclion 1.3 of Ihc General Provisions agrees, by tignaiuie of (he Coni/adbr'o
fepresentoiive OSIdeniifiod in Section 1.11 and'l.lJoftheCencfalProvitions toeKSCuletho(oUowiho
eenilicalion: . ̂ '

t. By lignmg and submitting this controci. the Vendor agrees to make feosonable effortslo comply wtih
vail opplicable provisions ol PubUc Lew 103-227. Part C. known es the Pro^hiMren Aci of 1994.-

••fil: •

■ *

.•a;'

■K'V

Vendor Namo;

5/15/2020
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Name: LCigh burgess
Tiiia: Vice Presideni. Office of Research Opcroilons
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Exhiblll

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
• BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

A', / • . *>•

Trie Cooueclor identified in Seciion- l.3'.of (he General Provisions ol the Agreemeni agrees to
comply with (he Healih-lnsuranee RertoUlity and AccountabUily Act. Public Law 104-191 and-
with (he Standards for.Prlvacy and Security of (ndiyiduatly identifiable Health Information. 4S ...
CFP Pons 160 ahd -164 applicable to business asiociaies. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall.meah the Coniracior and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or t^eve access to protected healiti information under this Agreement end Covered
.En|!ry* shall mean me Stale of Now Hampshire. Deportment of Heoilh ondlHumen Sorvlcot.

P) PftfinH'ofl?-

v., 7,

a. 'Breach' Shall have the same meaning as (he term 'Breach' (n section 164.402 of Tttle'4$'.
Code of Federal Regulalions. ;

■

b.' 'Business Assoclaie' has the meaning given such lernt in seciior^ 160.103 ol Title 45. Code
of Federal Reguialions. .

I
*  ••

' c. ' 'Covered Entity* has Jhe meaning olven su^ term in section 160.103 ol Title 45.
• Code of F.ederel Reguialions. • V

h . d. 'Desionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'desionatea record sel'
in 45'CFR Seciion 164.501. . ' •

• V ' . • . i.': * _

'  , c. 'Data AQorfloalion' chat) have the'same meaning as the term 'data aooreoation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501. .

;y:

f. 'Heaiih Care Ooeraiions' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501. v i , •

g. 'HITgCH Act'. means (he Heallh Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act.'TliteXlll.'Subtitle 0. Pan 1 & 2 of (f\e American Recovery and Reinvesimeni Act of •

... 2009.
»  • • •«. - 4

h.- 'HIPAA' means Ih© Health Insurance Portabliily and Accountability Acl of 1996. Public Lew
104-19.1 and the Standards lor Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health

• Information. 45 CFR Perls 160. 162 and 1M end emendmenls thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
. end shat) include a person who qualifies os o personal represemaiive in accordance with 45
CFR Section i64.5.01(g). ,

1. •privecv Rute'.shaH mean (Ke Standards lor Privacy of Individually Idenlifiable Health
InforrndtlonaMSCFRPods 160 and 164, promulgatedunderHlPAA by the United Stales -
Department of Heallh end Human Sen/ices.:-S

'4'.-..

k. 'Protected Heallh Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected hdaUh
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the inloimation created pi received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. r' ■ '

EuVWi I .. CoXfjdoi iftJtyj
HetVi lA>utine« A(J
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Exhibit

•; I

•- I. bvLaw* shall have the same mflanif>9 as the (erno Vequired by lav/" In 45 CFR
Seclioni 64.103. v '

■'•t- ' m •Secfeiarv' shall mearvihe Secretary.of the Oepartment of Health and Humbn Services Of
his/her deslgnee.

n, 'Secufirv Rule", shall mean the Security Siendards for the Proiecli'ori df electronic Prolccled
■ Meaiihlnrormsiion ai45CFR Pan 184. Subpanc. endemenomcnu meroio.

0. -unsecured Protected Hftalih Inforrriation' means p'rotecled health information that Is not ,;i
secured by e technology slandord thai renderp piolectod health information unuto.bie.
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthoti?cd individuals and is developed or endorsed by

- a standards deveiopirig oiganization thai is accredited by the American Natior>a1 Standards
Instiiuie. . ..

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defirted herein shall have the meahirtg
' established under 45 C.F.R. Parts ,150.162 and 164. as amended from lime lo time, and Ihe

HitecH ■ V -i.- '• '
V  Act. - ■ ...V ^

*  "•r." " r- •>; - i.;

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosufe of Prolcctod Health Informalion. '
,,y. ; ' 0. • Sgsiness Associate "shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Pfoiecied Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary lo provide the services outlined under * - •
L; Exhibit A of'ihe Agreemeni.. Further. B'usiness Associate, inc/uding but not limiied to all,

'  I ' its direciofs. officers, employees and.agenfs, shall not use. disclose, rnainlain or transmit
'  > PHI in ar^ymanncr'thal would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Role. -

*  b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI; • •; ,v- .^
,  ; I. ■ For the proper manpgemeni arid adminisiration of the Business Associate: ; '

II. . • As required by law. pursuanlto thelerms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. .For data aggregaiion purposes for the heallh care operations of Covered

r;; 'Iv ' Entity. * '

c. To the exieni'Business Associate is permiited under the Agreement lo discJose PHI to a
. ' ■ third party. Business Associate must obtairi, prior id maXing any such disclosure, (i) • '*

'• reasonable Bisurancos from the third party that such PHi swll be held confidentially and
ysed or further disclosed only as rcQulred by law o"r for the purpose for w.hich it,was
disclosed 10 the third party; ahd (ii) an agreernent from such third party lo notify Business'} •
Associate, in a.ccordance with the HlPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach NoiificaiionRules of eny breaches of the confidentialily of the PHI. to the extent it has, obtained .
knowledge of such-breach. .. ^ . ,

,  d. TheBusiness Associate shell not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessory to •pfovibc services under Exhibit A of the Agreemeni. disclose any PHilnresporiso-io a v:v.
! request for disclosure on the basis ihat it Is required by law.wiihoul first notifying

: • Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object lo.ihe disclosure andto seek appropriate relief.'H Covered Entity objects lo such disclosure, the Business
'  ' .v-. C ■ "■

... . EihWM ' CO«l/#C»W WliiU I l/b
'• HeiShinjuifttcPoniwryAU ;

euiVviiAitoclxoAc'cemont S/lS/2020
Pose 3 016 , ,v. • t>»'«
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Exhibit I

aV"

•1''

Associdie shall refrain from disclosing (he PHI until Covered Eriiiiy has exheusted all
remedies. .

e,. If (ho Covered Entity nolifres the Business Assodete that Covered Entity has agreed, (o ^
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or securiiy "'-i.

V./' safeguards of PHI pursuant lo (he Privacy ahd Security Rule, the Business Associate 'f-
. shall be bound by such.oddillonal reitrictipris"and ohali noi disclose PHI irwioteiidr) o» .
Buch addilional.retlrielions and shall abide by any addilional security.sofeguards.

•  . - ' ■ / • * '/>'
(J) ObllQflHona and Activities ot Business Associate. . -55 .

The Business Associate shall notify Ihe .Covered Entity's Privacy OfTicei immedialoly
after (he Business Associate becomes aware of any use or>disclosure ol proiocled

'  heaiih information rx)t provided for by the Agreement Ir\cludin9 breaches of unsecured ""
protected heallh informatiorr andfor any security incident (ha( may have an impact on (he
protected health information of the Covered ErMity.

1  ' . 'v.
• b. ■ The Business Associate shalilmmodiateiy pertorm 0 risk essessmeni whfen it becomes ' .a

aware of any of the above situations. Tneriskessessmenishaiiinclude.buinolbe"' ''
limiiedto: • ^ >. *

. tj ^ t

'v.tii

y. «V'- *

0  The t)8luro and extent of the protected health information involved. irKluding the
V  ..typesofidenlifiers end the likelihood olre-ioeniirication;
. 0' The unaulhorited person used the proleci.ed health information or to whomthe-'

.disclosure wBS-made; " . "
'0 -Whether ih'e protected health information was actuaiiy acquired or viewed'
'o The extent lo which ine risk lo the protected health irStormation has been

mitigated.' ■. .•

The Business Associate shall complete the. riisk assessment within five (5)
business days of-the breach and immediatety report the frndings of the'risk
assessment in writing 10 the Covered Entity.

r.'j' '' t;

cf The Business Associate shall comply wiih oil sections d( the Privacy. Security, and
,V^' Breach Nolificalion Rule.
A"

■<} . .
: ^

d ■ Business Associete shait make available all of its-internal policies end'procedures, books
6nd records releiing to tf^e use and disdosure ol PHI received from, or creeled or'
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to (he Sec.relarv lor
purposes of delerroWmg Covered Eniil/s compliance with HIPAA and'thaPrivacy end
Security Rule. •

e. Business Associate shall requite oil ollis business associates that receive, use or have
access-io PHi under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use ary) disclosure.of PHI coritatned herein, includirig

•  the duly, to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
.  shall be considered 0 direct third parly beneficiary of tfre Controctor'fi business ossociato

agreements with Coniractor'.s mtended business associates, who wilt be receivirig PHI

Sy- W014 bheni ConvtcieflnCltti { (7^
-  HfAlih iitturinM PenatlOiy Aci. . V— •

■'"•t '. .V, e«iift«i» AjMdUft^ieemarti 5/15/2020
ts-.- P.\|t3«re Oiia
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Eihibit I

■ i

F  pui&uanl-lo (his Agrecmonl wiUi rights of enforcennoni and tndemnificdtion from evjcfv
business associates who shall be governed by slandsrd'Paragraph <1(3 of the standard r
contract provisions (P-37) of ihis Agreement for (he purpose of-'use and disdosufe of ^
protected health inlorm^libn. . , -

r. within r>va (5) business days of receipt of.e written request from Covered Entity. -
Business Associate shall make available during.normoi business hours o( its Offices at!'
(ecorda:;books, agreements, policies sno procedures relating (b the use end disclosure
ofPHHotheCoverc'dEnllty.forputposcspfenDbtingCoveredenDtyioaeiefrTiinc • -i.'
Business Associate's compliance with iho terms of the Agreement. • "iii '

g.' .Within ten (10) business days of receMng a wrinen request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shell provide access to PHI in a Oesigna^d Record Set to (he ' 'i
Covered Enliiy. of ps directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the ,
requirements under 45 CFR Section (64.524. ' " • .

h;; '' Within ten (10) business days of receivihg a written request fromCoveredEniily for an
ameridmentof PHi'or a record about an individual contained in a De'signaicd Record Set,
the Business Associaie shall make such PHI evallable to Covered Entity for omendmeni -
and Incorporate any such.arnendment to enable Covered Entity to futfiri its obligalions
under 45 CFR Section 164.526. . '

■tT,'

.  '• Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHi and Informaiion related to'
"V • such disclosures as would be re.quired for Covered Entity to respond loe request by en '

1.:: ' individual for an accouniing of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
• 154:520. ' . • .

a|. }(., Within ten (10) business days of receiving a"wiitien request from Covered Entity for a .
- request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI.-Business Associate shall make available

'  . to Covered Entity such inlorrhatlon as'Covered Entity may require to fulfill 11$ obligations
(0 bfovide' en accounting of disclosur.es with respect to PHl.ln accordance with 45 CFR

.t Seption 164.520: .,5.

'v'-'V: k. In'lhe event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or eccounllng of PHI'
directly from'the Business Associale, Ihe Business Associate shall vnlhin five (5)
business days forward such request 10 Covered Entity. Covered Entity shali.have (he

-v responsibility of responding (0 forwarded requests. Howevef.iifforwarding.the '
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA. end (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

.1. shall Instead respond'lo the indrvidvafs request as required by such law and notify
:j.v Covered Entity of suph response as soon as praclicatile. V-'

V. '

.1. Within (en (10) businesi days of termination ol the Agreement, for any reason. Ihe
r- ' Business Associate Shall return or destroy. 05 specified by Covered Entity, all PHI

. received from, or created or received by (he Business-Associate in conneclion with the
n. ' Agreement, ond.shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes o( such PHI. If'ielurn or

.destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been dlhefw^sc agreed to in
'■>' the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue, to extend the prolections of the

Agreement, to such PHI and lifnll further uses and disclosures ol such PHI to those
purposes thai make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

I  V20M Eihfcft I , ConUicio* Uf*
Htir/i Miifine4 PenitUiy A£1

.y einlneiKU>ocJW#Afl«»im»<v - S/lS/2020
'• -Av: ri' ." ■ F«a«<©l6 .• Qjie -
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.8.

b.

•■A

c.

Eihlbli

Associale mainiains such PHf. (f (Covered Eriiiiy, in iis sole discretion, requires thai the
Business Assxiaie destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associale shall cediiv to
Covered Entity that the Phi has been destroyed.

Oblloations of Covered Entity

v-Vi!

Covered Entity shaD notify Businoss Assxiaie ct any changes or ljrhiiat}on(s) in lis
Notice, of Privacy Practices provided to individuals ir^ accordance" with 45 CFR Secliof7
164.520. to the extent that such chango or ilmlteilon may etfecl Business Associeie'a ''
use or disctosore of PHI.

Covered Entity shoii promptly notify Buslnesc Assodete of any changes in. or revxolion
of-permisstoo prov.ided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associale under this Agreemenl. puisuant lo 45 CPR Scctiorv

••164.5O6or45,CFRS0Ctlon.l64.5OB. '■ y,:.-

Covered entity shall promptly oolify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or' ■ '
disclosure ofPHi that Covered Entity h« agreed io in accordaf\ce wnlh 45 CFR 164.522,
10 the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assxtaie's use or disclosure ol -
PHI. • • •

(6) • Termination for Cause y: *

•. in addition to.Peragraph 10 of the siaodard terms end conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immcdiilely iierminatc the Agireemeril up6n Covered

, Entity"^ knowtedge.df a breach by Bu^ness Associale of ihe Business Assxiaie
•Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide.an opportunity for Business Assoclato.to cure the
alleged breach wiihin a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Eoliiy

■U; dotermines that neither termination noi cure Is feasible. Covered Entity"shall report the '
violalionio the Seciclary. ■

(6) •

a.

b.-

'Mlacellanecuft' .'j vi- ' f?. .'v'"

• Dcfinilions arid Reoulalorv References-. All lerms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall haveihe same meaning as those terrhs in Ihe Privacy .and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference In (he Agreemenl. as amended to include this Exhibil I. to
•8 Seciion in the Privacy.and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or os "
emended. .

Amendment; Covered Entity and Business Associat.e agree to take such action as is
"ecessaryioamend the Agreement, from lime to lime as Is necessary for.Covefcd.i._ Enlily to comply willitha changes in the requircmonts of HIPAA. the Privacy .and

V  • -r Security Rule, and applicable federal and siaie law."

Business Associale acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI.provlded by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

s'> •!'d. . jnierpretaiion. The parties agree that any emblguiry In Ihe Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Secufily Role. .

i/wi* EetfEiii Cwiir*oo< tnri}»u IWtiW
H

■y
eiUh Iniurtnu Act

euilMti At}Mrtl»Agrc»/^nl
P«l« S ol 6 ,

' ** '•

Duo
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Ndw NimpsiMre Oepahmont of Kiilth ond Humin Servicot

V. • '• Eahlbii I

Sedteowilon. ir-Bny term or condition of this ExhitU I or the eppiicotion.ihereof lo arty
pereon{e) or circumstance is held inVslid. euch invslidily chail noVoHed other terms or
conditions which be g'tven affect wiihout (he Invalid (arm or condHian': to this ertd the
terms and cortdiiibns of this Exhibit I ere declared sevceble. ~

Survival. Provisions irt this ExTilbti I rsgsrdlno ihe.usD end Oisctosure ol PHI, reiwrn or
dealruct'on of PHI. e'llensions of ihe proleciiona of (he Agreement In cactlon (3) I. the.
defense and Iddemniricafion provisions o' section {3) e and Paragraph 13 of (he
standard,terms end condilions (P-37). sholi sinvivo ihe.lermlnailon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties hereioheveduly eiecuted this Exhibit I. -

Depetment ot Heslth ond Human Services .jr Mary Hitchcock'Memorlat HotpHal % .

The Stale ■ Nome of Ihe Conlrector

Sighetdfbof Aulhorlted Representative Signeiuroot Author)te|d Represeniative-

LeighBurgesi

^nie'b^'Authixized Reorese'Name'.bYA^hixized Representative " .'^Neme of AulhprUed Represenioiive.

Vice President, Office ol_ResoofCh Opeieiions

Title of Authorized Repretenlalivo

Dale

If'

'.If

I

I  •

Title of At/lhorized Representative

.  i/ivieio' r

•: V Dale '

••y .V

Y''-:

v'.--"-''

\

,• l '-
J's

V20W

.  .f.

EvMfti
K«UDi (iuuMxa PsniUJry aci
BviV^ltAltKliU AO>lliraftl

p*o«eer«

C«rv«0« InilUll _LL_ ■

D„; S/11/2070
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•' NowHflmpBhlrflOopfirtmonlofMooUhondHumMSorvleoi
'  ̂ ^ EiWbtt J rr-

CgKTlFICATIPN RECAROING THE FEOERU FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTy AND TRANSPABENCy
ACT(FFATft>COWPUANCE

Th« Federsl Fundins A.CflOunUbil)iy ond Trancpateftcy Act <FFATA) reqv/iras piimd evwa/de^s ol individua)
- Federal grsNs egual lo or greater than $2S.OOO artd OMQrded ort or after Oclbber 1.3010. (o report on
doiorclaieb ioexocutiveoombepiaiionend a)$ocialedrtfti-tiersub>gram«or$2S,oopor mofo.irthe
'nitial award ia belM (25.000 Put subsequer>i grarti modiricaUoAS roauX to a total award equal lo or over
S2S.OOp. Ota award is subjoct to (ho FFATA roporling reouiren)enta. os of the dale of the sward.
In eccordthce vdlh 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting.SwOaward end Executive.CompensaUon inlormaUort). the
Oepartmcfti oJ Moaiih or>o Human Services (OMHS) mu jt report the following if>(om^iioo for any
cubaward or coniract ovrard aubjcci to (he FFATA reporting reqvlrarnenii:
1: Nomo of entity

/  2. AmoumofowarO Sif;
3. Funtfirtg ogoncy. .V" ;• . 'v

•7 ;■ A. NAJCS.code for cofllractsrCFDAprooiomriOmber for grants ' ' ''i-
S. Program coutce-

'  6. Award tide descripliva of the purpose of (he funding action ^ ^
7. Location of (ho entity

. 6. Principle plada of performorvca >'
9. UnfquoideniiftorciO»centiiy(OUNSp)
10. Toteicompensaiten'and.names'oflhetopfive'execuUvosil:

10.1. I^ore tharN 00% of onnua) gross revenues arc from the Federal gbvemmonL end those
' reveriues are greater than $25M shnuaily ond

.  ••10.2. CornpensotionrnformaUon lsool olrcadyovaiiablethroughreporling toiho SEC.
i  Prime grant reclpionts rnusi cubmli Ff^ATA required date by the end of the month, plus 30 doys. In which •

the ©ward or cwardomendmcAiis made. ■
\if ;■ The Conimctorldentined In Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions ogreesto comply wiih the provisions of

Tile Federej Funding Ac^unlabUiiy and Transparency Act, Public Low 109-262 end Public Low 110^252.
,  Biid 2 CFR Perl 170 (Reporting Subawerd and Executive (iompansolion in/ormdiidn), end further agrees •

-  10 have the Cpnirector'fi reprosenteli^. as-kleniiried In Sections i.T i ond i.i2 bl the General Provisions
execute the folloviing Cerlincetion;
The below named Contreclor agree; lo provide needed Informaiion os outlined above to ihe'NH
Oepartmenl bl He'allh end Human Services and lo (bmply wtih'oU opplicable provisions of the Federal
Firiencial Accountability and Transparericy Act.

"J".

Cbni/aclor Namo:
•' V ■

5/iS/2020

Date ^ herne'llgri ourgess
ill;. Title: 1/rcePresidenl.Officbof ResearchOperalions

•* '

•

V'- ' • 'i' <y

• .-7/ -

'' fitbEOibSJ-Cv/UnuUenfUgirdlngitMFcMiilFunCifts Cwiuulo'lniiob.
AccemtibKlyAns Trwtijatpncy Aa (FFaTa) CwdsSmm 9/1SA2020
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New Himpshlre Oopanmont of Health and Humin'Sorvices
Eifiifiirj ^ —

'4?'.

FORMA .•

AitheConuaclo/ Idpniified in Section 1.3 odhc General P/oN^jiont. I certify that iho responses to ihe
belov listed questions aro.l/ve end occiiioie.

1. The CiUNS number tor your erulfy Is: 06-Ml-02g7 ■, - >
3. ,»n yowOusiness ororfl«ftliotion"» preceding complgied fiieoi yOir. did your businosi Or orgonitolion

receive 60 oercdni or more of your onnuil gross revenue in tJ.S. lederai conirocls subconirecis
loons, proms. Auft-groms. andror eoop.eraiive agreemenis: and |2) 525.000.000 or more in annual •'
gross revenues trom U.S. ledcrel confecu. lubconuecis. loon's, pronis: su'bgronis. ona/of ''•
cooperolive ogroomenrt? o

*  ̂NO . . V'-'yES '• ■
'' fi

1/ihe answer lo'ff? above Is NO. Slop fioro. 'V- ii'-' ' *'■ >7. >.

■ IMheanswer'toRZ above Is YES, please answer tnetotiownfl:
3. Ooes ihe public have access lo Information oboul the compe'n«iion 61 rheexecutivei in your

business or organlioljon- ir^rovgh periodic reports fded under secUon 13(8) or) 5|d>ol the Securities •
Eichar^^e Act of I93e (IS U.S.C.78m(a).-76^d}) or section 6104 ol ihe InternalRevenue Code of '
10867

,v;.-

v:

■.NO " /, .. YES •' •

If the answer to 83 above is YES. Stop here :• '* ' . p?

If Iheprlswer to 83 above is NO. please answBf the (ollowing; :•
4. The names and compef»>oUon of tpe five most highly compcnsaied officers In your business or

cigonicolion are OS follows: , . V-

Name:- Amouni;

a:I :

Name: -• ; Amouni:

Name: . Amouni:

Nome: • Arhounl: * '

v.v"' Name:' .. Amount:

A-

1.}
■T-. ■,

' j'-v

:h'-'

EcM&lJ- C4Air<4UDAR4yiidVi9lh| FadinlFgrdiAg . .Conimtlw tnk>ih,
AceovAUb'iliryArtdTfiAipwiiKyAd (fFATA) CMnpliMce

«W0^V'>»»|> F#S»2ol? Data. V^^/.^O^O

:3''v
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New Hampshire Department of.HeaUh .and Human Services

OHMS Security Requlrements-

r." ExhieilK ; .•

V  • -v.

•} f:

A. OcHniiions

The (ollovving (erms moy; be rcllecicd end hove (lie described mc.iniiig in this documcni:

I. . "Breach" meons ihe loss of conirot, compromise, unoulhorized disclosure.
uriKiiihorized ncquisirion. unouiliorized oeccss. or ̂ ny similonerm referring to.
siiufiiiont where persons other ilien euihorizcd users end for on oiherilton oudiorized
'purpose hove bccess or poicniiol ectess ro personall.v identifiable informoiion.
whclhrr physicel or electronic. Wlili regord to Prolecied Health Informolion,
"Brcneh" shall have the seme meaning as the term "Breech" in section 164.402 of
Title 4$, Code of FtderorRcgulfltions.

•'r?''' :IV'

■ 2. ."Compulcr. Security Incident" shall have ihe somemeaning "Conipdtcr Securily
•  ; Incident" irt section ivN-o (2)ofNIST Publicotion 800-61,Contputcr Security Incident

K.tndling Guide, Naiibnol lnstlruie of Storvderds'end Technology. U.S. Dcponmcnt
of.Comniercc. ' . P'f,

3. "Conndcmifll Informolion," "Confidential Oaia/'or "Data" (os defined in C.xhibir K),"'.
means ollconndcntial informeiion disclosed by oncpany to the other such os fill
medtcnl, health, nn&nciol, p.vtblic assisioncc benefits arid personal inforhioiipn
including without limiioiion. Substance Abuse Trearmcht Records. Cast ficcofds, " '

• Proiccicd Hcahh Informalioii ondPersonolly Identifiable Informolion. ,■>

Conrtdeniial Informolion also includes ony and oil inrbrmHiion owned or managed by
.  the Stale of NH - crcaicd, received front or on bcholf of the' Dcpartmeni of Heolih and

• Humnn StA'ices (DHHS) or occessed in the course of performing contrncicd services
• of which colleciion, disejosurc. proieciion. and disposition is governed by state or
fcdcrol law or regulation. This inforntaiioit includes, bul is not lintileri lo Prolecied
Health Ihl'ormniion (PHI). Personal Informaiion (PI), Personal l-inonciol Informotion
(PFI), FcdernlTn.v lpformaiion (FTI),' Social Securiiy Numbers (SSN). Pnymcnt C»rd
Indusiry (PC.I). and or olhcr sensitive and confidcntinl infom"»3rion. '

4. "End User' means ony person or cniiiy (c.g!, cpmrocior's employee, business
osso'ciatc, subconirocior. other downstream user, cic.) thoi receives DHHS doin or
dcrivotivc daio in accordnnce wiih ihc ierms of ihii Contract.

5. "HIPAA" meons ihe Henhh Insurance Ponabiliiy and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations proniulgnlcti iher'eundcr.

■k;.y 6. "Incident" means an hcrthai poicnii.Mly violotcs a secuihy policy, which includes
successful aiiempis) to golp unouihorizcd access to a iysicin or i.ls daia. unwonted

■f.. disruption or dcnini of service, the unauthorized use of a system for the processing or

OciobC'. 70IB
riift„  V' ttfttOK ' ConuaaorWOUi LziE.
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.r:.

siorofic of dwo; end changes lo syjuoi hardware, rirmwarc, or software
chorecicrisiics wiihoui the owner's knowledge, insiruciion, or consent, hicidenis
inchtde the toss of date ihrougluheft or device mi$plpumeiM.,loisor mliplacenieiM of
hfirdcopy docunicnis. and inisrboiing of physical or electronic dociimcnis or moil.

7. • "Open'Wireless Network" menus nny'nctworic or segmcni ofn network that is
not designoied by ihc Stote.of New Hompshif;e's Oeparsmem of Information

.  Tcchnoldgy; or delegate ns o protected network (designed, tested, ond approved.-
by means of ih? State, to iransinii) will-be considered on open neiwork ond not
odcqiioicly secure for the imnsmisslon of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or
confidential DHHS doio. ;•

8. Personal Information" (or "Pt') means informaiion which cnn be used to distinguish
• or fracebn iridividuars identity, such as their nime. social sectirity number, personal •
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 3S9-(!:I9, bipme4ric Veeord$,.eit.,

,  alone, dr.when combined wiihoihcr personnl or identifying Information which is*
linked or linkable lo a specific individiiBl. such as date and placeofbinh, moiher's
maiden name, etc. ' .. J':

9. "Privacy Role" shall mean the Standards for Privacy oflndividually Identifiable '*
Heolih Informniion.Wt^S C.f.R. Pans IdOond 164, prorhulgoicd under HIPAA by ihc
United Sraics Oepai'imcni of Health nnd Human Services. *•

10. Proiceicd Hcalih Informaiiori ' (or-"PHI")has the same mconlngjs provided In the
•  -dcOnilion of "Protected Hcalih Information" in ilic HIPA A Privacy Rule ot4$C F R

§I60-I03..
^  j-
1 j. "Security Role" shnll mean the Security Standards for the Proicciion of Electronic

Protected Heahh lnfor!n3iionai45C.r.R. Part 164. Subport C. and amendments »
thcrelo,. " . '

V

12. "Unsecured Pfotccrcd Hcalih'inrofmation" means Protected Hcalih Information that is
not secured by o.icchnolofiy standard t'hot renders Prpiceicd Health Infomiation
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unaoihofjzed intiividunis rnd is developed
or endorsed byo standards developing organiiaiion that is accredited by the American

•■Nnii.ofialStondaids Instiniic. . .. : •

•C-

•1I. RR$rONSIDlUTIES OF.DHHS ANOTHe contractor

.  .A. Business Use fl ntJ Disclosure of Conrideniifll lnformotibn.

•  The Contractor must not usc; diJclasc,.molnifiin or-ironsmii ConfidcntiBi Informaiion '

Oaobei.JOlB EtfTtiK . ConwocJD'IrtBtjli
i' '. OXHSWvmiUoA " —
if SecvrtiyRtovUemeftij S/15/2070
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■■K:

f'-:

:V

•. except BS-requircdor penniftcd under thij Conlraci.or rcquifcd by low. Tufihcr,
Contractor, including but r>0( limiicd to all iis direciOfS, ofTiccrs, employees and

;  -ogenis, must not use, disclose,.ntainiain or trausniii PHI in arty monncr ihoi would ;
:: constitute 0 violAtion drthe Privacy ond Security Rule.

2. The ConlrACtor nm'si not disclose any Cohfidcnllal Infornt&lion in response to a
. request for disclosure on the bftsis ihoi it is required by 'liuv, in retponie ip n subpoena,

iic., without first noiilyins OHHS $0 that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or ,
object to the discloJuVc.

3. The Comtactor agrees thai DHHS Onto or derivative there rroni disclosed to an End
.User musronly be used pursiiaitrto the iernts ofiltis'Conimcj. •

.ir. methods OFSECURETRANSMISSIpN OirDATA

•I. ApplicatiOi^ Encryption. If Contractor Is. n^insmiiiiiig DHHS Data containing
Conridcntiol Pain between Qpplicpiions,'thc Conirai;|^or oucsis t)ic application^ ha\'C

'  been evaluated by -an c.^pcis Vno.wledgeabic: in cyber security -and ihni said
application's erKr)'p|lon capabilities ensure secure Iransntission via the internet.

-  2. Conipuicr Oi'sks nnd Portablc''Sior.igc Devices. .ComrBcior may not use computer disks or.
portable siorngc devices, such as ntliumb drive, as a-nieiltod of transinliiing DHHS Daib.

3. Encrj'pied Email. Contractor nioy only cntpldy email lo transmit Conndcniiol Ddia if
. email Isentrvbied and being scni to and being received by email addresses of persons

authorized to receive such inrormaiion.
.9 •

4. Enco'picd.Web Site. If Contractor is employing the W'cb to irnnsniii Conridcntiol
0.->l,a, lite secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.
SSL encrypiy data tronsinitted'via fi Web sire.

■' 5. File Hosting.Services, also knovynos File Sharing Sites. Comroeior nVoy not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Conftdcniial
Dam. . ■ s

6. Ground .Mail Service. Contractor may only (rpnsmli Co'nndcniial Data via ceriifi,cd
gix>und mail within the conllnentsi U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If Contractor is employing portable devices to transmit
Conndcmiat Dam said devices muii be encrypted and pdssword>protccied.

8. Open Wireless Nciworks. Coniracior may not transmit ConrKtcniiai OoiA via on open
wireless network.'End User niusi employ e virtual'private network (.VPN) when

. remotely transmitting vio an open wireless network.

9. Rcrho.ve User Comimmicoiion. If Contractor is employing remote cominvmicotion to

Oaoo«>.20ia CirtMK
- OHHS lAloimilten

ContnUertnltbh I

0»io
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r-f'

atcfss or irensmil Coiindcniiol Oiia, Q {ccgfc incihod 6r transmission Or remoic
occess, which complies wiih ihe terms nnd condiilpns of Exhibit X. mitst be used.

■  ',10. SSH File Tro.istcr Protocol (SFTP).olsokooxv.,ns Secure File TronifcrProiocoi; If ■ ■
Contractor is employing en SFTP 10 transmit ConHdcritial Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges (o prevcni inappropriate disclosure of •
infomioilpn. SFTP folders and sub-folderi used for transmitting Conridcniiol OoiV will '
be codetj for 24.houf auto-dcleiion cycle (i.e. Conndcniial Data will be deleted every 24

■  hours). ' . ■
■H -v J ^ . '•

11. Wireless Devices. If Contractor is rranstniiiing.Conridcntiol Data via wireless devices, oil
dam musi be encrypted to prevent inipproprioie disclosure of informaiion.

in. retention Afib DISPOSITION OP IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS v
The Coniracior will only retain OHHS Dam and any derivoiive of the data for the doroilon of-
this Conircci. After such time. tht-Coniractor tvill luvc ihirty ()0) days (0 destroy ihe dolo
pnd any derivniive.ln.»vli3fcv«r form It may e.tisi. tiitless, oiherwlse required by. low of. i'rit Is ...
infcasi.blc to rcrurn or destroy OHHS Dam, proicctionj ore CKtcndcd to Such information, in
pccordoncc with ihe icntiinaiion provisions in this Section. To this end,"the panics n>usi:

4* , * •
A. .RciCnlio« -,1.' • i:; ' .V

...

I. The Contfocior agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
•V;/:; cortnecllon with the services rendered under this Cbniroct outside of the United

Smtcs. Tills physicol location rcquircmcili thnl'l rtlso apply in Ihc'jmplcmeniation of
computing, cloud service or cloud Storage eopabiliiies, and includes backup

dflia and Disaster Recovery locations.
■: ensure proper security monitoring copabilitics 'nVc in place 7''

•i. t..; *®<'^'"*PO'^'"'«'«curitycvcnUlhatcanimpactStaicorNHs.vSicmsond/or ' •"
fOt^fitlcniial inlormotlon forjconirtctor provided systems accessed Of "

utilrced for purposes of carrying em this conirrtfi.-
7- provide scctirlty awareness aitd education for its End Usci"s

'  • '"Si'PPOrrof protecting OHHS Conridcntial informnlion. ■.

V; '' v. ^ Coniracior ogfccs'iofct.iln all electronic'mid hard copies of Confidcnilnl Data ■
inn secure location and idcmiOcd In section IV. A.2

."5. *rbcComrnciorftgrcc$ConfidcmmlOat.isioredinaClo.udmti8ibcin.ft
coiiiplioni solution and contply with-all opplicnbic siaiuics and

rcgnlolions regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must hove ..
ciirrcrslly-supponeb and hardened operating systems, uuncnt. updated, nnd *'

_  Oetoftei.wm -r-, EAbitK Co«fi>dorw.-c3» .
OhhS Wermjllon
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•ivV '■

•\k

nifiinioined ari(i>malu'ore (c.g- onii-virol, onii-liacV'er-, Dnli*sp8in. Rnii«sp)Avsrc)
'uiiiiiics. Tilt environment, os B uiiolc, miut hove aggreisive intrusion-deiecnon niid
fi reiv^l! pfoieciion.

6. The Coniraeior'pgrces to end ciiturcs its complete coopcrolion wtih the Stoic's
Chicr informoiion Officef in the detection of ony sfccyfiiy vulncrobilily of tlx
Itoiiing iorratiaiciure. " :•

P'
B. Ditposiiioo

:'L- -j:

If the Coninclor mAintains ohy ConfidcniiRl Informoiion on its systems (or it's sub-'
controctor systems) ond ii'hos not done so previously, the Coniroctor will implement
policies snd procedures to ensure thAi nny storoge media on which svich dntn maybe
recorded will be rendered uiircadobie and tiioi the doin will bc'iin-rccoverftblc when
ih't siorogc media Is'disposcd of. Upon request, tlic Conimcior will provide the

■Depannient with copies of these policies ond with written docun'icnioiion ■.
demonstrating complienee with the policies. The wriuen dociimcntolion will Include
oil details necessary to dcmonstmie clato comained in the storage.mcdio hris been
rendered 'unreodobl^ond un-reeoverablt. Whcre-opplicnblc, regulotory and
profcssiono! siondards for rciehrlon rcquircmcnis may be joinrly evoliioted by the •
Stmc nnd Conlrncibr prioModcslruclion. .:i •

I

2.

Unless oihenvise specified, within thirty ^30) doys of the lemuiiatibn.of ihi)
Concroei, Coniracior agrees to destroy all hard copies of Conndcnti&t OolA using a'
.secure method such OS shredding.- *

• , . V, i
Unless otherwise specified, within thiri)- (30) days of the termination of this
ConirAct, Goniroctor ogrees to completely destroy all electronic Conndential Daio
by iticnns of dnio erosurc, also known ns securc datn tvipiitg.'

•-sfr-

•*A'

-

t*

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY •
.'.fi

A. Contrneior Agrees to sofcguord the OHHS Data received under this ContrACI, nnd any ■
-derivAtivc doin or files, as roliows:

I-. Tlic.Qonirnctor will mAlntnin proper security controls lb protect DcpAfTmcm
.. c.oiindcnliol iiirormoiion collected^ processed, managed, nnd/or slorcd in the dclivery-

ofcontrftcicdservices:. .

2. The Contrneior will maintain policies ond procc-durcs.to protect Dcporlmcnl
confidenlipl inrormntion ihroughoul (he informaiion lirceycic, where Applicoble, (fiom
creoiion/iron.tronnaiion, use, .siorogc ond secure dcsiivetion) rcgordless of the media

'!>■

Octtbcr.TOia EiN&ilK
DKHS UtlomuUM

Soturtr n*Qt^efflenis
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V

••iV.

A

-v.- X' - -l M
►  ' * r»

uMd 10 Store the dato (i.e.. tape. disk, pnper, eic.).

J. The Contrnctor will main'ioin uppropriaic auiheniiceiion and access controls to
j... conueetof systems that collect, iransmli. or siorc DcpDfimeni conndeniiftl infonnoiion

ivherc npplicoble.

4. If ihc Conuactor will be sub-conirflciing anyxore fohciioni of ilie engngcnicot
supporting .the services for St.Mt.cfNcw Hampsltire, the Conirocior will ensure'End-
User willmoihioift an intcrnol processor processes that defines specific security

• cxpieciaiions, aitd moniiering compliance to security requircincnts thai at a miriiminn
molch ihose for the Controctof, including breach notification febuiren>ent!. '5/^ •:<

5, • The Contractor ivill work with thVD.epartrticrti to sign and comply wiih ull opplicoble
Stoic of New Hnmpshirc nnd Department system occcssond ouiliortMiion policies ond
procedures, systems access forms; and computer use ogreemenls os pan of obtaining
and maintaining nccess to any Oepanmeni $ysicm(s). Agreements will be corhpleicd '
and signed by the Comracior and any oppltcibic syb-comradiors prior io.sy$iem access "
bfingauihoridcd. . , , '

,  I ^ V ..K *•6; If the Dcpartihcni determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant 10 45
Cr»ft 160.l03.ihc Conirnc wf will execute t) HIPaa Business Associate Agreement

• (6AA) ivitti (he beperlnieni and is responsible for moimoining compliance wiih ihc
ogreemeni.^

7- TlKConirtciorwillhoistorcanySlOtCcfNcwHompshirc.orDcpOrtmenidala
... offshore or outside ihc boundaries of the Uniicd Staies unlesspriortxprcss wrlircn

^  • consenr Is obiaihcd from the Inforntniion Security O'fTice lendership member within •. •:
. the Dtpanmeni. ■

<  *

jA'' bnto Security Breach LiDb>liiy..jn"thc_cVcni of nny computer security incident, ' '.r;
-v* ■ 'rtcidcni, or breach Conlractor shall make cffo.ris to investigate the causes of the

breach, promptly take measures to prevent fuiiirr breach nnd minimize any damage or • • •
*hc bfcocli. The Sialc shall recover fronuhc Contractor oil costs of •response and recovery from tlic'breoch. including but not limned (o: credit indnitoring '

services, mailing cgsis and costs associaied with website,and icIepMnc call ccnier
services ncceiwry due 10 the breach. .

9. Contrnetormust. comply with nil/Tpplicfiblesifliuics mid rcgiilniionsrpg.vdiiig the •
Pfiyocy and security of Conndeniial lnfprmeiion,.eiid mull in nil other respects - '■

% maintain the privncy and security of PI nnd PHlai o level nnd scppc thnlls not less
than the level nnd scope of. HIPaa Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Port's 160.
and 164) and 42 C.f.'R. Port 2 thai govern protections for individually idcnliriabic

OcMbir/.TOi# CtfrviK CoroedwtMbh
V- ■ • ommS bUoontnort . ""

S/lS/2020Figatot# . , 't „ • Out



pocuSlfln Envelope ID: Cl63457B-aA67-432C-A985-CFDFC0FC0OB7

DocuSign Envetope IO;'E8l6l4D6-S786-4332-B2CE*38A5A1A99A3E

Oocuilgn EAv«top« lO: 77f7E36^OPSe'4CtC<A943.F0E9»€8S(U9

OocaSi9rt&ivelo|Mlb:&KM7Pl».FaEMy4-B475-i4W9C002Aa8
%

OeewSVn'E'«^ioptU):OUtOiAM7eP^}C^eAB84AtE7F7SOne

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

■t:—

DHHS Security Requirements
ExhibilK

■'.LW.

» *, VA

health Inforinotion and Bs opplicoKIc onderSlftlc. low.

10. Comrflcior agrees lo establish end nttlmoin appropriate aduiinisirativc, technical, arid
physical safegunrdsjio protccj ihc conrtdcntiali{y ofthe Conndemrol Data and to .t-
prcveoi iinouihoritcd osc or ccccss <o it. The sofcguards hiust provide a level and
scope of security that is.not Icssihon the level end scope of security rtquircmcnis
esiablishcd by ihc'Statc of New Hampshire, Dcpsnmcni of lnformoiiof\ Technology. *

•  Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hiip>;/Avnv\v.nh.gov/doil/vendor/indc.x.hint'
for ihc Dcpanmcnt of infomiRiion Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
prpcurcmcnr infotnution relating 10 vendprs. •

)). Cbmroclpr agrees 10 maintain a doctimenicd breach notiricciion andincideni response
process.,The Contractor musi notify the pHHS Security Office nnd the PfOgrnmCont.nct via the email.addresses proviiJed in Scctlpii VI of riiii Exhibii, immcdioieiy
4Jpon the Coritrocfor dctcnniningihai o breach or scciirily-incidcni tms,occurred and
Ihol pHHS connden'tiol Infonnoiion/daw may have bccrv exposed or conipromised.
1 his includes fl conndeniiDi informatioh breach, computer security it>cidcni, or • •
suspected breach witich nlTccls or includes any Stare of New Hainpshirc systems (hot
connect to the Stale of New Hampshire nctwofli.

12. Contractor rhusi restrict access to the Confidential Oala obtained under ihts ,
Contract to only those auil»orl/.cd End Users \yho need such DHHS Data !0 perforn)
ilicir ofTicial^Jutics in connection \\Hih purposes idrniificd in this Conlroct. ' i'

13. The Contracror is responsible Cor End User oversight and compliance with the
(crms Mid conditions of the contract and Exhibit K,.

■-■■St'

DHHS reserves the right to"conduct onsite inspections to mohiior compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements prpvidcd in herein. HIPAA,
o'fid oiher applicable laivs and rcdcral regulations uniil.such rime the Confidential Dai4
is disposed of in occordancc with this Conirncl.

■  7
LOSS REPORTING •

•The Conirncior must imincdintely notify the.Stale's Privacy OfTtcer. Infonnailofi
Sccuniy OITiceand Progront Manager of any Security Incidcnis nnd.Orcoclics as . " •
speciftcd in Section IV, paragraph 1 1 above. ... ;•

The Cbntrociof must funherhondit and report Incidents and Drenches involving PH) In
accordance with DMHS's doctimcnicdihcideni Handling find Breach Notiricciion
procedures rind iii accordonco wiih-thc HIPAA, Privacy and Sccurir/Rules. In addition

October. 20 la EiMbQK
onus hle«m»t>en

ReoifrcmcnU
r>*tc7oiP

CentfMor IrAUn _Qi6 _

/■■■■
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Exhibit K

(o, end notwiih$(endiiia, Contraccor'sconiplience wiili oil epplieeble obligations end
procedures. Conlrscior's procedures must also address how the Conirocior will:

1. ideiiiify (ncidenis; j:-..
V'

2. Oclcnnine if personally idcntinablc infomtoiion is involved in Incidenis;

3. Report suspected or eonfimvcd Jncldenis as required in (his ENhibil or P«37;

4. Identify end convene a core response group to delcrntine ihe-risK level of Incidenis
end dciermine rijk-based responses (oincidenis; nnd

SV Determine wheihcr Breach nocincaiioi) is required, ond. if so. idenilfy nppropriatc
Breach rtoiinceiion methods, timing,, soiirce. and conien.ls from nntong difTereni
options, ond bear costs ossociated with the Breach rioricc as well as any mltigotion
nteojiires. • v -

Incttienis itnd/or Breaches that implicate Pi nmsi be addressed end rcporied, os
dpplicftbic, in pccordante with Nil RSa 3S9-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO contact : • ''4

'  A. DHHS contact for p.tlD Mon.igeinehi or Data Exchange issues;

OHHSlnfoni»aiionSccuriiyOfrrce0dhhs.nh.gov •

B. OHHS conto.eis for Privacy issues; r

DHHSPnvacyOl>icer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. OHHS contacr for Inforrnolion Security Issues;

OHI-l$lnformnlionStCurilyOfncc@dhhs.tth.gOv

D. OHHS contact for Brcobh noiiricAiions:

DHHSlnforn»ftiionSecurilyOITjcc(5)dlth$.nh.gov

■  DHHSPfivncvQfricerf^hhs.iili.(!Ov

E. OHHS Program Area Conipci:

Jtv- Christine.Bcnn0dhh$.hh.gbv

n*'.
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